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WHO WE ARE

e Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (BPHB) is a
) public limited company, incorporated on

. > 22 March 1996 under the Companies Act
B - 1965. The Company shares (BIPORT) were
S 0 listed on the Main Market of the Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhnad on 16 April 2001.




INTEGRITY

We adhere to standards,
regulations and conduct the
business according to the
highest ethics.

CUSTOMER FOCUSED

We provide safe and efficient
services that meet customers’
expectations.

RECOGNITION

We provide our personnel with
challenging opportunities,
emphasizing on individual

initiative and creativity for career
advancement.

INNOVATION

We are committed in delivering
effective solutions to each
customer’s needs and
continuously adopting new
technology to maintain our
competitiveness.

QUALITY PEOPLE

We are versatile personnel.
We value teamwork and
co-operation.

We are committed to align our
behavior with the organizational
goals.



NOTICE OF THEZ 1 1
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(Pursuant to Chapter 8, Part H, Para 8.27 (1) of the Main Market Listing Requirements)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Twenty-First (215') Annual General Meeting (AGM) of BINTULU PORT
HOLDINGS BERHAD (the Company) will be held at Ballroom 3, Lobby Floor, Hilton Kuching, Jalan
Tunku Abdul Rahman, 93748 Kuching, Sarawak on Friday, 21 April 2017 at 3.00 pm for the following
purposes:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Toreceive the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended
31 December 2016 together with the Reports of the Directors
and the Auditors thereon.

[Please refer to Explanatory Note 1]

2. To approve the payment of Final Single Tier Dividend of 6.0 sen (Resolution 1)
per share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016.
[Please refer to Explanatory Note 2]

3. To approve the Directors’ Fees amounting to RM%25,000.00 for (Resolution 2)
the year ended 31 December 2016.
[Please refer to Explanatory Note 3]

4. Tore-elect Tan Sri Datuk Amar Hj. Mohamad Morshidi bin Abdul (Resolution 3)
Ghani who retires under Article 127 of the Company'’s Articles of
Association.

[Please refer to Explanatory Note 4]

5. Tore-elect Gen. Dato’ Seri DiRaja Tan Sri (Dr.) Mohd Zahidi bin (Resolution 4)
Hj. Zainuddin (R) who retires under Article 127 of the Company’s
Articles of Association.
[Please refer to Explanatory Note 4]

6. Tore-elect Datuk Nasarudin bin Md Idris who retires under Article (Resolution 5)
127 of the Company’s Articles of Association.
[Please refer to Explanatory Note 4]

7. To re-elect Dato’ Siti Zauyah binti Md Desa who retires under (Resolution 6)
Article 132 of the Company’s Articles of Association.
[Please refer to Explanatory Note 5]

8. To re-appoint Messrs. Ernst & Young as Auditors of the (Resolution 7)
Company for financial year ended 31 December 2017 and
to authorise the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.
[Please refer to Explanatory Note 6]

9. To transact any other business for which due notice shall have
been given in accordance with the Companies Act 2016.
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NOTICE OF THE 21" AGM

e

FURTHER NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT for the purpose of determining a member who shall be
entitled to attend this 21" AGM, the Company shall be requesting Bursa Malaysia Depository
Sdn Bhd in accordance with Arficle 77 of the Company's Articles of Association and Section 34(1)
of the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991, to issue a General Meeting Record of
Depositors as at 13 April 2017. Only a depositor whose name appears on the Record of Depositors
as at 13 April 2017 shall be entitled to attend the said meeting or appoint proxies to attend and / or
vote on his / her behalf.

NOTICE OF BOOK CLOSURE AND DIVIDEND PAYMENT

NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY GIVEN THAT subject to the shareholders’ approval for the payment of final
dividend of 6.0 sen per share under the single-tier system in respect of the financial year ended 31
December 2016 (“Dividend”) under Resolution 1 at the 21" AGM of the Company, the Dividend will
be paid to the shareholders on 23 May 2017. The entitlement date for the Dividend shall be 12 May
2017.

Shareholders of the Company will only be entitled to the Dividend in respect of:

(a) securities transferred into their securities account before 5.00 pm on 12 May 2017 for tfransfers;
and

(b) securities bought on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on a cum entitlement basis according to
the Rules of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

By Order of the Board,

ABU BAKAR BIN HUSAINI
(LS0009926)
Company Secretary

BINTULU
28 March 2017

NOTES:
PROXY

¢ Only depositors whose names appear on the Record of Depositors as at 13 April 2017 shall be entitled
fo attend, speak and vote at the said meeting or appoint proxies to attend, speak and vote on his / her
behalf.

e A member of the Company entitled to aftend and vote is entitled to appoint up to two (2) proxies to
attend and vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

e Where a member appoints two (2) proxies, the appointment shall be invalid unless he / she specifies the
proportions of his / her shareholding to be represented by each proxy.

e The insfrument appointing a proxy in the case of an individual shall be signed by the appointer or his
attorney duly authorised in writing and in the case of a corporatfion, the insfrument appointing a proxy
must be under seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

e The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at Lot 15,
Block 20, Kemena Land District, 12" Mile, Tanjung Kidurong Road, 97000 Bintulu, Sarawak, Malaysia not
less than forty-eight (48) hours before the day, date and time sfipulated for holding the said meeting or at
any adjournment thereof.
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8 NOTICE OF THE 21" AGM

EXPLANATORY NOTES ON ORDINARY BUSINESS:-

1) Explanatory Note for ltem 1
The Audited Financial Statements are laid in accordance with Section 340(1) (a) of the Companies
Act 2016 for discussion only. They do not require shareholders’ approval and therefore, will not be
put for voting.

2) Explanatory Note for Resolution 1

The Board of Directors is recommending that the shareholders approve the payment of the Final
Dividend. In accordance with Article 162 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the Company
in General Meeting may by ordinary resolution declare dividends payable to the Members in
accordance with their respective rights and priorities out of any lawfully distributable profits, but
no dividend shall exceed the amount recommended by the Board of Directors. Pursuant to
paragraph 8.26 of the Main Market Listing Requirements, the final dividend, if approved, will be
paid no later than three (3) months from the shareholders’ approval. The Book Closure Date and
Payment Date, subject to approval of shareholders has been announced by the Company on
27 February 2017.

3) Explanatory Note for Resolution 2
The Board of Directors is recommending that the shareholders approve the payment of Directors’
fees totaling RM925,000.00 to the Non-Executive Directors for the financial year ended 31
December 2016. In accordance with Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the
remuneration of the Directors shall from time to time be determined by the Company in General
Meeting but:

» Directors’ fees payable to Directors not holding any executive office in the Company shall be
a fixed sum and shall not be payable by a commission on or percentage of profits or turnover;

» Salaries payable to Directors holding executive office in the Company may not include a
commission on or a percentage of turnovers;

* Allremuneration payable to Directors shall be deemed to accrue from day to day;

* Fees payable to Directors shall not be increased except pursuant to a resolution passed by
the Company in general meeting, where notice of the proposed increase has been given in
the notice convening the meeting; and

* Any fee paid to an alternate Director shall be agreed between him and his appointor and
shall be deducted from his appointor’s remuneration.

4) Explanatory Notes for Resolutions 3 to 5
Article 127 of the Company’s Articles of Association expressly states that an election of Directors
shall take place each year. At every Annual General Meeting, one-third of the Directors (whether
Government Appointed Directors or not) who are subject to retirement by rotation or, if their
number is not three (3) or a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to one-third shall retire from
office, and if there is only one (1) Director who is subject to retirement by rotation, he shall retire
PROVIDED ALWAYS that all Directors shall retire from office once at least in each three (3) years.

5) Explanatory Notes for Resolution é
Article 132 of the Company’s Articles of Association stipulates that the Directors may appoint a
person who is willing to act as Director, either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional Director,
provided that the appointment does not cause the number of Directors to exceed any number
fixed by or in accordance with these Articles as the maximum number of Directors. A Director so
appointed shall hold office only until the next following Annual General Meeting and shall then
be eligible for re-election.

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0s02-1) Annual Report 2016
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6) Explanatory Note for Resolution 7
Pursuant to Section 271(3) (b) of the Companies Act 2016, shareholders shall appoint Auditors who
shallhold office until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting. The current Auditors have
expressed their wilingness to continue in office and the Board of Directors has recommended
their reappointment. The shareholders shall consider this resolution and fo authorise the Board of

Directors to determine their remuneration thereof.

) —
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. STATEMENT ACCOMPANYING
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(Pursuant to Chapter 8, Part H, Para 8.27 (2) of the Main Market Listing Requirements)

1. Directors who are standing for re-election at the Twenty-First (21¢) Annual General Meeting of
the Company

a)  The Directors retiring by rotation pursuant to Article 127 of the Company's Articles of
Association and Para 7.26 of the Main Market Listing Requirements and offered themselves
for re-election are:

* Tan Sri Datuk Amar Hj. Mohamad Morshidi bin Abdul Ghani
(Non-Independent Non-Executive)

* Gen. Dato’ Seri DiRaja Tan Sri (Dr.) Mohd Zahidi bin Hj. Zainuddin (R)
(Non-Independent Non-Executive)

* Datuk Nasarudin bin Md Idris
(Non-Independent Non-Executive)

b) The Directors retiring pursuant to Article 132 of the Company’s Arficles of Association and
offered herself for re-election is:

* Dato’ Siti Zauyah binti Md Desa
(Non-Independent Non-Executive Director effective 1June 2016)

The profiles of the abovenamed Directors who are standing for re-elections (as per Ordinary
Resolutions 3 to 6) as stated in the Notice of the 215 AGM, are set out in the Profiles of the Board
of Directors on pages 38 fo 51 of this Annual Report.

2. Board Meetings held during the financial year ended 31 December 2016

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, a total of eleven (11) Board Meetings were
held as follows:

No. of Meeting Venue Date Time
1/2016 Putrajaya Marriott Hotel 13 January 2016 7.00 pm
2/2016 Putrajaya Marriott Hotel 25 February 2016 7.00 pm
3/2016 Putrajaya Marriott Hotel 2 March 2016 7.00 pm
4/2016

and pusuan 1o Aricle 149 : 14 March 2016 -

of the Company’s Arficles of
Association)

5/2016 Hilton Hotel Kuching 28 April 2016 9.30 am
6/2016 Putrajaya Marriott Hotel 25 May 2016 7.00 pm
7/2016

and pursuan 1o Aricle 149 - 9 June 2016 -

of the Company'’s Articles of
Association)

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0802-1) Annual Report 2016



STATEMENT ACCOMPANYING NOTICE OF AGM 11

No. of Meeting Venue Date Time
8/2016 Putrajaya Marriott Hotel 25 August 2016 5.30 pm
9/2016 Putrajaya Marriott Hotel 7 September 2016 5.00 pm
10/2016 Putrajaya Marriott Hotel 18 November 2016 5.30 pm
11/2016

(Bgnvg%{;?slggrc?g\rﬁgghﬂgn - 2 December 2016 -

of the Company’s Articles of
Association)

Details of the Board of Directors’ attendance are as follows:

Direct No. of Percentage of Attendance

ireciors Meetings Attended (%)
Tan Sri Dr. Ali bin Haomsa 11/11 100
Dato’ Siti Zauyah binti Md Desa 5/5 100
(Appointed on 1 June 2016)
Tan Sri Datuk Amar Hj. Mohamad 8/11 72.7
Morshidi bin Abdul Ghani
Gen. Dato’ Seri DiRaja Tan Sri (Dr.) 11/11 100
Mohd Zahidi bin Hj. Zainuddin (R)
Datuk Fong Joo Chung 11/11 100
Datuk Nasarudin bin Md Idris 10/11 90.9
Encik Dzafri Sham bin Ahmad 10/11 90.9
Dato’ Sri Mohamad Norza bin Zakaria 10/11 90.9
Dato’ Sri Mohamed Khalid 11/11 100
bin Yusuf @ Yusup
Dato’ Yasmin binti Mahmood 8/11 72.7
Datuk Nozirah binti Bahari 10/10 100

(Appointed on 1 February 2016)

Dato’ Seri Dr. Hj. Arshad

bin Hashim 1/1 100
(Resigned on 1 February 2016)

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0s02-1) Annual Report 2016
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TURNOVER PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
(RM MILLION) (RM MILLION)

2014

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER'S FUND NET ASSET PER SHARE
(RM MILLION) (RM)

1,078.70
1,104.67
1,117.24
1,156.68

EARNING PER SHARE
(SEN)

SINGLE TIER DIVIDEND DIVIDEND PAID DURING THE YEAR (NETT)

(SEN) (RM MILLION)

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (380802-1)

Annual Report 2016



AL HIGHLIGHTS
MANCE HIGHLIGHTS 15

CARGO THROUGHPUT CONTAINERS HANDLED VESSEL CALLS
(MILLION TONNE) (TEUs) (NO. OF VESSEL CALLS)

270,495
8,481

250,353

o
o)
)
m
<+
(o]

SHARE PERFORMANCE

Ordinary Share of RM1.00 each 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Highest Price 218 256 322 450 494 494 760 675 652 705 750 730 732 7.00 7.20

Lowest Price 1.68 1.97 210 3.02 376 446 468 500 520 6.15 646 650 656 7.00 7.20

720 7.5
6.40 598

Share Price (RM)

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Low mmmm Close at end of Period  mmmm High

* Based on fransacted price for the period ended 28 February 2017

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (380802-1) Annual Report 2016
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW
18  Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to report that Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad
(the Group) weathered the challenges of a volatile
operating environment in 2016 to turn in a noteworthy
financialandoperationalperformance.Low commodity
prices and a prolonged downturn in the oil and gas
industry coupled with major political developments in
the form of BREXIT and the US presidential elections all
impacted the global economic landscape in one way
or another. The Malaysian economy also registered a
moderate 4.2% growth, compared to 5% in 2015. At the
same time, the country’s major port cargo throughput
saw a slight decrease of 0.3% with 562.93 million
tonnes in 2016 compared to 564.42 million tonnes the
year before.

While it was an uphill task contending with external
challenges, | am proud to say that we faced them
with a disciplined management approach and
improved operational efficiencies, as well as a
steadfast dedication to delivering a sound financial
performance. Strategic choices were made during
the year regarding technologies, services, markets,
processes and the scheduling of new capital
investment. Training was targeted to sharpen the
knowledge, skills and core competencies required to
compete and excel in an ever-evolving industry. This
experience has inherently strengthened our resolve
to forge ahead resiliently, leveraging on the Group'’s
collective strengths, enhancing our capabilities and
capacities, and reinforcing our position as a gateway
to economic growth under the Sarawak Corridor of
Renewable Energy (SCORE).

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0s02-1) Annual Report 2016



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016,
the Group furned in a commendable performance
registering revenue of RM583.62 million, a 6.62%
or RM36.26 milion increase over 2015's operating
revenue of RM547.36 million. We turned in a profit
before taxation (PBT) of RM200.98 million, a 19.29% or
RM32.50 million advance over 2015's PBT of RM168.48
million. Meanwhile, the Group registered profit after

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS

Challenging as the year 2016 was, | am delighted
to note that the Group experienced a satisfactory
performance, achieving growth in most areas of its
operations. One significant note was the 14% increase
in container throughput (TEUs) amidst growth in all other
cargo cafegories as well. Bintulu Port also managed
fo successfully secure five-year contracts with Petronas
Carigali Sdn Bhd (PCSB) and Pefronas Floating LNG
(PFLNG), and athree-year contract for Murphy Oil Sarawak
fo provide base support services. PETRONAS as our anchor
customer also began operations of the new LNG frain
(Train ?) in June 2016 and is expected to commence
commercial shipment in Quarter 1 2017, increasing
the yearly total production capacity to 29.3 million
tfonnes.

Biport Bulkers also enjoyed a record throughput in
2016 despite the prolonged dry weather conditions
and below average rainfall in the first half of 2016
which impacted the Malaysia oil palm industry.

GOOD SHAREHOLDER VALUE CREATION

We have always believed in according our
shareholders both fangible and intangible returns,
and we contfinue to do so. For 2016, we strengthened
our fundamentals and demonstrated robust
profitability. At the same time, we maintained our
market capitalisation and strengthened our balance
sheet. Allin all, we continued on our growth trajectory
without compromising our inherent value, thereby
ensuring healthy returns for our shareholders.

| am delighted to report that the Group's balance
sheet confinues to remain healthy and will serve us
well as we pursue our agenda of renewed growth. As
at the end of 2016, the Group's cash, deposits and
bank balances stood at RMé26.46 million, 22.5% lower

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (380802-1)

FORMANCE REVIEW
Chairman’s Statement

taxation (PAT) of RM149.84 million, which is 17.46%
or RM22.27 million higher than the PAT of RM127.57
million registered in 2015.

Further details of our financial performance are
outlined in the GCEO's Message and MD&A on
pages 22 to 30 of this Annual Report.

These conditions led to final production of crude
palm oil in Malaysia amounting to only 17.3 million
fonnes compared to the projected figure of 19.9
million tonnes. The addition of a new berth has also
greatly improved turnaround for bulkers in 2016
while the new refinery and confinued growth of the
oil palm sectorin the state bode well for the bulking
business.

Currently in its interim phase, work on the much
anticipated Samalaju Industrial Port has progressed
on schedule and is almost nearing completion and
we eagerly look forward to the commencement
of Phase 1 operations by the first half of 2017. To
provide value-added services fo Samalaju Industrial
Park (SIP) investors and attract cargo beyond SIP,
particularly the northern region of Sarawak, the
Group is working on the possibility of developing a
Distribution Park at Samalaju Port in the future.

than the preceding year’s figure of RM808.25 million
mainly due to the port’'s development project at
Samalaju. Following an increase in fotal borrowings
during the year, the Group's net gearing ratio
increased to 31.3% at the end of 2016 in comparison
to 5.3% at the end of 2015.

The Group's earnings rose to 32.57 sen per share (EPS),
a 17.45% increase over the result of 27.73 sen realised
in 2015. The profit this year added 8 sen per share fo
the Group’s valuation which rose to RM2.51 of net
assefs per share from RM2.43. As at 31 December
2016, total funds attributable to equity holders of the
Group rose by RM39.44 million to RM1,156.68 million
from the RM1,117.24 recorded in 2015.

Annual Report 2016
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Chairman’s Statement

In respect of the financial year ended 31 December
2016, the Board of Directors is recommending for
your approval, the payment of a Final Single Tier
Dividend of 6.00 sen per share. Upon approval at
this Annual General Meeting, the dividend will be
paid on 23 May 2017 to shareholders registered on
the Company's Register of Members at the close
of business on 12 May 2017. Thus, the total dividend
payout for the year underreview is RM110.40 million or
24.00 sen per share.

| am pleased to report that RAM Ratings has
reaffrmed the AAT1/Stable/P1 corporate credit
rafings of the Group. The ratings mainly reflect the
view of the Group as a government-linked entity and
the high likelihood of extraordinary support from both

RESPONSIBLE CORPORATE PRACTICES

The Board confinues to uphold the highest standards
of corporate governance as well as insfitute
comprehensive risk management and internal control
measures throughout the Group. These are part of
our efforts to achieve long-term sustainability and
organisational effectiveness as well as to inculcate
a high- performance culture within our organisation.
In line with this, we continue to subscribe to the
principles, guidelines and recommendations set out
in the Second Edition of the Corporate Governance
Guide issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and
the Malaysian Code of Corporate Governance 2012.
The details of our corporate governance measures
and risk management practices are spelt out in the
relevant sections of this Annual Report pages 60 to 82.

To align with Bursa Malaysia's diversity policy, the
Board places high value on gender diversity and
we are pleased fo highlight that the Board today
comprises eight (8) male Directors and three (3) female

LOOKING AHEAD

The global economy is expected to improve but
remain on a moderate growth path with indications
of more sustained growth in major economies in
2017. The Malaysian economy is forecast to grow at
a pace of 4.4% driven primarily by modest domestic
demand and supported by strong fundamentals
of the economy as well as an accommodative
monetary policy. Investment activity will continue
to be anchored by the on-going implementation of
infrastructure projects and capital spending in the
manufacturing and services sectors.

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (380802-1)

the Federal and State Governments. Given that
Bintulu Port operates as a natural deep-sea port
functioning as a key import and export gateway as
well as the nation’s only LNG export terminal, the
Group continues to enjoy a stable stream of income
from port operations.

We look forward to expanding our asset base
as the Group extends its capacity to take on the
development of Samalaju Industrial Port to meet
SCORE’s agenda of developing and fransforming
Sarawak info a developed state by 2020. The port
will function as a logistical hub for the import of raw
materials and the export of finished products from
heavy and energy-intensive industries at SIP.

Directors. This is in tandem with the Government’s
recommendation that female directors make up
at least 30% of the representation on the boards of
companies.

Our aim is to help meet the growing needs of the
Bintulu Port community andsocietyingeneral,inways
that are economically, environmentally and socially
responsible. The Group believes in working together
with all stakeholders in productive partnerships and
takes pride in being a responsible operator and
a good corporate citizen in all the communities it
operates in. Our Sustainability Statement highlights
the progress we are making as we embark on a
formal sustainability journey committed to creating
long-term value for our stakeholders and to securing
the future of the Group by prioritising responsible
management and sustainable development on the
Economic, Environmental and Social (EES) fronts.

The Group has outlined its strategic initiatives in order
to achieve its business objectives and forecasted
earnings for the next five (5) years. It will continue to
tap potential opportunities in key growth markets or
sectors such as the provision of base support services
fo the oil and gas industry and capitalise on fimely
opportunities in the palm oil industry, containers, dry
bulk and cargo generated from SIP. This includes
confinuous improvement in service delivery and
expansion or development of certain identified
infrastructure subject to viability. The Group will also
embark and venture into new synergistic business to
increase its revenue stream.

Annual Report 2016
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Despite the currenteconomicslowdownin Asia, growth
in LNG and non-LNG cargo throughput is expected
tfo remain positive through 2017. Additionally, heavy
industries operating at SIP are expected to contribute
to the additional cargo volume.

The Bintulu Port Privatisation Agreement (PA) is
coterminous with Bintulu Port's operating licence,
which is due to expire on 31 December 2022. The PA
gives Bintulu Port Sdn Bhd (BPSB) the option to extend
the tenure of the port's operations for 30 years. The
risk of non-renewal of the port's operating licence
is minimal, given that the Federal Government has
already extended its approval in principle for the
renewal.

Following a review of cargo throughput, port

operational requirements and productivity, the Group
has rescheduled the following projects, namely the

APPRECIATION

Chairman’s Statement

400 m cargo wharf and the 300 m bulk fertilizer wharf
at the Second Inner Harbour and the conversion
of the 300 m general cargo wharf for container
operations. CAPEX amounting to RM527.0 million
has been set aside for the development of these
projects over the next five (5) years.

In view of the above, the Board of Directors remains
confident that the Group will be able to sustain
its financial performance for year 2017 from the
operations perspective. As we move forward, we
will strive to build a sustainable and responsible
business with clear direction for growth through a
unified approach as well as having a clear idea of
who we are and identifying what we are capable
of achieving. We will also manage and allocate
our capital and human resources towards building
value in our existing businesses.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to take this opportunity to thank our customers, business
partners, service providers, stakeholders and the State and Federal Government authorities, for their continued
support over the year. My appreciation also goes out to our management and staff for their dedication and
hard work in delivering a commendable performance. | also wish to thank the Board of Directors for their
direction and guidance in 2016 and | look forward to another fruitful and successful year in 2017.

At this point, | would like to, on behalf of the Board, extend our heartfelt thanks to our outgoing Group Chief
Executive Officer (GCEQO), Dato Mior Ahmad Baiti bin Mior Lub Ahmad, for his innumerable conftributions
having served with the Group for more than three decades. He has done much to build up the Group and
stfrengthen the management team. We wish him the very best in his future endeavours.

Please also join me in extending a warm welcome to our new GCEO, Dato Mohammad Medan bin Abdullah,
who came on board effective 1 March 2017. He brings to the Group extensive leadership experience having
served in several multinational corporations at the Board and Senior Management levels. We certainly look
forward to his contributions as he leads the feam forward onto new heights of success.

| call upon all stakeholders to lend us your support as we embark on our journey to sustainable growth.

TAN SRI DR. ALI BIN HAMSA
Chairman
Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0s802-1) Annual Report 2016
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22 GCEO’S MESSAGE AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

The year 2016 saw Bintulu Port Holdings
Berhad (the Group) strengthening its position
as a world-class LNG port and one of the
most modern and efficient multi-purpose
ports in the region. We leveraged: on
good business fundamentals, a meticulous
management approach and robust
operational efficiencies to deliver solid
operational and financial performance.
Our efforts were all more noteworthy given
that this was achieved amidst a highly
challenging operating environment. While
macroeconomic developments on the
global and domestic fronts to some extent
impacted our businesses in one way or
another, our key subsidiaries Bintulu Port
Sdn Bhd (BPSB), Biport Bulkers Sdn Bhd
(BBSB) and Samalaju Industrial Port Sdn
Bhd (SIPSB), all made good strides forward
in their respective segments.

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0s02-1) Annual Report 2016
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For the year under review, BPSB registered a steady
growth in cargo throughput while securing a number
of important contracts in a new area of opportunity.
Construction works also progressed smoothly on the
Samalaju Industrial Port over the course of 2016 with
the port moving closer towards the commencement
of operations by the first half of 2017. Meanwhile,
BBSB registered a record throughput in 2016, its best
performance to date.

Even as we have steadfastly grown from strength to
strength over the years, our success comes on the

STEADY OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Despite a challenging market environment, all major
cargo categories at Bintulu Port recorded increases in
2016 over the preceding year's figures. The year saw
the overall cargo throughput handled by the Group
increase by 3.7% from 44.81 million tonnes in 2015 fo
46.45 million fonnes in 2016.

The volume of liquefied natural gas (LNG) cargo
handled also increased marginally by 0.6% to 25.24
million tonnes in 2016 as compared to 25.09 million
tonnes handled in 2015. This was mainly attributable
to an increase in LNG exports to South Korea (from
3.2 milion tonnes to 3.7 million tonnes) and Taiwan
(2.3 million tfonnes to 2.5 million tonnes) to support their
utilities industries. Going forward, the handling of LNG
vessel calls and cargoes is still expected to be the
largest revenue conftributor for the Group, backed by
palm oil, container, bulk fertiliser and alumina cargoes.

Non-LNG cargo handled registered an increase of
7.56% from 19.72 million tonnes in 2015 fo 21.21 million
tonnes in 2016. This mainly contributed by the increase
of 1.7% and 12.2% increase in other liquid bulk and
dry bulk cargoes respectively. Other liquid bulk cargo
increased from 9.26 million tonnes in 2015 to 9.42 million
tonnes in 2016, while dry bulk cargo increased from
4.10 million tonnes in 2015 to 4.61 million fonnes in 2016.

The positive growth for other liquid bulk cargo was
mainly attributable to palm oil exports to China and
India in support of their local food and beverages and
biodiesel industries; crude oil movements to refineries in
Peninsular Malaysia; and gas-to-liquids exports mainly
to Singapore for their wax, candles and food coating
activities.

The increment in dry bulk cargo was primarily a
result of the importation of raw materials such as
alumina, silica quartz, manganese ore, semi coke
and iron ore by Samalaju Industrial Park players. In
addition, fertilizer imports also increased from 0.63
million tonnes to 0.65 million fonnes with the maturing

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (380802-1)

back of the many productive partnerships we have
with the diverse stakeholders within the Bintulu Port
community. We take pride in being a responsible
operator and a good corporafe citizen and are
commifted to meeting the needs of the Bintfulu
Port community in ways that are economically,
environmentally and socially responsible. Going
forward, the Group is strongly poised to build upon
the good momentum we have achieved to date
and to be a key player in Sarawak’'s economic
success story.

of more palm oil estates. The export of woodchip
for the pulp and paper indusiry also recorded an
increase of 33% to 0.16 million tonnes.

Meanwhile break bulk cargo rose from 1.35 million
tonnesin 2015 to 1.74 million tonnes in the year under
review. Break bulk experienced a slight increase
in the export of wood-based products to Asian
countries such as Japan, South Korea and Philippines
to support their housing and construction activities.

The year saw a 14% increase in the number of
containers handled, from 243,699 TEUs in 2015 to
277,711 TEUs in 2016. The total increment in container
activities was the result from export (15%)., import (21%)
and franshipment (3%). The fotal increase at Bintulu
International Container Terminal (BICT) came on the
back of the export of laden containers (carrying
Samalaju cargoes, timber and Shell MDS products)
and the import of laden containers (carrying fertilizer,
rice, project cargoes, and consumable products).

There was a 2.0% rise in the number of vessel calls
to Bintulu Port from 7,350 vessels in 2015 to 7,497
vessels in 2016. The increase was due to additional
number of calls at SIPSB and the oil and gas
passenger/supply boats at Binfulu Port.

The vyear under review also saw us actively
exploring new areas of opportunity to increase our
revenue stream whilst maintaining prudent cost
management. | am pleased to say that the Group
was successful in securing contracts for the provision
of base support services to oil and gas related
companies such as PCSB, PFLNG and Murphy Oil
Sarawak. These contracts are of significance as
they serve as stepping stones to further develop
and expand this business segment as well as add a
new long-term revenue stream for the Group. We
also endeavoured to provide more efficient marine
services to PETRONAS MLNG, our anchor customer.

Annual Report 2016
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COMMENDABLE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

As the Group implemented the measures to drive
stfrong operatfional performance amidst  2016’s
challenging operating environment, this was reflected
in our steadfast financial performance for the year
under review.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group generated total operating revenue of RM583.62
milion, 6.62% or RM36.26 milion increase over 2015's
operafing revenue of RM547.36 milion. The higher
revenue was primarily attributable fo handling of cargoes
and vessel calls for NG, palm ail, ferro-alloy cargoes,
alumina, container and general cargoes.

We tumed in a profit before taxation (PBT) of RM200.98
milion, acommendable 19.29% or RM32.5 million hike over
2015's PBT of RM168.48 million. The higher PBT was mainly
due to the result of higher operating revenue generated
from the port's services. Return from investment of fund in
2016 is RM27.76 million which is higher by RM15.24 milion
compared to RM12.52 million in 2015.

PERFORMANCE OF BUSINESS UNITS

Geographically situated midway between Kuching,
Sarawak and Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, along the busy
sea lanes of Infra Asia Trade with a deep sea harbour,
Binfulu Port is an important import and export gateway
for Sarawak region. As the operator of a world class
LNG Port, the Group is committed o providing quality

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (380802-1)
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The Group registered profit after taxation (PAT) of
RM149.84 million, some 17.46% or RM22.27 million
higher than the PAT of RM127.57 million registered in
2015.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's shareholders’
fund stood at RMI1,157.68 million as against
RM1,117.24 million in 2015.

After reviewing cargo throughput, port operational
requirements and productivity, the Group has
decided to reschedule several planned capital
expenditure (CAPEX) projects for the next five (5)
years. These include the planned consfruction
of a 400 m general cargo wharf and 300 m bulk
fertilizer wharf at the Second Inner Harbour, as well
as the conversion of 300 m general cargo wharf for
container operations. The estimated CAPEX for these
projects is RM527.0 million which will be utilised in the
next five (5) years.

port services that meet customers’ expectations and
fo ensure a competitive return on investment for the
benefit of our shareholders and other stakeholders.
Today, the port’s operations are carried out by our
three (3) main subsidiaries each playing theirrespective
roles in ensuring the smooth running of the port.

Annual Report 2016
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Bintulu Port Sdn Bhd (BPSB)

BPSB is responsible for the provision of a host of port-
related services at Bintulu Port, East Malaysia's largest
contfainer port and the nation’s sole LNG export
gateway. This deep sea port, which is also the third
largest port in Malaysia, has built a reputation for being
one of the most efficient mulfi-purpose ports in the
region. It boasts modern infrastructure and has one of
the deepest drafts compared to any other berthing
facility within Borneo. Located within the Bintulu waters,
the port is strategically located to meet oil and gas
industry demands.

To date, the port handles a growing volume of
general cargoes, containerised cargoes, palm oil
products, liquid and dry bulk cargoes. Its all-year-round
service offering includes pilotage, towage, mooring,
stevedoring and handling as well as fresh water
supply, bunkering, security, diving, repair and on-dock
maintenance services.

The year saw Bintulu Port facing several external
challenges. Low export demand for timber products
as a result of volatfile supply-demand dynamics and

Biport Bulkers Sdn Bhd (BBSB)

BBSB is involved in the provision of bulking installation
facilities and services for palm oil products. Its facility
today is the leading palm oil bulking installation tferminal
with the biggest storage capacity in Sarawak. It is also
the main export point for edible oil products in Sarawak,
handling more than 90% of Sarawak’s crude palm oll
(CPQO) storage. Located within the Bintulu Port areaq,
BBSB's facility boasts water frontage with excellent
berthing facilities and sufficient draft for large vessels in
comparison to the conditions of riverine ports. There is
also room for expansion with ample land and facilities
to accommodate curent and future growth of CPO
production and shipment in the State.

Biport Bulkers also enjoyed a record throughput in 2016
despite the prolonged dry weather conditions and below
average rainfall in the first half of 2016 which impacted
the Malaysia oil palm industry. These conditions led to
final production of crude palm oilin Malaysia amounting
to only 17.32 million tonnes compared fo the projected
figure of 19.96 million tfonnes.

BBSB's major customers are Wilmar which is a leading

global palm oil concern, and also Sarawak’s main
palm oil companies, namely Sime Darby, Sarawak Oil

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (380802-1)
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regulatory limitations; increasingly high lease rental
payments for the operation of the port; and the high
cost of operation due to the weakened ringgit — all
impinged on the port’s operations.

While the handling of LNG vessels and cargo remained
the key revenue contributor to this business in 2016,
BPSB also expanded its offering by commencing
base support services to oil and gas companies such
as PCSB, PFLNG & Murphy Oil Sarawak. This involved
the provision of storage areas (warehouse and open
space), material handling equipment, cargo handling
equipment, passenger handling, pilotage, supply of
container carrying units and other services.

While the port’srevenue contributions are still expected
fo come from handling activities for LNG vessels and
cargoes, moving forward, BPSB will contfinue to focus
on other key growth sectors and enhance its efficiency
in the handling of specific cargoes that will serve as
potfential income generators particularly palm oil,
container, fertilizer, woodchips, palm kernel product
sand biomass.

Palms and Kirana. They operate and use the facilities
for the export of their crude and refined products.
In 2016, 95% of palm oil products were handled via
Biport Bulkers.

Despite 2016's drop in CPO production, BBSB's final
throughput for the year was 3.65 million fonnes, the
highest achievementsinceitcommenced operations
in 2004 and marginally better than 2015’s results.
BBSB also underwent International Sustainability and
Carbon Certification (ISCC) in 2016.

Inline with the Malaysian Palm QilBoard’s projection
for 2017, we foresee a better year ahead for CPO
production as world demand for palm oil products
increases with the rising population. However,
we remain mindful of supply limitations that may
arise as a result of weather phenomenon. We also
believe there ismuchroom for growth for Sarawak’s
CPO production based on the state’s target of 2.0
million hectares for oil palm plantation. As of 2016,
the total acreage for oil palm cultivation stood at
1.5 million hectares which will augur well for BBSB in
the near future.

Annual Report 2016
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Samalaju Industrial Port Sdn Bhd (SIPSB)

SIPSB undertakes the provision of port services for
industries in the Samalaju Industrial Park (SIP) and
the port hinterland. The Samalaju Industrial Port is
a purpose-built port which provides dry bulk cargo
services for heavy industries located within the SIP.
A fotal of RM1.9 billion has been earmarked for the
development of the port's inferim and first phases
which cover an area of 156 hectares out of the 393
hectares allocated for the entire port project. The port
has been partially operational since April 2014 following
the completion of its interim phase.

Given the port's proximity to the industries within the
SIP and its strategic location between Miri and Binfulu,
it makes material handling activities a straightforward
process. Moreover, with its host of high-tech facilities,
including a conveyer belf system, it enables fast vessel
turnaround time and enhances the overall productivity
of port operations.

Samalaju Industrial Port has been identified by the
state authorities as one of the key factors that will
drive the development of the Sarawak Corridor of
Renewable Energy or SCORE (the hub for high energy
intensive industries) and facilitate regional economic
growth. Currently in its interim phase of operations, the
port has the capacity to handle cargo ships carrying
loads weighing 8,000 DWT (deadweight tonnage)
which will increase to 50,000 DWT once all phases of
development are completed. It offers marine services

BUSINESS RISK

such as pilotage, fowage, mooring, stevedore,

handling and storage.

For year 2016, the total port’s cargo performance
increased to 450,019 tonnes with imports and exports
contributing 403,944 tonnes and 49,074 tonnes
respectively compared to 2015's total of 71,183 tonnes.
The port also managed to successfully attract anumber
of major SIP investors to use its facilities through special
incentives for its tariff charges.

Prospects for Samalaju Industrial Port are closely
dependant on the growth of the SIP as an integrated
entity. Cargo is projected to steadily increase from
450,019 tonnes in 2016 to 11,234,858 tonnes in 2019
when all the industries achieve maximum throughput.
The port will continue to improve operational efficiency
in order to maintain its competitive edge. To cater
fo the needs of new industries in SIP, it will also look
info developing port facilities based on customers’
requirements.

The port is expected to formally commmence Phase 1 of
operations in June 2017 where it is targeting to handle
2,136,870 tonnes of bulk cargo with a total of 145 vessel
calls. The Group’'s longer-term prospect hinges on
Samalaju Industrial Port as it will potentially stimulate
economic activities in Sarawak on the back of SCORE
growth.

The Group continues to grow steadfastly and demonstrate its resiliency amidst a highly challenging operating
environment. As we venture forth, we are aware of certain risks that the Group is exposed to, particularly as a
result of global uncertainties that could impact our operational and financial performance. As such we have put
in place a risk management framework and instituted several initiatives to mitigate these risk factors. We outline
our key strategic and financial risks below as well as the respective risk mitigation strategies.

reliance on key
customers especially in the and

MITIGATION STRATEGIES

¢ Development of multi-purpose terminals
sforage areas to optimise the

newly developed area at
Samalaju Industrial Park can
affect the operating and
financial performance of the

KEY AREAS RISK IMPACT
Strategic Market Risk Heavy
Company
Financial Application to increase The applicationtoimplement

the new non-LNG tariffs has
an impact on BPSB's non-
LNG financial performance
as few service lines and
cargo type are operating
below cost

non-LNG fariffs not
approved in a timely
manner

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (380802-1)

utilisation of the port facilities
Implementation of marketing strategies
to enhance the scope of port services to
non-SIP investors

Setting up of a Distribution Cenfre by a
third party logistic operator at Samalaju
Industrial Park

Joint consultation between the port
authority and port operator to finalise and
pursue the tariff implementation

To seek Government intervention fo
support the implementation of the revised
non-LNG fariff

Annual Report 2016
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OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

According fo the Infernational Monetary Fund,
global growth is expected to touch 3.4% and 3.6%
in 2017 and 2018 respectively in comparison to
3.15% growth in 2016. The advanced economies are
projected to register modest gains, while activities
in emerging market and developing economies will
confinue to drive global growth. However, global
risks overall remain sizeable and difficult to forecast.
Reservations about US policy under the new
President, the risks from chaofic Brexit negofiafions,
as well as the uncertainty over several upcoming
leadership elections in the Eurozone, all lend to the
air of ambiguity. Together with China’s structural
slowdown and Japan’s struggle with deflation — the
global outlook is indeed muted. Nevertheless, there
is still some optimism that things can turn around for
the better should policies that promote sustainable
and inclusive growth as well as cooperation and
coordinafion be brought info play.

Moving forward, the Malaysian economy s
forecasted to grow moderately between 4.4% and
4.8%in 2017 and 2018 respectively (with 2016 at 4.2%)

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (380802-1)

on the back of gradual economic recovery as well
as resilient domestic demand. Domestic demand in
turnis expected to be supported by accommodative
monetary policy and sustained infrastructure
spending from the vast array of government-driven
mega infrastructure projects. The good momentum
gained here is expected to be further fuelled by
several catalysts under the 11th Malaysian Plan
(2016-2020). All these positive developments bode
well for the Group. As a key gateway to the nation’s
economic growth, we are in a position to focus on
specific identified cargoes, develop new businesses
and enhance our capabilities and capacities for
long-term sustainable growth.

Taking info consideration the macroeconomic
factors and our current position of strength, the
Group is confident of its prospects for the new
financial year. By adhering to prudent and proactive
financial management as well as by leveraging on
specific business strategies, we believe that we will
be able to capitalise on the many opportunities
made available to us and overcome all challenges.

Annual Report 2016
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STRATEGIES FOR SUCCESS

While the handling of LNG vessel and cargoes will
remain the mainstay of the Group's business for the
short-term, as part of our longer-term strategy, we will

Expand Port Capacities &
Capitalising on Key Growth
Market Sector & Profitability

Implement the
planned CAPEX
projects for the Group
efficiently & timely

Develop new land /
facilities at Samalaju
Port for high value /
high demand activities

Strengthen Customer
Base by providing
sufficient port / ferminal
capacities and facilities

Vacant Land Planning
& Usage

Focus on ensuring the
profitability of each sector
through:-

Development of viable
port charges for new
services & review of
relevant port tariff;
Constant practice of
cost discipline,
management &
maximise profit margin;
Efficient project
management;
Optimize the utilization
of resources; and
Focus on improving

productivity, efficiency &

service level through
process improvement &
innovation.

Venture Into
Operating Other
Ports / Terminals

Leverage on BPHB
expertise to operate
other ports, regionally &
globally

Expansion through
bidding for new
concessions or
acquiring existing port
operators

Provide & Develop

Integrated Logistics &

Maritime Services

Expand up or down
logistic value chain
(e.g. edible oils
transportation)

Provide specialised value
added services to
customers (e.g. supply
chain management)

Provide marine services
(e.g. tugboat operations)
to other ports as
independent operator

Become one-stop service
line provider for all
maritime-related services
(operate vessels, supply
pilots, etc.)

employ four (4) specific strategic thrusts to achieve our
business objectives and sustainable growth over the
next five (5) years.

Embark on New
Business to
Increase Revenue
Stream

Supplement &
diversify revenue
base through
ventures info new
business areas that
are potentially
synergistic

Capitalizing & focusing
targeted sectors such
as LNG, Palm oil /
Edible oil, Container,
Base Support Service,
Fertilizer & Biomass
Industry

Ensure new development /
ventures or project be
undertaken after
comprehensive feasible
evaluation and risk
assessment to attain
positive return

" People, Process, Systems and Governance
:measures to strengthen thg key enablers required to facilitate BPHB’s next phase of growth

. Direct & Indirect port operations . Non-port activities

The first strategic thrust will see us expanding port capacities and capitalising on key growth market sectors
and profitability

This will involve implementing planned CAPEX projects for the Group in a timely and efficient manner; developing
new land and facilities at Samalaju Industrial Port for high value or high demand activities; strengthening our
customer base by providing sufficient port and terminal capacities and facilities; as well as implementing better
vacant land planning and usage.

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (380802-1) Annual Report 2016
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In addition to this, we will also focus our efforts on specific sectors such as LNG, palm oil, edible oil, container, base
support service, fertilizer and the Biomass industry. We will also set our sights on ensuring the profitability of each
sector through the development of viable port charges for new services and the review of relevant port tariff.
We will also work to ensure effective cost discipline and management, the maximisation of profit margins and
efficient project management. We will also focus on ensuring optimal utilisation of resources as well as set out to
improve productivity, efficiency and service levels through business process reengineering and innovation. We will
only embark upon a new development, business venture or project affer conducting a comprehensive feasibility
evaluation and risk assessment to ascertain positive returns.

The second thrust calls for us to venture into operating other ports or terminals

We will do this by leveraging on the Group’s expertise in port operations regionally and globally. We will also drive
expansion through bidding for new concessions or acquiring existing port operators.

The third strategic thrust will involve developing and providing integrated logistics and maritime services

We willimplement this through expansion up or down the logistics value chain (e.g. edible oils transportation), by
providing specialised value added services to customers (e.g. supply chain management) and marine services
(e.g. fugboat operations) to other ports as an independent operator. This in essence will make us a one-stop
service line provider for all maritime-related services.

Last but not least, we will focus our efforts on exploring new business opportunities

To increase our revenue streams, we will supplement and diversify our revenue base through ventures info new business
areas that are potentially synergistic.

As we implement these long-term strategic thrusts, the Group will continue to capitalise on near-term key growth
markets or sectors such as the provision of base support services to the oil and gas industry. We will also leverage on
opportunities in the areas of palm oil, containers, dry bulk and cargo generated from the SIP. Our efforts will see us
undertaking continuous improvement in service delivery or even expansion and development of certain identified
infrastructure subject fo viability.

The Group is working on the possibility of developing a Distribution Park at Samalaju Port which will provide value added
services to SIP players and atftract cargo beyond the SIP particularly in the northern region of Sarawak. The Distribution
Park will offer services such as tfrucking, barging, stuffing/un-stuffing and warehousing.

Apart from that, we are also exploring the opportunity of providing bunkering services to commercial vessels at Bintulu
to diversify the Group's revenue streams and to cater for the increasing demand for bunkering service within Bintulu
Waters. Another effort to diversify the revenue siream in order to maximise profitability is the opportunity to embark on
Gassing Up and Cooling Down services for LNG vessels. The current LNG Terminal has the capability fo provide such
services to other non-PETRONAS LNG vessels. The Group and PETRONAS are now working hand in hand to realise these
value added services.

As the Group moves confidently but cautiously forward into another challenging yet opportunistic year, we remain
committed fo implementing prudent and proactive cost management strategies. We also intend to focus our efforts
on strengthening our financial position even further. We are confident that as we execute on our near and long-ferm
strategies, the Group wil continue to remain relevant to the market and play an integral role in the success of our
customers.
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A NOTE OF
APPRECIATION &
FAREWELL

sectors that we serve for their confinued support and
frust in us. A big thank you goes to the many industry
partners, service providers, Government agencies and
other authorities whom we work with for their unwavering
assistance and cooperation. Everyone, across all levels of
our organisation, has played a v'i;?:bon‘ in ensuring our
success. | applaud the team for their commitment and
dedication in ensuring we move forward as one despite
the challenges present in our operating environment. |
also thank the members of the Board for their wise counsel
and guidance through the challenges of the year.

b .“
MR

It is with a finge of sadness that | sign off on this, my
final annual review of the Group's performance as the
Croup's Chief Executive Officer. | have been at the
helm of the company since 2005 and seen it steadfastly
grow from strength to strength to become what it is
today. Along the way, | have seen the Bintulu Port family
strengthen and reach new heights of excelence. We
have accomplished much together and | am humbled
and elated to have been a part of it alll.

As|take my leave, | ask that all stakeholders kindly extend
your cooperation and - support to Dato Mohammad
Medan bin Abdullah, our new but very experienced CEO
who comes on board on 1 March 2017. | leave the team
in his good hands and trust that he.together with our
leadership team and dedicated staff will take the ﬁ}roup
fo new heights of success and a promising future..

Thank you and | bid you all adieu.

DATO MIOR AHMAD BAITI BIN MIOR LUB AHMAD

Group Chief Executive Officer .
Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad
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Corporate Structure

BIFORT BULKERS
SDN BHD
(1005%)
L)
BINTULY PORT # SAMAL ﬂjlég:'l};l:;“lﬁl PORT
SDN BEHD (100%%)
(100%)

Petroliom State Equisar Kumpulan Wang Pubslic
Masional Fnancial Assels Persoroan (22.63%)
Berhod Secrelary, Sdn Bhdd (Diperbadankan)
(28.52%) Sarowak (13.04%%) (7.14%)
{26.677)

Note:
RM1.00 Preference Share in Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad and Binfulu Port Sdn Bhd are held by

Minister of Finance (Incorporated).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Tan Sri Dr. Ali bin Hamsa % Chairman
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Dato’ Siti Zauyah binti Md Desa ¢ Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
(Appointed on 1 June 2016)

Tan Sri Datuk Amar Hj. Mohamad Morshidi " Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
bin Abdul Ghani

Gen. Dato’ Seri DiRaja Tan Sri (Dr.) Mohd Zahidi Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
bin Hj. Zainuddin (R)

Datuk Fong Joo Chung Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
Datuk Nasarudin bin Md Idris Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Encik Dzafri Sham bin Ahmad Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Dato' Sri Mohamad Norza bin Zakaria Independent Non-Executive Director

Dato’ Sri Mohamed Khalid bin Yusuf @ Yusup Independent Non-Executive Director

Dato’ Yasmin binti Mahmood Independent Non-Executive Director

Datuk Nozirah binti Bahari Independent Non-Executive Director
(Appointed on 1 February 2016)

Dato’ Seri Dr. Hj. Arshad bin Hashim Independent Non-Executive Director
(Resigned on 1 February 2016)
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Abu Bakar bin Husaini
(LSO009926)
Tel : +60 86 291257 Fax : +60 86 254062
Email: abubakar@bintuluport.com.my

-

AUDITORS
Messrs. Ernst & Young
Chartered Accountants
Level 23A, Menara Milenium, Jalan Damanlela
Pusat Bandar Damansara
50490 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Tel: +603 7495 8000 Fax: +603 2095 5332

REGISTRAR
Tricor Investor & Issuing House Services Sdn Bhd
Unit 32-01, Level 32, Tower A
Vertical Business Suite
Avenue 3, Bangsar South
59200 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Tel : +603 2264 3883 Fax : +603 2282 1886
Email : is.enquiry@my.tricorglobal.com
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PRINCIPAL BANKER
CIMB Bank Berhad

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
Main Market, Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
(Listed since 16 April 2001)

REGISTERED OFFICE
Lot 15, Block 20, Kemena Land District

12" Mile, Tanjung Kidurong Road
97000 Bintulu, Sarawak, Malaysia

Tel: +60 86 291001 (30 Lines)

Fax: +60 86 254062 / 253597

Email: customerservice@bintuluport.com.my
Welbsite: hitp://www.bintuluport.com.my

SUBSIDIARIES
Bintulu Port Sdn Bhd (254396-V)
Biport Bulkers Sdn Bhd (635147-V)
Samalaju Industrial Port Sdn Bhd (406345-H)
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Gen. Dato’ Seri DiRaja Tan Sri (Dr.) Mohd Zahidi bin Hj. Zainuddin (R)
Tan Sri Datuk Amar Hj. Mohamad Morshidi bin Abdul Ghani
Tan Sri Dr. Ali bin Hamsa

Dato’ Yasmin binti Mahmood
Datuk Nozirah binti Bahari
Dato' Sri Mohamad Norza bin Zakaria



Datuk Fong Joo Chung

Encik Dzafri Sham bin Ahmad

Dato’ Seri Dr. Hj. Arshad bin Hashim

Dato' Siti Zauyah binti Md Desa

Datuk Nasarudin bin Md Idris

Dato’ Sri Mohamed Khalid bin Yusuf @ Yusup
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TERMS OF OFFICE

* Appointed as Non-Independent Non-Executive Director on
28 July 2010 until 31 October 2013

* Appointed as Chairman and Non-Independent Non-Executive
Director with effect on 1 November 2013

QUALIFICATIONS

¢ Bachelor of Arts (Hons), University of Malaya, Malaysia

* Diploma in Public Management (National Institute of Public
Administration), Malaysia

¢ Masters in Economics, Oklahoma State University, United States
of America

¢ Ph.D in Environmental Sciences and Economics, Oklahoma
State University, United States of America

MEMBER OF ASSOCIATIONS
None

WORKING EXPERIENCE & OCCUPATION

Tan Sri Dr. Ali bin Hamsa was a tutor in University of Malaya prior
to starting his career in the Administrative and Diplomatic Service
(PTD) as an Assistant Director at the Ministry of Trade and Industry
on 5 January 1981.1n 1986, he was appointed as the Senior Project
Manager, Economy and Public Policy Management Centre
(PUTERA) at the National Institute of Public Administration (INTAN),
where he co-authored two books, namely “Dasar-Dasar Utama
Kerajaan” (1997) and “Malaysia Kita” (1998). He had a short stint
at the Ministry of Transport in 1992.

Upon obtaining his Ph.D in 1997, he began serving af the
Economic Planning Unit (EPU), Prime Minister's Department.
He held the positions of Director of Disbursement Division and
Deputy Director-General of the National Transformation and
Advancement Programme. On 22 April 2009, Tan Sri Dr. Ali bin
Hamsa was appointed as the first Director-General of the Public
Private Partnership Unit (UKAS), Prime Minister's Department. He
was appointed as the 13t Chief Secretary to the Government of
Malaysia on 24 June 2012.

DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER PUBLIC COMPANIES
None

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS ATTENDED IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR
11 out of 11 Board Meetings and 1 Annual General Meeting

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0802-1)

TAN SRI DR. ALI BIN HAMSA
Malaysian, Age 61

Chairman
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Annual Report 2016
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TERMS OF OFFICE
Appointed as Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
on 1 June 2016

QUALIFICATIONS

* Bachelor of Science (Hons) in Quantity Surveying,
University of Reading, United Kingdom

¢ Diploma in Public Administration, INTAN

* Master of Business Administration in International Banking,
Manchester University, United Kingdom

MEMBER OF ASSOCIATIONS
None

WORKING EXPERIENCE & OCCUPATION

She started her career as a Quantity Surveyor with the Public
Works Department in 1982 after graduating from the University
of Reading, United Kingdomwith Bachelor of Science (Honours)
in Quantity Surveying and later moved on to hold several other
positions with a higher learning institution and several private
sectors before pursuing her Diploma in Public Administration
from the National Institute of Public Administration (INTAN).
Upon graduation, she joined the Ministry of Finance Malaysia
(MOF) and served in the Confract Management Division as
Assistant Secretary from 1989 to 1993 before pursuing her
Master in Business Administration (International Banking) at
University of Manchester, United Kingdom.

DATO'’ SITI ZAUYAH BINTI MD DESA She continued to serve as Assistant Secretary with the Tax

Malaysian, 57 Division and Finance Division at MOF before being promoted

| as Principal Assistant Secretary in 2001. In 2003, she was

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director | secondedtothe Asian Development Bank, Manila as Directors

| . Advisor until August 2006. Upon her return, she continued her

Member of Finance & Investment Committee service with MOF and was appointed as the Deputy Secretary

(Economy), Investment, MOF (Inc.) & Privatisation Division
in April 2008. She was promoted as Under Secretary, Loan
Management Division in November 2012 and later assumed the
position of Under Secretary, Government Investment Company
Division on 13 January 2014. On 12 December 2014, she was
promoted as the Director of National Budget Office and on 2
February 2016, was further promoted to her current position as
Deputy Secretary General (Policy), Ministry of Finance.

DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER PUBLIC COMPANIES
Felda Global Ventures Holdings Berhad

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS ATTENDED IN THE FINANCIAL
YEAR
5 out of 5 Board Meetings

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0802-1) Annual Report 2016
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TERMS OF OFFICE
Appointed as Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
on 22 December 2014

QUALIFICATIONS

e Bachelor in Economics (Statistics), Universiti Kebangsaan
Malaysia, Malaysia

¢ Master of Science in Human Resource Administration, University
of Scranton, Pennsylvania, United States of America

e Senior Executive Fellows Programme, Harvard University,
United States of America

MEMBER OF ASSOCIATIONS
None

WORKING EXPERIENCE & OCCUPATION

Tan Sri Datuk Amar Hj. Mohamad Morshidi started his professional
career as a Management Execufive with PETRONAS in 1980.
For 10 years from year 1988 to 1998, he was appointed as the
Director of Kuching North City Hall. He then went on to hold senior
positions in the Chief Minister's Department that included Director,
Human Resource Management and Director, Human Resource
Development and Quality from 1998 to 2001.

He was later appointed as Permanent Secretary in the Ministry of
Social Development and Urbanisation in 2001. He was Director in
the State Planning Unit in the Chief Minister's Department before
assuming the position of Deputy State Secretary of Sarawak in
2006. On 2 August 2009, he was appointed as State Secretary of
Sarawak until present.

DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER PUBLIC COMPANIES
None

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS ATTENDED IN THE FINANCIAL

YEAR
8 out of 11 Board Meetings and 1 Annual General Meeting

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0802-1)

s

:i;ﬁllu\ I

TAN SRI DATUK AMAR HJ. MOHAMAD

MORSHIDI BIN ABDUL GHANI
Malaysian, Age 61

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Annual Report 2016
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TERMS OF OFFICE
Appointed as Non-Independent Non-Executive Director on
16 March 2006

QUALIFICATIONS

* Masters of Science Degree in Defence and Strategic Studies,
Quaid-l-Azam University, Islamabad, Pakistan

* Senior Executive Programme, Harvard University, United States
of America

MEMBER OF ASSOCIATIONS
Fellow of Malaysia Institute of Management (MIM)

WORKING EXPERIENCE & OCCUPATION
General Dato’ Seri DiRaja Tan Sri (Dr.) Mohd Zahidi bin Hj. Zainuddin
(Retired) has had a distinguished career in the Malaysian Armed
Forces for almost forty (40) years holding many key appointments
at field and ministerial level. He first joined the Malaysian Armed
Forces as an Officer Cadet at the Royal Military College, Sungai
Besi in 1966 and was commissioned as a Second Lieutenant in
the Royal Malay Regiment in May 1968. He became the Chief of
Defence Forces with the rank of General from 1 January 1999 fill
his retirement on 30 April 2005. His most notable appointments in
the Armed Forces held were Aide de Camp (ADC) to His Majesty
Yang Di-Pertuan Agong Sultan Azlan Shah, Commander Infantry
Brigade, Assistant Chief of Staff Human Resources, Commander
of Army Training and Doctrine Command, Deputy Chief of Army
GENERAL DATO’ SERI DIRAJA and Chief of Army. In international duties, he served as a Military
TAN SRI (DR.) MOHD ZAHIDI Observer under the United Nations International Monitoring Group
in Irag after the Iran-lrag War Ceasefire in 1988 / 1989. Since his
BIN HJ. ZAINUDDIN (RETIRED) retrement from the Armed Forces, General Tan Sri Mohd Zahidi
serves as the Chairman of Affin Holdings Berhad from 17 October
2005 until present.

Malaysian, Age 68

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

He is made a member of Dewan Negara Perak, elected by DYMM
Paduka Seri Sultan Perak on 25 November 2006 and also a trustee
of Yayasan Sultan Azlan Shah. On 23 April 2013, he was appointed
as Orang Kaya Bendahara Seri Maharaja Perak by DYMM Paduka
Seri Sultan Perak and consented by Dewan Negara Perak. On
4 April 2014, he was awarded “Kurniaan Darjah Kebesaran Seri
Paduka Sultan Azlan Shah Perak Yang Amat DiMulia” (S.P.S.A)
which carries the fitle "Dato’ Seri DiRaja”.

Member of Finance & Investment Committee

DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER PUBLIC COMPANIES
* Affin Holdings Berhad

¢ Cahya Mata Sarawak Berhad

* Genfing Malaysia Berhad

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS ATTENDED IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR
11 out of 11 Board Meetings and 1 Annual General Meeting

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0s02-1) Annual Report 2016
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TERMS OF OFFICE
Appointed as Non-Independent Non-Executive Director on
16 September 2004

QUALIFICATIONS
¢ Bachelor of Law (Hons), University of Bristol, United Kingdom
e Barrister-at-Law, Lincoln’s Inn, London, United Kingdom

MEMBER OF ASSOCIATIONS
None

WORKING EXPERIENCE & OCCUPATION

Datuk Fong Joo Chung began his professional career as an
advocate in private legal practice from December 1971 to July 1992,
prior to being appointed as the State Attorney-General, Sarawak in
August 1992. His service as the State Attorney-General ended on 31
December 2007. However, he has been retained by the Sarawak
Government in the capacity as the State Legal Counsel until present.

DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER PUBLIC COMPANIES
Sarawak Cable Berhad

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS ATTENDED IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR
11 out of 11 Board Meetings and 1 Annual General Meeting

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0802-1)

DATUK FONG JOO CHUNG
Malaysian, Age 67

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Member of Nomination &
Remuneration Committee

Annual Report 2016
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TERMS OF OFFICE
Appointed as Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
on 26 August 2010

QUALIFICATIONS

¢ Bachelor of Arts (Hons), University of Malaya, Malaysia

¢ Master of Business Administration, Henley - The Management
College (Brunel University), United Kingdom

e Stanford Executive Programme, Stanford University, United
States of America

e Postgraduate Diploma in Petroleum Economics, College of
Petroleum Studies, United Kingdom

MEMBER OF ASSOCIATIONS
None

WORKING EXPERIENCE & OCCUPATION

Datuk Nasarudin joined Petroliam Nasional Berhad (PETRONAS)
in 1978 and has held various positions within the PETRONAS
Group including as the Vice President, Corporate Planning and
Development, Group Chief Executive Officer, KLCC Holdings
Berhad, Senior General Manager, Corporate Planning and
Development Division, Executive Assistant to the President,
General Manager, Marketing of PETRONAS Dagangan Berhad,
General Manager, Corporate Development and General
Manager, Group Strategic Planning. He was appointed as the
President and Chief Executive Officer of MISC Berhad, a subsidiary

DATUK NASARUDIN BIN MD IDRIS of PETRONAS on 15 June 2010 and retired from the posiﬁon on 31
. December 2014.
Malaysian, Age 61 -

A , DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER PUBLIC COMPANIES
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director = | « MISC Berhad

Chairman of Finance & * Malaysian Marine and Heavy Engineering Holdings Berhad

Investment Committee
NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS ATTENDED IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR
10 out of 11 Board Meetings and 1 Annual General Meeting

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0s02-1) Annual Report 2016
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TERMS OF OFFICE
Appointed as Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
on 1 September 2015

QUALIFICATIONS
Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engineering, University of
Miami, Florida, United States of America

MEMBER OF ASSOCIATIONS
None

WORKING EXPERIENCE & OCCUPATION

Encik Dzafri Sham has more than 25 years of combined work
experience in project implementation and plant operations within
PETRONAS as well as in a Joint Venture Company primarily in LNG
and Gas business. He started his career as Gas Utilization Engineer
in PETRONAS Gas Berhad before joining MLNG Dua and MLNG
Tiga projects in Bintulu as Mechanical Engineer, Senior Project
Engineer and Engineering Manager until the successful operation
of MLNG Tiga in 2003. He was later seconded to the ELNG Project
as part of the integrated Project Management Team where he
took up the responsibility of Construction Manager that oversaw
the successful completion of the 2-train LNG plant project in Idku,
Egypt. He continued his stint in ELNG during operationalization
of the facility, serving as Asset Integrity Advisor to establish
department functions and systems (covering Maintenance,
Technical Services and Inspection) for ELNG until 2008.

Encik DzafriSham has held various senior positions in the PETRONAS
Group including General Manager, Gas Processing Plant A of
PETRONAS Gas Bhd, Kerteh from 2008 until 2010, Head of Plant
Division, Malaysia LNG Group of Companies, Bintulu from 2012 to
2014 and the Vice President & Chief Executive Officer of Malaysia
LNG Group of Companies from 2015 until March 2016 before
being appointed as VP of LNG Assets, Upstream from April until
October 2016.

Encik Dzafri Sham is currently the Vice President of Group Health,
Safety, Security and Environment of PETRONAS. At present, he
is also serving as Director in a number of PETRONAS Group of
Companies including PETRONAS Floating LNG 1 (L) Ltd., PETRONAS
Floating LNG 2 (L) Ltd. and PETRONAS LNG 9 Sdn Bhd.

DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER PUBLIC COMPANIES
None

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS ATTENDED IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR
10 out of 11 Board Meetings and 1 Annual General Meeting

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0802-1)

ENCIK DZAFRI SHAM BIN AHMAD
Malaysian, Age 52

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
Member of Audit Committee

Annual Report 2016
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TERMS OF OFFICE

¢ Appointed as Non-Independent Non-Executive Director on
1 December 2005

¢ Redesignation as Independent Non-Executive Director on
28 July 2010

QUALIFICATIONS
Bachelor of Commerce (Major in Accounting), University of
Wollongong, New South Wales, Australia

MEMBER OF ASSOCIATIONS

e Chartered Accountant of Malaysian Institute of Accountants
(MIA)

¢ Fellow of CPA Australia (FCPA) of CPA Australia Ltd

WORKING EXPERIENCE & OCCUPATION

Dato’ Sri Mohamad Norza began his career as a Senior Audit
Assistant in Messrs. Arthur Andersen & Co. / Hanafiah, Raslan &
Mohamad in 1988 before joining Bank Negara Malaysia as the
Executive of Bank Regulation Departmentin 1990. Later he joined
PETRONAS as the Senior Executive, Finance and Administration
Department in Gas and Petrochemical Development Division
until April 1994. He moved up the corporate ladder as the Group
Financial Controller at SPK Sentosa Corporation Berhad before
he became the Group General Manager of Audit in Mun Loong
Berhad in 1995 until 1997. Dato’ Sri Mohamad Norza was the
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of Gabungan Strategik Sdn Bhd
DATO’ SRI MOHAMAD NORZA from 1998 until 2004. His notable contribution in the Government

sector was the Political Secretary to the Minister of Finance Il from

BIN_ ZAKARIA 2004 until 2008. Dato’ Sri Mohamad Norza was appointed as the
Malaysian, Age 50 Chairman of the Institut Sukan Negara since 1 October 2013 until
present. He is currently the President and CEO of Citaglobal Sdn
Independent Non-Executive Director Bhd, a post he has held since April 2008.

B O /Uit Committee DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER PUBLIC COMPANIES

¢ TH Plantations Berhad
¢ Tropicana Corporation Berhad

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS ATTENDED IN THE FINANCIAL
YEAR
10 out of 11 Board Meetings and 1 Annual General Meeting

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0s02-1) Annual Report 2016
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TERMS OF OFFICE
Appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director on
1 January 2015

QUALIFICATIONS

¢ Bachelor of Arts (Hons), University of Malaya, Malaysia

¢ Master of Science (Human Resources), University of Scranton,
United States of America

MEMBER OF ASSOCIATIONS
None

WORKING EXPERIENCE & OCCUPATION

Dato’ Sri Mohamed Khalid joined the Malaysian Civil Service in
1977 as Superintendent of Customs and retired as the Director
General of Customs Malaysia in June 2012. During his tenure of
office, he served in various capacities including as State Director
of Customs Sarawak, Director of Customs Selangor, and at
headquarters level as Deputy Director General of Operations
and Deputy Director General of Enforcement and Compliance.
He has extensive work experience at management level in the
fields of revenue laws enforcement, indirect tax administration,
audit and compliance management, risk management, public
finance and accounts, policy formulation, trade facilitation and
supply chain security.

At international level, he has served as a resource person and

panelist at various forum and seminars on customs related matters DATO’ SRI MOHAMED KHALID BIN

and chaired several committees and working groups on customs

at ASEAN level. YUSUF @ YUSUP
Malaysian, Age 64
DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER PUBLIC COMPANIES
None Independent Non-Executive Director

Chairman of Nomination &

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS ATTENDED IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR Remuneration Cortiire

11 out of 11 Board Meetings and 1 Annual General Meeting

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0s02-1) Annual Report 2016
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TERMS OF OFFICE
Appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director on
1 January 2015

QUALIFICATIONS
Bachelor of Science (Computer Science and Applied
Mathematics), University of New South Wales, Australia

MEMBER OF ASSOCIATIONS
None

WORKING EXPERIENCE & OCCUPATION
Dato’ Yasmin assumes the role of Chief Executive Officer, Multimedia
Development Corporation (MDeC) as of 15 September 2014.

Dato’ Yasmin has over 25 years of leadership experience in the
Information and Communication Technology (ICT) sector and has
served in various multinational companies such as Managing Director
of Microsoft Malaysia from 2006 until 2009, General Manager and
Regional Director for Dell Asia and Dell Asia-Pacific from 1996 to 2005
and General Manager for HP Sales Malaysia where she launched
her IT career. Her last position prior to joining MDec was Executive
Director of YTL Communications Sdn Bhd.

DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER PUBLIC COMPANIES

None
DATO’ YASMIN BINTI MAHMOOD NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS ATTENDED IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR
Malaysian, Age 54 8 out of 11 Board Meetings and 1 Annual General Meeting

Independent Non-Executive Director
Member of Audit Committee

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0s02-1) Annual Report 2016
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TERMS OF OFFICE
Appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director on 1 February 2016

QUALIFICATIONS

¢ Bachelor of Social Science (Hons) in Urban Studies, University of
Science Malaysia, Malaysia

e Diploma in Public Administration (Natfional Institute of Public
Administration), Malaysia

* Advanced Management Programme, Harvard Business School,
United States of America

MEMBER OF ASSOCIATIONS

¢ Administrative and Diplomatic of Service Association (PPTD)

e Wives of Civil Servants and Women Civil Servants Associations
(PUSPANITA)

WORKING EXPERIENCE & OCCUPATION

Datuk Nozirah has vast experience of over thirty (30) years of service
in the Malaysian Civil Service where she started as Assistant Secretary,
Finance Division in the Ministry of Finance (MOF) in December
1981. For over the years, she has held various positions in the MOF
namely Deputy Under Secretary, Procurement and Supplies Division
(2002-2004), Deputy Under Secretary, Loan Management, Financial
Market and Actuary Division (2005-2007), Under Secretary, Loan
Management, Financial Market and Actuary Division (2007-2011)
and Director of Budget Management Division (21 March — 20 May
2011).

She has also served in several other Ministries including the Ministry
of Health, Ministry of Agriculture as well as Director of Modernization
and Management Planning Unit (MAMPU) Sabah. Her last position
in the civil service was as the Deputy Secretary General of Treasury
(Management).

DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER PUBLIC COMPANIES
None

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS ATTENDED IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR
10 out of 10 Board Meetings and 1 Annual General Meeting

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0802-1)

DATUK NOZIRAH BINTI BAHARI
Malaysian, Age 61

Independent Non-Executive Director

Member of Nomination &
Remuneration Committee

s

Annual Report 2016
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TERMS OF OFFICE
Appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director on 1 December 2005
until 31 January 2016

QUALIFICATIONS

e Bachelor of Arts (Hons) in Economics, Universiti of Malaya,
Malaysia

¢ Diploma in Economics Development, Cambridge University,
United Kingdom

* Master in Economics, University of Vanderbilt, United States of
America

e Ph.D in Extension Education, University Pertanian Malaysia,
Malaysia

MEMBER OF ASSOCIATIONS
None

WORKING EXPERIENCE & OCCUPATION

Dato' Seri Dr. Hj. Arshad had a vast experience in Malaysian Civil
Service spanning over thirty (30) years, culminating with his retirement
as the Secretary General, Ministry of Information in 2005. He has held
various positions where he first served as the Assistant Secretary of the
Economic Division in the Ministry of Finance. He was then assigned to
the position of State Financial Officer of Penang in 1993. Other Civil
Service related positions he had held include Director, Bumiputera
Participation Division, Prime Minister's Department, Penang, Director
General of Tourism Malaysia and Deputy Secretary General (Finance
and Development) Ministry of Education.

DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER PUBLIC COMPANIES
DATO’ SERI DR. HJ. ARSHAD None

BIN HASHIM '
Malaysian, Age 68~ /NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS ATTENDED IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR
/1 out of 1 Board Meetings

Independent Non-Executive Director

Note:

Other than as disclosed, none of the Directors are related to any Director and/or substantial shareholder of Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad and has no conflict
of interest in any business arrangement involving the Group. None of the Directors has any record of convictions for offences within the past five (5) years
other than traffic offences, if any.

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0802-1) Annual Report 2016
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INTERNAL AUDIT
MOHAMAD YACOP
BIN MOHAMAD JUNIT

OPERATIONAL

CHIEF OPERATING
OFFICER, BPSB

OMAR BIN HJ. SALLEH

CHIEF OPERATING
OFFICER, BBSB

SHAMSUDDIN
BIN ISMAIL

CHIEF OPERATING
OFFICER, SIPSB

MATSHALLEH BIN
MOHAMAD ETLI

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (380802-1)

BOARD OF

DIRECTORS

GROUP
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER
DATO MIOR AHMAD BAITI
BIN MIOR LUB AHMAD

GROUP FINANCE
DAIANA LUNA SUIP

GROUP
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
ABDUL MANAN BIN ILING

GROUP HUMAN
RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

AZMEL KHAN BIN
ASGHAR KHAN
(Acting)

GROUP LEGAL COUNSEL
DAYANG FAIZAH BINTI
AWANG BUJANG
(Acting)

COMPANY
SECRETARY

ABU BAKAR
BIN HUSAINI

CORPORATE SUPPORT

GROUP HEALTH,
SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT

ABDANI BIN ABDUL GAFOR
(Acting)

GROUP CORPORATE
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT

EIZAM BIN ISMAIL
(Acting)

GROUP
CORPORATE SERVICES
MASLIHAH BINTI HJ. TIOH

GROUP SECURITY
ELVIS TULU AYU
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52 PROFILE OF GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

GROUP CHIEF
EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

DATO MIOR AHMAD BAITI

BIN MIOR LUB AHMAD o P
Malaysian, Aged 60 e

Dato Mior Ahmad Baiti bin Mior Lub Ahmad was
appointed as the Group Chief Executive Officer
of Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (BPHB) since 1 July
2011 until 28 February 2017.

He obtained his formal education from Heriot-Waftt
University, Edinburgh, Scofland and graduated
in 1981, with Bachelor of Science in Offshore
Engineering (Civil). He began his career as a Civil
Engineer at the Bintulu Port Authority (BPA) in the
same year. He was then promotfed as Assistant
Manager, Engineering Service Department
(Civil) and subsequently promoted to Manager
of the same Department in 1993. In 1996, he was
appointed as Senior Manager, Technical Service
Division, Bintulu Port Sdn Bhd (BPSB). Subsequently
he was appointed as Chief Executive Officer BPSB
effective 1 July 2004 until 30 June 2011.

Dato Mior Ahmad Baiti holds 30,200 shares of
Binfulu Port Holdings Berhad.

Note:

Other than as disclosed, none of the key management are related to any Director and/or substantial shareholder of Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad and has
no conflict of interest in any business arrangement involving the Group. None of the key management has any record of convictions for offences within the
past five (5) years other than fraffic offences, if any.

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0s02-1) Annual Report 2016



Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (380802-1)

CORPORATE INFORMATION
PROFILE OF KEY MANAGEMENT

OMAR BlN HJ SALLEH Malaysian, Age 58
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

Omar bin Hj. Salleh is currently the Chief Operating Officer of Binfulu Port Sdn Bhd (BPSB)
since 1 January 2016. He is primarily responsible for the day-to-day operations of
BPSB and reports directly to the Group Chief Executive Officer.

He graduated from University of Malaya with a Bachelor of Arts (Hons) majoring in
South East Asian Studies. In 1996, he underwent a Senior Management Programme
at Astridge College, United Kingdom.

He started his career as an Administrative Officer with Bintulu Port Authority (BPA)
in 1982. In 1986, he was promoted to Senior Assistant Traffic Manager and was
subsequently promoted to Administrative Manager in 1990. He joined BPSB in
1993 assuming the position of Manager, Human Resource. He was also the Head
of the Human Resource and Cargo Handling Services Divisions during his tenure
with BPSB. In September 2011, he was appointed as Senior Manager, Corporate
Development Division. He was the General Manager, Group Corporate Planning
and Development on January 2014 until December 2015.

SHAMSUDDlN BlN |SMA". Malaysian, Age 56
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

Shamsuddin bin Ismail assumed the position of Chief Operating Officer of Biport
Bulkers Sdn Bhd (BBSB) on 1 January 2014 and responsible for the day-to-day
operations of BBSB. He reports directly to the Group Chief Executive Officer.

He graduatedfrominstitute Technology MARA with a Diplomain Public Administration
in 1981. Laterin 1991, he obtained a Post Graduate Diploma in Management Studies
(Port and Shipping) from International Maritime Transport Academy, Den Helder,
Netherlands and subsequently obtained a Master of Business Administration from
Heriot-Watt University in November 2000. He has also attended the Management
Development Programme at the Asian Institute of Management (AIM), Makati,
Philippines in 2011. He is a chartered member of The Chartered Institute of Logistics
& Transport.

He started his career as a Traffic Officer with BPA in 1982 and ended his career with
BPA as a Senior Traffic Officer. He joined BPSB in 1993 and has held various positions
including as an Executive in Human Resource, Operation and Corporate Divisions. He
joined BBSB as an Executive, Operations in 2003. In 2006, he was promoted to Manager,
Operations and later in February 2011 was promoted to Senior Manager, Terminal.

MATSHALLEH BlN MOHAMAD ETL' Malaysian, Age 49
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

Matshalleh bin Mohamad Etli assumed the position of Chief Operating Officer of
Samalaju Industrial Port Sdn Bhd (SIPSB) on 1 June 2016. He is responsible for the
implementation and managing the strategies on the project’s planning, design,
construction and infrastructure work by providing leadership, strategic and tactical
direction for the successful completion of the Port. He reports directly to the Group
Chief Executive Officer.

He graduated from Universiti Sains Malaysia with a Bachelor in Science (Housing,
Building and Planning). He has also attended the Management Development
Programme at the Asian Institute of Management (AIM), Makati, Philippines in 2012.

He started his career as a Fire Superintendent with BPA in November 1991. He joined
BPSB in 1993 as a Fire Officer and thereafter as an Administrative Executive. He
held various managerial positions (Warehousing, Container Terminal, Marketing
& Customer Service) in BPSB between 1996 to 2009. In 2011, he was the Head,
Operation and Stakeholders Relations of SIPSB and subsequently assumed the
position of Acting Chief Operating Officer of SIPSB on 1 January 2014.

Annual Report 2016
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Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (380802-1)

ABU BAKAR BIN HUSAINI maiaysian, Age 55
COMPANY SECRETARY

Abu Bakar bin Husaini was appointed as Company Secretary effective
1 January 2016.

He holds a Bachelor of Science (Hons) in Finance & Accountfing from
University of Salford, United Kingdom (1988).

He started his career as a Semi Senior Auditor at Arthur Anderson
& Hanafiah Raslan Mohamad in 1988 before joining Petronas
Carigali Sdn Bhd on 2 January 1991. He joined Bintulu Port Sdn Bhd
(BPSB) on 2 May 1996 as the Finance Manager and was then transferred
as the Manager, Internal Audit on 16 March 2010. On 1 May 2010, he
was promoted as Senior Manager, Internal Audit. He then holds the post
as Assistant Company Secretary effective 16 October 2013 and has
successfully obtained his Company Secretary License on 2 September
2015.

MOHAMAD YACOP BIN MOHAMAD JUNIT

Malaysian, Age 51
MANAGER, GROUP INTERNAL AUDIT

Mohamad Yacop bin Mohamad Junit assumed the position of Manager,
Group Internal Audit of BPHB since January 2014.

He graduated from Institut Teknologi MARA with a Diploma in Accountancy
in 1987. In 1999 he obtained a Bachelor Communication from Universiti
Putra Malaysia. He has also attended the Management Development
Programme at the Asian Institute of Management (AIM), Makati, Philippines
in 2015.

He started his career as an Assistant Port officer with BPA in 1990 and ended
his careerwith the BPA as an Assistant Administrative Officerin 1992. He joined
BPSB on 1 January 1993 as Assistant Administrative Officer and he was the
Executive, Welfare in Human Resource Department in May 1993. In March
1996, he was the Executive, Account Receivable and thereafter he held
the position of Executive, Training & Development on 1 November 2004. In
June 2008 he was the Executive, Human Resource Planning & Recruitment
and in July 2011 as an Executive, Commercial before he assumed as the
Executive, Audit in 2012. In February 2013, he was appointed as Manager,
Commercial before he assumed the current position.
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DAIANA LUNA SUIP maiaysian, Age 52
GENERAL MANAGER, GROUP FINANCE

Daiana Luna Suip assumed the position of General Manager, Group
Finance of BPHB on 1 January 2014. She is responsible for all financial,
accounting and investment issues relating to the Group and also
provides strategic and operational support to the management.

She graduated from Institut Teknologi MARA with an Advanced
Diploma in Accountancy. She is a member of the Malaysian Institute
of Accountants (MIA). She has also attended the Management
Development Programme at the Asian Institute of Management (AIM),
Makati, Philippines in 2012.

She started her accounting career as an Audit Assistant with an audit
firm, Arthur Andersen until August 1993. She joined BPSB as an Internal
Auditor in September 1993 and was assigned as the Accountant in
1994. She has held the position of Financial Accountant and Group
Accountant prior fo her promotion fo Manager, Financial Accounting in
2006 and later in 2008 as Manager, Group Account. She was the Acting
Senior Manager, Finance Division from April 2011 before assuming her
current position as General Manager, Group Finance.

ABDUL MANAN BIN ".lNG Malaysian, Age 56
\\_ GENERAL MANAGER, GROUP INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Abdul Manan bin ling assumed the position of General Manager,
Group Information Technology of BPHB on 1 June 2015. He is responsible
for the implementation of Group-wide IT strategies, providing advice
and services relating to IT systems and support.

He graduated from Universiti Sains Malaysia with a Bachelor of Science
(Hons) majoring in Computer Science in 1987.

He started his career with BPA as Port Officer in July 1988. He joined
BPSB in January 1993 as Assistant Manager, System Development and
was promoted to Manager, System Development in February 2006. In
August 2007, he assumed the position of Manager, Application System.
He was the Acting Senior Manager, Information Technology from July
2010 and appointed as the Senior Manager, Information Technology in
March 2012. He was appointed as Assistant General Manager, Group
Information Technology in January 2014 before assuming his current
position.
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AZMEL KHAN BlN ASGHAR KHAN Malaysian, Age 54
ACTING GENERAL MANAGER, GROUP HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Azmel Khan bin Asghar Khan has held the position of Acting General Manager,
Group Human Resource Management since 1 January 2015. He formulates, plans,
implements and manages the development and implementation of Group-wide
human capital strategies and ensures the effective and efficient administration
and compliance of these strategies.

He graduated from Institut Teknologi MARA with a Diploma in Business Studies
in 1983. In 2003, he obtained his Bachelor Communication from Universiti Putra
Malaysia. He has also attended the Management Development Programme at
the Asian Institute of Management (AIM), Makati, Philippines in 2013.

He started his career as a Traffic Officer with the BPA on 20 December 1983 and
ended his career with BPA as Assistant Administrative Officer. He joined BPSB in 1993
as Executive, Commercial and thereafter in 1996 as Executive, Billing. In November
2006, he was promoted to Manager, Warehousing and in April 2007 to Manager,
Commercial. He also held the position of Manager, Corporate Affairs in December
2007 and subsequently Senior Manager, Group Corporate Services on 1 January
2014 until March 2014. On April 2014, he was transferred to Group Human Resource
Management as Senior Manager, HR Planning & Organizational Development.

DAYANG FAIZAH BINTI AWANG BUJANG

“ Malaysian, Age 47
= - ACTING GENERAL MANAGER, GROUP LEGAL COUNSEL

f o Dayang Faizah binti Awang Bujang assumed the position of Acting General

= Manager, Group Legal Counsel of BPHB on 1 January 2014. She is responsible for
the formulation, management and implementation of Group-wide legal strategies,
advice and services.

She graduated from the International Islamic University, Malaysia with a Bachelor
of Laws (Hons) in 1992. She has also attended the Management Development
Programme af the Asian Institute of Management (AIM), Makati, Philippines in 2012.

Prior to joining BPSB, Dayang Faizah has undergone pupillage for a ferm of one (1)
year with Messrs. Jaini Mardi & Associates, Binfulu, Sarawak before being admitted
as an Advocate & Solicitor in the High Court of Sabah and Sarawak on 24 March
1994. She started her career with BPSB on 2 August 1993 as Legal Executive and
thereafter in 1996 as Executive, Contract Management before being promoted
fo Manager, Contract Management in 2003. In 2010, she assumed the position of
Manager, Legal and in March 2013, she was the Acting Senior Manager, Legal.

ABDAN' BlN ABDUL GAFOR Malaysian, Age 53
ACTING GENERAL MANAGER, GROUP HEALTH, SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT

Abdani bin Abdul Gafor assumed the position Acting General Manager Group
/ Health, Safety & Environment, Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad effective 1 January 2014.
¥ 5 He is responsible on the effective HSE management of the Group and maintains
workplace safety and health systems.

He holds a Bachelor of Engineering from University of Tasmania in 1989. Then, he
obtained his Master of Business Administration in Heriot-Watt University in 1999. He
has attended the Management Development Programme at the Asian Institute of
Management (AIM), Makati, Philippines in 2011.

He started his career as an Electrical Engineer with BPA in February 1991. He joined
BPSB on 1 January 1993 as an Electrical Engineer at Technical Services Division
before promoted as Manager, Safety & Emergency effective in September 1996.
Then, he was transferred to Technical Services Division as Manager, Mechanical
& Electrical in 2005 and in 2008 as Manager, Safety & Emergency. He was then
entrusted to cover the post Senior Manager, Health, Safety & Environment on
January 2013 before he assumed his current position.
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EIZAM BIN |SMA". Malaysian, Age 43
ACTING GENERAL MANAGER, GROUP CORPORATE PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT

Eizam bin Ismail assumed the position of Acting General Manager, Group Corporate Planning
& Development since 1 January 2016. He is responsible for the implementation of Group-
wide strategies and plans on corporate planning and business development, Enterprise Risk
Management (ERM), marketing, branding programme and customer services functions.

He graduated from Universiti Instiftut Teknologi MARA (UiTM) with a Bachelor of Business
Administration (Transport) in 1996. He has also attended the Management Development
Programme at the Asian Institute of Management (AIM), Makati, Philippines in 2015.

Prior to joining Bintulu Port Sdn Bhd, he was an associate consultant for 6 years working on various
port and shipping consultancy project in South East Asia. He joined BPSB in 2002 as Executive,
Corporate Marketing under the Chief Executive Officer’s Office. In 2004, he held the position of
Executive, Marketing & Business Development and thereafter in 2010 as Executive, Marketing
(Containerized) under Corporate Development Division. He was promoted to Manager,
Marketing & Customer Service in January 2012 and in February 2014 to Manager, Corporate
Planning under Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad.

MASLIHAH BINTI HJ. TIOH malaysian, Age 50
SENIOR MANAGER, GROUP CORPORATE SERVICES

Maslihah binti Hj. Tioh assumed the position of Senior Manager, Group Corporate Services of
BPHB since 1 January 2015. She is responsible for the overall corporate services of the Group
which includes company's internal and external communications, including public relations,
government relations and investor relations. In that capacity, she is responsible for creating and
communicating a favourable public image for the Group through media campaigns designed
fo reach investors, consumers, employees, industry analysts, customers, government agencies
and other stakeholders. She is also responsible in overseeing the Group procurement and office
management services.

She graduated from Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia with a Bachelor of Arts (Hons) majoring in
Mass Communication in 1990. She has attended the Management Development Programme at
the Asian Institute of Management (AIM), Makati, Philippines in 2013.

She started her career as an Executive, Public Relation with BPA in February 1991. She joined
BPSB in January 1993 as Executive, Public Affairs. In April 1997, she was promoted to Manager,
Personnel and Payroll under Human Resource Management Division and then tfransferred fo
Finance Division as the Manager, Commercial. She was the Manager, Remuneration & Benefit
since January 2006. In 2007, she was assigned as the Manager, Performance and Reward until
2013. She was then promoted as the Senior Manager, Performance and Rewards in January 2014
before being appointed to curent position.

ELV'S TULU AYU Malaysian, Age 51
SENIOR MANAGER, GROUP SECURITY

Elvis Tulu Ayu assumed the position of Senior Manager, Group Security effective 1 March 2015
and ranked as Superintendent in the Malaysia Auxiliary Police Association. He is responsible for
confrol and develops Group Security strategies, programs and plans fo ensure secure working
environment through proactive security measures design to protect people, assets and operations
against the threat of injury and loss or damage by criminal, hostile or malicious acts.

He graduated from Institut Teknologi MARA with a Diploma in Accountancy in 1987 and later in 2004,
he obfained a Bachelor of Arts majoring in Business Administration from Bolfon Institute, UK. He has also
attended the Management Development Programme at the Asian Institute of Management
(AIM), Makati, Philippines in 2013.

He started his career as an Assistant Security Officer with BPA in 1988. After completing his 9 months
fraining at PULAPOL as Police Inspector in 1992, he then joined BPSB in 1993 as Assistant Safety
Officer. Thereafter, he was designated as Executive, Security in March 1996. In November 1999,
he was the Executive, Security & Emergency Services before promoted as Manager, Security in
2002. He held this position until 2013 and later as the Manager, Warehousing from January 2014
until February 2015.
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« STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

(Pursuant to Chapter 15, Part E, Para 15.25 of the Main Market Listing Requirements)

This Statement on Corporate Governance is made in compliance with Chapter 15, Part E, Paragraph
15.25 of the Main Market Listing Requirements (MMLR) and the Malaysian Code on Corporate
Governance 2012 (the Code), which sets out the principles and best practices on structures and
processes that companies may use in their operations towards achieving the optimal governance
framework.

The Board of Directors of Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (the Board) is committed to applying and
upholding high standards of corporate governance to safeguard and promote the interests of the
shareholders. The Board is also dedicated to enhance the long term value of the Company and its
conftrolled entities (referred to collectively as the Group).

In this annual Statement on Corporate Governance the Board is pleased to share on the manner
of corporate governance in the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 where the
principles and the best practices of the Code, in all material aspects, have been complied with.

PRINCIPLE 1:
ESTABLISHING CLEAR ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board Charter

The objective of this Board Charter (the Charter) is to ensure that all Board members are aware
of their duties and responsibilities as regards the various legislations and regulations affecting their
conduct and also the principles and practices of good Corporate Governance in all their dealings
in respect and on behalf of the Group.

The Charter clearly spells out the segregation of functions and authority between the Board and
Management. This ensures that there is a proper check and balance in the decision-making
process. The Board recognises the importance of the Charter as a single source of reference as
recommended by the Code.

Key matters reserved for the Board include the approval of strategic plans; annual operating and
capital budgets; and quarterly as well as annual financial statements. The Board monitors the
financial and operating performance and endorses the quarterly / annual results forannouncement.

The Charter will be reviewed and updated periodically in accordance with the needs of the
Company and in compliance to new regulations. Softcopy of the Charter is available on the
Group's website at http://www.bintuluport.com.my.

Principal Responsibilities of the Board

The Board recognises the key role it plays in charting the strategic direction of the Group and in
fulfilling its fiduciary duties. In the pursuit of the Group's objectives, the Board assumes the following
responsibilities:

* Establishing and reviewing the goals, the strategic plan and direction towards promoting the
Company's sustainability;

* Overseeing and evaluating the conduct of the Company’s businesses;

* |dentifying principal risks and ensure that the risks are effectively managed;

* Establishing a succession plan to ensure orderly succession of Senior Management of the Group.
The Board s responsible for the appointment of the Group Chief Executive Officer (GCEQ), setting
and reviewing the GCEOQ’s employment contfract as well as evaluating the Key Performance
Indicators (KPI) of the GCEO;
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* Developing and implementing investor relations programmes and shareholders communication
policy; and

* Reviewing the adequacy of the internal control policy and ensuring that the Company has
appropriate risk management framework, internal control systems and regulatory compliance
policies.

In line with the Code, the Board had established the Audit Committee and the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. In addition, the Board had also established the Finance and Investment
Committee. These Committees deliberate specific matters within theirrespective Terms of Reference
as approved by the Board and report to the Board with their recommendations. The ultimate
responsibility for decision-making, however, lies with the Board.

Detailed reports on Board Committees are set out on pages 84 to 85 of this Annual Report.
Code of Ethics for Directors

The Board strictly adheres to the Company Directors’ Code of Ethics, established by the Companies
Commission of Malaysia and other Codes of Corporate Governance to engender good corporate
behaviour. The Code of Ethics for the Directors governs the standards of ethics and good conduct
including principles relating to the Directors’ duties, Directors’ relationship with stakeholders,
employees welfare and commitment to the Group's Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR).

The Board practises fair, professional and sound judgement prior o making or approving any
proposed resolution in order to avoid disarray and deviation of power.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Group has established the Whistleblowing Policy since September 2014. The policy provides an
avenue for parties to disclose any information on improper conducts or potential corporate fraud
or breach of ethics involving any employees or Directors of the Group without fear of reprisal or
retribution as they are protected under the Whistleblower Protection Act 2010.

The objectives of the Policy among others are:

* To develop a culture of openness, accountability and integrity as well as to maintain high ethical
standards of the Group; and

* To enable the Board and Management to be informed at early stage by stakeholders of any
misconduct in the Company.

Under this Policy, the whistle-blower should ensure that the information disclosed is substantial and
not frivolous or vexatious to enable investigation to be carried out in accordance with the principle
of natural justice. Any whistle-blower having information of improper conduct in the Company may
report it to the Head of Group Internal Audit through prescribed channels made available to them.
The whistle-blower is entitled to be nofified within sixty days on the outcome of the investigation.

Customer Charter
Guided by the Customer Charter, the Group provides quality port services with confinuous
improvement based on customer feedback. In order to meet their needs and expectations,

the Group carries out regular engagement with the customers and conducts Annual Customer
Satisfaction Survey (CSS) to gauge the customers’ satisfaction against the Charter.
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Corporate Sustainability

While the Group corporate strategies place great importance on business sustainability, the Board
is always mindful of the need to take into consideration the environmental and social impact of
business as part of its broader responsibility fo clients, shareholders and the communities in which it
operates. The Group's Sustainability Statement for the year under review is disclosed on pages 90
to 96 of this Annual Report.

Supply of and Access to Information and Advice

The Board receives timely and up-to-date information on financial, operational, corporate,
regulatory, business development and audit matters by way of Board Reports. These reports are
crucial for making informed and sound decisions.

Procedures have been established for timely dissemination of papers or reports to all Directors prior
to the Board and Board Committee meetings so that they have ample time to view the subject
matter to be deliberated. Senior Management of the Group and external advisers are invited to
attend Board meetings to provide additional insights, professional opinion and clarification on
specific agenda items. Besides having direct access to the Management, Directors may obtain
external independent professional advice at the Company’s expense, if considered necessary.

All Directors have full and unrestricted access to the advice and services of both the Senior
Management and Company Secretary to enable them to discharge their duties efficiently and
effectively.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary plays an important advisory role and as a source of information and advice
to the Board on issues relating to compliance with laws, rules, procedures and regulations affecting
the Group. The Board is regularly updated and advised by the Company Secretary in relation to
compliance with laws, rules, procedures and regulations affecting the Group.

The Company Secretary attends all Board and Board Committees meetings and ensures that the
meetings are properly convened and that accurate records of the proceedings and resolutions
passed are maintained. The Company Secretary works closely with the Management to ensure
that there are timely and appropriate information flows to the Board.

PRINCIPLE 2:
STRENGTHENING THE BOARD COMPOSITION

Board Composition and Balance

Article 109 of the Company’s Arficle of Association provides that there shall be at least two (2) and
not more than twelve (12) members of the Board. As at 31 December 2016, the Board membership
stands at eleven (11) members comprising of seven (7) Non-Independent Non- Executive Directors
and the remaining four (4) are Independent Non-Executive Directors. This composition fulfils the
requirements mandated by the MMLR of Bursa Malaysia under Paragraph 15.02(1), which stipulates
that at least two (2) Directors or one-third (1/3) of the Board, whichever is higher, are Independent
Directors.
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Chart 1: BPHB Board Composition

The Composition of the Board of Directors, Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad

Tan Sri Dr. Ali bin Hamsa Chairman

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
Dato’ Siti Zauyah binti Md Desa Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
(Appointed on 1 June 2016)
Tan Sri Datuk Amar Hj. Mohamad Morshidi Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
bin Abdul Ghani
Gen. Dato’ Seri DiRaja Tan Sri (Dr.) Mohd. Zahidi Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
bin Hj. Zainuddin (R)
Datuk Fong Joo Chung Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
Datuk Nasarudin bin Md Idris Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
Encik Dzafri Sham bin Ahmad Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
Dato’ Sri Mohamad Norza bin Zakaria Independent Non-Executive Director
Dato’ Sri Mohamed Khalid bin Yusuf @ Yusup Independent Non-Executive Director
Dato’ Yasmin binti Mahmood Independent Non-Executive Director
Datuk Nozirah binti Bahari Independent Non-Executive Director
(Appointed on 1 February 2016)
Dato’ Seri Dr. Hj. Arshad bin Hashim Independent Non-Executive Director

(Resigned on 1 February 2016)

The brief profile of each Director is presented in the ‘Board of Directors Profile’ section found on
pages 38 to 51 of this Annual Report.

The current size and composition of the Board is considered well balanced in addressing any business
challenges and driving the business of the Group to greater heights. The Board members come
from various professional backgrounds in terms of mix of skills, knowledge, expertise, experience
and other requisite qualities. These qualities include core competencies in finance, business, oil
and gas, law, general management and strategic thinking that are essential for the success of the
Group. The Independent Non-Executive Directors play active roles in deliberations of policies and
providing unbiased independent views and sound judgement.

The composition of the Board fairly reflects the interest of the major shareholders as represented by
the appointment of their nominee Directors. The Preference Shareholder is the Minister of Finance
(Incorporated) while the Petroliam Nasional Berhad (PETRONAS), Sarawak State Financial Secretary
(SFS), Equisar Assets Sdn Bhd and Kumpulan Wang Persaraan (Diperbadankan) (KWAP) are the
major shareholders of the Group. The Independent Directors are also responsible for safeguarding
the interest of minority shareholders.
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Board Diversity

The Board is committed in ensuring that its composition reflects the diversity in line with
Recommendation 2.2 of the Code.

The Board also recognises that diversity is not limited to gender representation, but encompasses
ethnicity / race, age as well as nationality. With the appointment of Dato’ Yasmin binti Mahmood,
Datuk Nozirah binti Bahari and Dato’ Siti Zauyah binti Md Desa the current Board composition
comprises of eight (8) male Directors and three (3) female Directors. The Board is of the view that the
current composition will generate positive impact on business and create value for the Company.
While the Board strives to promote diversity, appointments of Directors are still premised on merits,
knowledge and expertise which must be relevant to the Company.

Performance Assessment for Board (PAB)

The Performance Assessment for Board was adopted by BPHB in 2014. It is conducted internally upon
completion of the financial year and comprises of Board Evaluation and Committee Evaluation. It
is designed to increase the Board'’s effectiveness and efficiency as well as to draw the Board’s
aftention to key areas that need to be addressed in order to maintain consistency of the Board’s
performance regardless of its diversity.

Questionnaire on the PAB include the effectiveness of the Board of Directors as a whole, as well as
that of the Board Committees. The Committees’ structure and processes as well as accountabilities
and responsibilities are also evaluated. The assessment questionnaire is distributed to all respective
Board members and covers topics such as the contribution and performance of Directors with
regards to their competency, time commitment, integrity and experience in meeting the needs of
the Group and suggestions to enhance board effectiveness.

The overall results for the Board assessment revealed that the Board has performed evidently well,
with most of the areas being rated as “Good"” and “Very Good" indicating Directors’ satisfaction
with the Board’s overall performance. The Board Committees assessment showed indications that
Committee members have performed effectively as a group and in assisting the Board to discharge
its roles and responsibilities. All Board Committees were also rated ranging from “Good” to “Very
Good".

Upon reviewing the results of the Board and Committee assessment, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee has identified training for Directors and succession planning for the Group as areas that
need improvement.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of the following members:

e Dato’ Sri Mohamed Khalid bin Yusuf @ Yusup (Member and re-designated as Chairman
on 1 February 2016; Independent Non-Executive Director);

* Datuk Fong Joo Chung (Member; Non-Independent Non-Executive Director);

* Datuk Nozirah binti Bahari (Member effective 1 February 2016; Independent Non-Executive
Director); and

e Dato’ SeriDr. Hj. Arshad bin Hashim (Chairman until 31 January 2016; Independent Non- Executive
Director).
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The Committee’s primary responsibilities include:

Initiating the process for Board appointments and making recommendations to the Board;

Assessing Directors’ performance through PAB;

Reviewing annually the required skills and core competencies of Non-Executive Directors;

Establishing, reviewing and recommending to the Board the remuneration packages of

Chairman, Non-Executive Directors, Group Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary and

Senior Management;

* Recommending to the Board the payment of annual bonus, increment, performance merit and
ex-gratia to the Group Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Senior Management and
all staff of the Group except those who fall under the jurisdiction of Collective Agreement; and

* Conducting induction programme and familiarisation visit for Directors.

The activities of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee during the financial year under
review are as stated on page 85 of this Annual Report.

Appointment and Re-Election to the Board

Chapter 7, Part J, Para 7.26 of MMLR and Arficle 127 of the Company’s Articles of Association require
all Directors to retire at least once every three (3) years or at least one third (1/3) of the Directors
shall retire by rotation each year and they are eligible for re-election. The re-election of Directors at
regular intervals enhances Board effectiveness and also presents shareholders with the opportunity
to measure the performance of the Directors.

Article 132 of the Company’s Articles of Association provides authority for the Board to appoint any
person who is willing to act as Director to fill up casual vacancies and such Director shall retire and
be eligible for re-election at the next Annual General Meeting.

Directors standing for re-election / re-appointment at the forthcoming Twenty-First (21¢) Annual
General Meeting pursuant to Article 127 and Article 132 of the Company’s Articles of Association
are:

a. Directors retiring by rotation pursuant to Article 127 of the Company’s Articles of Association
and Paragraph 7.26 of the Main Market Listing Requirements are as follows:

e Tan Sri Datuk Amar Hj. Mohamad Morshidi bin Abdul Ghani
(Non-Independent Non-Executive)

* Gen. Dato’ Seri DiRaja Tan Sri (Dr.) Mohd Zahidi bin Hj. Zainuddin (R)
(Non-Independent Non-Executive)

* Datuk Nasarudin bin Md Idris
(Non-Independent Non-Executive)

b. Director retiring pursuant to Article 132 of the Company’s Arficles of Association is:

* Dato’ Siti Zauyah binti Md Desa
(Non-Independent Non-Executive Director)

Any nomination fornew Directors to the Boardis to be reviewed by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and the Commifttee makes recommendation for the Board’s approval. The Company
Secretary will ensure that all appointments are properly made and that regulatory obligations are
complied with.
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Directors’ Training

The Board via its Nomination and Remuneration Committee evaluates and determines the training
needs of its members to ensure continuing education is made available to Directors in order for them
to enhance their business acumen and professionalism in the discharge of their duties. In addition,
the Company Secretary also receives updates on training programmes from various organisations
including the regulators. These updates are circulated to the Directors for their consideration.

The Group also provides internal briefings to the Directors on key corporate governance
developments and relevant changes on the Listing Requirements, laws and regulations.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, some Directors have afttended development
and training programmes in areas of leadership, corporate governance, finance, taxation, legal
and regulatory developments and oil and gas sponsored by the Group and / or Directors’ personal
initiatives. This is in compliance with paragraph 15.08(2) and Appendix 9C (Part A, Paragraph 28) of
the MMLR.

Conferences, seminars and fraining programmes attended by the Directors during the financial
year ended 31 December 2016 include the following:

Chart 2: Training Programmes Attended by Directors

Independent Director’s Program: The Essence of Independence

Risk Management Workshop by IBM

Corporate Governance Statement Workshop: “The Interplay between CG, Non-Financial
Information (NFI) and Investment Decisions”

Director’s Training - Listing Requirements by Bursa Malaysia; Companies Act 2016; Code of
Corporate Governance 2016; Policy Document on Corporate Governance by Bank Negara
Malaysia

Corporate Governance Breakfast Series — Thought Leadership Session for Director:

“The Cybersecurity Threat and How Boards Should Mitigate Risk.”

The New Malaysian Companies Act 2016 by Messrs. Rahmat Lim & Partners
Media Spokesperson & Crisis Management Training
PETRONAS Directors’ Training

Advance 2 Directors’ Training Program — PETRONAS Board Excellence
35" Management Conference (Plantation Division) of Genting Plantations Berhad: “Integrating
Innovation, Sustainability and Productivity for Value-Creation”

121 Khazanah Global Lecture by Dr. Jane Goodall — Preservation and Awareness for World
Environment

MOF Executive Talk: Peranan Jawatankuasa Audit Syarikat Dalam Memastikan Tadbir Urus
Syarikat by the Ministry of Finance

International Forum on the World's Economic Outlook: Challenges and Opportunities for
Malaysian Companies by Perbadanan Nasional Berhad

Launch of The AGM Guide & CG Breakfast Series 'How to Leverage on AGMs for Better
Engagement with Shareholders'

Digital Finance Conference by Securities Commission Malaysia

The External Auditors briefed the Board members on any changes to the Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards that affect the Group’s financial statements during the year.
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Directors’ Remuneration

The responsibility of setting appropriate Directors’ remuneration framework and packages is under
the purview of the NRC. The package has to be attractive enough to ensure that the Group continues
to motivate Directors and retain talents that are necessary to manage the Group professionally and
effectively.

Non-Executive Directors are paid fixed annual Directors’ fees as members of the Board. In addition
to fixed annual Directors’ fees, the Directors are paid meeting allowance for each Board and Board
Committees’ meetings. Directors’ fees will be paid to the Directors after approval at the AGM as
provided in the Article 110 (1) of the Company's Article of Association.

Directors’ remunerations for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 in aggregate and with
categorisation are as follows:

Chart 3: Directors’ Remuneration Aggregate

MEETING BENEFIT-
COMPANIES ALLOWANCE IN-KIND
(RM ‘000)
Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad* 925.00 259 .00 - 1,184.00
Bintulu Port Sdn Bhd 172.80 42.00 - 214.80
Biport Bulkers Sdn Bhd* 172.80 23.50 ; 196.30
Samalaju Industrial Port Sdn Bhd* 252.60 58.50 - 311.10

* including Directors who have resigned / refired.

The number of Directors of the company whose remuneration band falls within the following
successive bands of RM50,000.00 is as follow:

Chart 4: Directors’ Remuneration Band**

RANGE OF REMUNERATION (RM)

S 1-50000 o5 150000 200000 TOTAL
Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad* 1 2 8 1 12
Bintulu Port Sdn Bhd ; 3 - , 3
Biport Bulkers Sdn Bhd* 1 % B} i} 4
Samalaju Industrial Port Sdn Bhd* 1 4 _ . 5

*including Directors who have resigned / retired.
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The details of Directors’ remuneration for financial year under review are set out as below:

Chart 5: Directors’ Remuneration in Total**

MEETING BENEFIT-
ALLOWANCE IN-KIND

TOTAL
DIRECTORS

(RM‘000)

Tan Sri Dr. Ali bin Homsa
(Chairman) 170.4 45.0 - 215.4

Dato’ Siti Zauyah binti Md Desa

(Appointed on 1 June 2016) 784 10.5 ) 88.9

Tan Sri Datuk Amar Hj. Mohamad Morshidi

bin Abdul Ghani 134.4 22.5 - 156.9
Gen. Dato’ Seri DiRaja Tan Sri (Dr.) Mohd Zahidi i

bin Haji Zainuddin (R) 194.4 S0.0 164.4
Datuk Fong Joo Chung 156.0 46.5 - 202.5
Datuk Nasarudin bin Md Idris 156.0 35.0 - 191.0
Encik Dzafri Sham bin Ahmad 134.4 39.0 . 173.4
Dato’ Sri Mohamad Norza bin Zakaria 134.4 445 - 178.9
Dato’ Sri Mohamed Khalid bin Yusuf @ Yusup 154.2 47 .5 - 201.7
Dato’ Yasmin binti Mahmood 134.4 25.5 - 159.9
Datuk Nozirah binti Bahari

(Appointed on 1 February 2016) 1232 31.5 ) 154.7
Dato’ Seri Dr. Hj. Arshad bin Hashim 13.0 55 ) 18.5

(Resigned on 1 February 2016)

** including remuneration for all subsidiaries, wherever applicable, pursuant to Chapter 9, Appendix 9C, Para
(11)(a) of the MMLR.

PRINCIPLE 3:
REINFORCING THE BOARD’S INDEPENDENCE

Board Independence

BPHB determines the independence of the Directors in accordance with the criteria specified
in Paragraph 1.01 of MMLR, whereby an Independent Director needs to be independent from
the management and free from any business or other relationship which could interfere with the
exercise of independent judgement or the ability to act in the best interests of the Company. Al
four (4) Independent Directors satisfy the criteria of independence as defined under the MMLR.
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The Board recognises the importance of independence and objectivity in the decision-making
process. The segregation and balance of power and authority in the Board are in line with the
Code, while the Board Charter, which was established in 2013, serves as a source of reference and
primary induction literature.

In deliberatingrelevantissues the Board shallbe objective andimpartial. To achieve this, Independent
Directors will help to ensure that the interests of all stakeholders and not any particular fraction or
group are taken into account by the Board.

For new appointments, the assessment on the independence of the proposed Director, which is
carried out prior to the appointment, is ascertained in accordance with the criteria set out in the
MMLR.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Chairman and the Group Chief Executive Officer (GCEO)

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the GCEO to promote
accountability and facilitate the division of responsibility, such that no one individual has
overwhelming powers over decision-making.

The Chairman

Tan Sri Dr. Ali bin Hamsa has been the Chairman of the Group since 1 November 2013. The Chairman
is responsible for leading and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the Board's governance
process. He also acts as a facilitator during Board meetings to ensure that the Directors participate in
deliberation and that Board members were given ample opportunity to contribute to the outcomes
of the meetings.

The GCEO

Dato Mior Ahmad Baiti bin Mior Lub Ahmad has been the GCEO of the Group since 1 July 2011. The
GCEOQO is responsible for the Group's day-to-day business operations, organisational efficiency and
effectiveness and the implementation of the duly approved Board decisions.

The Management team supports the GCEO in implementing the Group's strategic plans, policies
and Board decisions along with overseeing the operations and business developments of the Group.
Effective 1 March 2017, Dato Mohammad Medan bin Abdullah will serve as the new GCEO of the
Group, succeeding Dato Mior Anmad Baiti bin Mior Lub Ahmad whose contract of service ended
on 28 February 2017.

PRINCIPLE 4:
FOSTERING THE COMMITMENT OF DIRECTORS

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly during the financial year. All Board meetings are scheduled well in
advance before the end of the preceding financial year. This is to enable the Directors in planning
ahead the meeting schedule and lock the dates. Additional meetings are convened when urgent
and important decisions need to be made between scheduled meetings. The Board and Board
Committee papers are prepared by the Management which provides relevant facts and analysis
for deliberations of the Board. During the financial year under review, eleven (11) meetings were
held and details of attendance of members are as follows:
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Chart 6: Board Attendance

Percentage of
Attendance
(%)

No. of Meetings

Composition Attended

Tan Sri Dr. Ali bin Haomsa

(Chairman) /L uee
Dato’ Siti Zauyah binti Md Desa

(Appointed on 1 June 2016) /5 100
Tan Sri Datuk Amar Hj. Mohamad Morshidi 8/11 797
bin Abdul Ghani :
Gen. Dato’ Seri DiRaja Tan Sri (Dr.) 1/11 100
Mohd Zahidi bin Hj. Zainuddin (R)

Datuk Fong Joo Chung 11/11 100
Datuk Nasarudin bin Md Idris 10/11 90.9
Encik Dzafri Sham bin Ahmad 10/11 90.9
Dato’ Sri Mohamad Norza bin Zakaria 10/11 90.9
Dato’ Sri Mohamed Khalid bin Yusuf @ Yusup 11/11 100
Dato’ Yasmin binfi Mahmood 8/11 707
Datuk Nozirah binti Bahari

(Appointed on 1 February 2016) 10/10 100
Dato’ Seri Dr. Hj. Arshad bin Hashim 1/1 100

(Resigned on 1 February 2016)

All Directors have complied with the minimum requirements in respect of attendance at Board
Meetings as stipulated in Chapter 15 Paragraph 15.05 of MMLR (minimum 50% attendance during
a financial year).

Directorships in Other Companies

In compliance with MMLR and consistent with the best practices recommendations of the Code,
each member of the Board holds not more than five (5) directorships in public listed companies
to enable the Directors to discharge their duties effectively by ensuring that their commitment,
resources and time are more focused.

Time Commitment

It is the policy of the Group that Directors devote sufficient time and effort to carry out their
responsibilities. The Board obtains this commitment from Directors at the time of appointment. It is
also the Board's policy for Directors to notify the Chairman before accepting any new directorships
notwithstanding that the Listing Requirements allow a Director to sit on the Boards of five (5) listed
issuers. Such notification is expected to include an indication of time that will be spent on the new
appointment.
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In additionto the scheduled meetings, whenever any direction or decisions are required expeditiously
from the Board, special meetings of the Board are convened by the Company Secretary, after
consultation with the Chairman. Decisions of the Board are made unanimously or by consensus.
Where appropriate, decisions may be taken by way of Directors’ Circular Resolutions (DCR)
between scheduled and special meetings. In 2016, three (3) resolutions ranging from administrative
to operational issues were approved by Directors via DCR.

The agenda for the Board's meetings is set by the Company Secretary in consultation with the
Chairman and the GCEO. The agenda together with the relevant reports and Board papers are
furnished to the Directors in advance to allow the Directors sufficient time to peruse for effective
deliberation and decision making during the meetings. The Board has a recurring schedule of
matters which are typically listed on the agenda and reviewed during the course of the year. The
scheduled meetings focus on the Group's Business Plan, Quarterly Reports, recommendations of
the various Board Committees, announcements to Bursa, Group's Audited Financial Statements
and Annual Reports.

PRINCIPLE 5:
UPHOLDING THE INTEGRITY IN FINANCIAL REPORTING BY THE COMPANY

Directors’ Responsibility

The Board aims to provide and present a clear, balanced and comprehensive assessment of the
Group's financial performance and positions as well as business prospects at the end of the financial
year. This is done primarily through the annual financial statements and quarterly announcement
of results to shareholders. The Board is responsible for ensuring that the financial statements give an
accurate and fair view on the state of affairs including cash flow of the Group.

Audit Committee

To enhance the financial reporting process and the quality of the Group’s financial statements, the
Board is assisted by an Audit Committee, with majority of its members comprising of Independent
Directors. The composition of the Audit Committee, including its activities is set out on pages 86 to
89 of this Annual Report.

One of the key responsibilities of the Audit Committee is to ensure that the financial statements of
the Group comply with the current applicable Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (MFRS).

Such financial statements comprise of the quarterly financial report as recommended to the Board
for subsequent announcement to Bursa Malaysia. The Board, through the Audit Committee, has
established formal and transparent arrangements with External Auditors in producing accurate
financial reports and good internal control mechanisms.

External Audit

In assessing the independence of external auditors, the Audit Committee requires written assurance
by the external auditors, confirming that they are, and have been, independent throughout the
conduct of the audit engagement with the Company in accordance with the independence criteria
set out by the International Federation of Accountants and the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.
Further explanations on external audit functions are set out on page 89 of this Annual Report.

The Group's financial highlights and indicators for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out on pages 14 to 15 of this Annual Report.
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PRINCIPLE é:
RECOGNISING AND MANAGING RISKS

Recognising the importance of risk management and internal control, the Board has established
a structured risk management framework to identify, evaluate, control, monitor and report the
principal business risks faced by the Group on an on-going basis.

The Board has developed procedures to mitigate the business and operational risks as identified
by various divisions and coordinated by Group Corporate Planning and Development. The Board
performs reviews on the Group's Risk Profiles on a bi-annual basis guided by the Statement on Risk
Management and Internal Control and Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers.

The Management and the Audit Committee provide the Board with reports on actions taken
to mitigate the risks. These actions give reasonable assurance to shareholders on the level of
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control system.

Details on the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control are furnished on pages 76 to 82
of this Annual Report.

PRINCIPLE 7:
ENSURING TIMELY AND HIGH QUALITY DISCLOSURE

An essential aspect of an active and effective communication policy is the promptness in
disseminating information to shareholders and investors. The Board is guided by the Corporate
Disclosure Guide issued by Bursa Malaysia and adheres strictly to Bursa Malaysia’s high quality
disclosure framework to provide investors and the public with accurate and complete information
on a fimely basis.

For the financial year under review ending 31 December 2016, the corporate disclosure procedures
which have been implemented by the Group are as follows:

i) Timely Release of Quarterly Financial Results

The Group accords high priority in ensuring that information is made available and disseminated
as early as possible. The prompt and timely release of financial results on a quarterly basis enables
shareholders to review the Group’s performance and operations in order to make informed
investment decisions. Based on the foregoing, the Board has approved and released the quarterly
financial results for the year 2016 on the following dates:

Chart 7: Quarter Results Announcement

2016 Quarterly Number of Days after Bursa Malaysia
Results Seife ClilEE /e ers end of Quarter Deadline
1t Quarter 26 May 2016 56 31 May 2016
2" Quarter 26 August 2016 57 30 August 2016
39 Quarter 21 November 2016 52 30 November 2016
4™ Quarter 27 February 2017 58 28 February 2017
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ii) Investor Relations
The Group holds separate interfacing sessions with fund managers, institutional investors and
investment analysts as well as the media. The sessions are intended to disseminate updated
progress and development of the Group's business to interested partiesincluding the shareholders
and stakeholders.

In year 2016, the Group's interfacing sessions were as follows:

Chart 8: Interfacing Sessions

Organisations Venue Date
Maybank Investment Bank Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad 1 March 2016
J.P. Morgan Chase Bank Berhad Samalaju Industrial Port Sdn Bhd 24 March 2016
Permodalan Nasional Berhad (PNB)  Grand Millenium Hotel Kuala Lumpur 8 September 2016
Kenanga Investment Bank Berhad Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad 22 September 2016
Samalaju Industrial Port Sdn Bhd

TA Securities Holdings Berhad Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad 12 October 2016
BIMB Securities Sdn Bhd Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad 27 October 2016

Samalaju Industrial Port Sdn Bhd

Maybank Investment Bank Grand Millenium Hotel Kuala Lumpur 2 December 2016

iii) Group’s Website and Primary Contact

The Board places greatimportance in maintaining active dialogue and effective communication
with shareholders and investors for accountability and transparency to enable shareholders and
investors to make informed investment decisions. Apart from providing comprehensive insights
info the Group's financial performance through the interfacing sessions, the financial and business
performances are also communicated through the Group’s website.

Up-to-date information on the Group is accessible via the Group's website at hitp://www.
bintuluport.com.my.

In addition, shareholders and investors may also obtain the up-to-date information, the latest
corporate, financial and market information of the Group through the Bursa Malaysia website at
http://www.bursamalaysia.com.

The primary contacts of the Group are as follows:

Group Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad

Tel :+60 86 291001 (ext. 300) Tel :+6086 291001 (ext. 257)
Fax : +60 86 253597 +60 86 251090 (Direct Line)

Fax : +60 86 254062

While the Company endeavours to provide as much information as possible to its shareholders and
stakeholders, the Board is mindful of the legal and regulatory framework governing the release of
material and price sensitive information.

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0s02-1) Annual Report 2016

73



74

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Annual Report

The Annual Report provides a comprehensive report on the Group’s operations and financial
performance for the year under review. It provides full disclosure and is in compliance with the
relevant regulations to ensure greater transparency. An electronic format of the Annual Report is
also available on the Group's website.

PRINCIPLE 8:
STRENGTHENING THE RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND THE SHAREHOLDERS

The Board believes that it is not only accountable to shareholders but also responsible for managing
a successful and productive relationship with the Group's stakeholders.

Annual General Meeting (AGM)

The AGM remains the principal forum for shareholders. This venue allows shareholders to review the
Group's performance via the Company's Annual Report. The Notice of AGM is circulated at least
twenty-one (21) days in advance of the meeting in accordance with the MMLR to facilitate full
understanding and evaluation of the issues involved.

Active participation by the shareholders is encouraged during the AGM, in which an open platform
is made available to the shareholders to raise questions both about the resolutions being proposed
before putting a resolution to vote as well as matters relating to the Group's operations in general.
Appropriate responses and clarifications are prompftly provided by the Board members to the
shareholders.

Upon the conclusion of the AGM, a press conference is immediately held where the Chairman
informs the media in respect of the resolutions passed and answers questions pertaining to the
Group's business. The outcome of the AGM is announced to Bursa Malaysia on the same meeting
day.

During the 20™ AGM held on 28 April 2016, the GCEO provided shareholders with an overview of the
Group's operations and the financial year’s performance. The GCEO also shared responses to the
questions submitted in advance by the Minority Shareholder Watchdog Group (MSWG).

Communication and Engagement with Shareholders
Shareholders can access corporate information, AnnualReports, pressreleases, financialinformation,
company announcements and share prices through investors’' relations programmes and the

website as highlighted under Principle 7 (ii & iii) above. However, undisclosed material information
about the Group will not be given to any single shareholder or shareholder groups.
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ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION

The information set out below is disclosed in compliance with the Listing Requirements under Chapter 9,
Paragraph 9.25 and 9.41 of the MMLR.

(i) Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a Revenue Nature

As required by the MMLR, Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a revenue nature must be
disclosed in the Annual Report. For the year 2016, there were no new related parties involved
with the Group other than the existing ones which comprise the Sarawak State Financial
Secretary (SFS) and Petroliom Nasional Berhad (PETRONAS). The transactions involved are in the
ordinary course of business and are of terms not more favourable to the related party than those
generally available to the public. The services rendered or goods purchased are based on a
non-negotiable fixed price which is published or publicly quoted and all material terms including
the prices or charges are applied consistently to all customers or classes of customers.

(ii) Non-Audit Fees
The requirement to disclose the Non-Audit Fees is provided for under Chapter 9, Item (18) of
Appendix 2C of the MMLR. Hence, the Non-Audit Fees paid to the External Auditor by the Group
for reviewing the Director’s Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control for the year
ended 31 December 2016 is in the sum of RM8,000.00 only.

(iiif) Material Contract
The Board confirms that there was no material contract entered into by the Group involving the
Directors’ and major shareholders’ subsisting interest at the end of 2016.

(iv) Imposition of Sanctions / Penalties
There were no sanctions / penalties on the Group, Board of Directors and Management for the
financial year ended 31 December 2016.

(v) Details of Attendance at Meetings Held in the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2016
For attendance, please refer to page 70 of this Statement.

(vi) Statement by the Board on Compliance
Throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had complied with and
observed the substantive provisions of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2012
(MCCG 2012), the relevant Chapters of the MMLR and the Companies Commission of Malaysia’s
(CCM) requirements.

Statement made in accordance with the Board's Resolution dated 11 January 2017.

Tan Sri Dr. Ali bin Hamsa Dato’ Sri Mohamed Khalid bin Yusuf @ Yusup
Chairman Independent Non-Executive Director
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« STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT &
INTERNAL CONTROL

(Pursuant to Chapter 15, Part E, Para 15.26 (b) of the Main Market Listing Requirements)

INTRODUCTION

This Statement on Risk Management & Internal Control is made pursuant to Paragraph 15.26 (b) of
the Main Market Listing Requirements issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad which requires the
Board of Directors of listed companies to include in its Company’s Annual Report a statement about
the state of its Risk Management and Internal Control for its group of companies.

The following statement outlines the nature and scope of the Group’s risk management and internal
controlin 2016.

BOARD’S RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of Directors of Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (the Board) acknowledges the importance of
maintaining a sound risk management and internal control system as well as reviewing its adequacy
and effectiveness to ensure good corporate governance.

The Board, whilst acknowledging its responsibility, recognises that the risk management and internal
conftrol system are designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risks that may impede the
achievement of the Group's business goals and objectives. Therefore, the system can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance, against the occurrence of any material misstatement,
fraud or losses.

To ensure the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control,
the Board has maintained full control over strategic, financial, organisational and compliance issues
and has put in place the formal lines of responsibility and delegation of authority.

The review of risk management and internal control reports and processes is delegated by the
Board to Audit Committee.

As for risk management, the Board has carried out an on-going process of identifying, evaluating as
well as deliberating and providing advice on matters pertaining to key corporate risks of the Group,
the mitigation measures and its action plans to ensure that key risk areas are managed to achieve
the Group's business objectives.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Board had undertaken the following processes
to provide reasonable assurance to further strengthen the Group's internal control system:

» The Group had established the holding-subsidiaries relationship through the appointment of
Board of Directors of respective subsidiaries to oversee business operations and maintain sound
Risk Management and Internal Conftrol system aft subsidiaries level.

* The Group has also performed comprehensive budgeting and forecasting exercises. The actual
performance against budget is analysed and reported on a quarterly basis to the Board. Timely
corrective actions are then taken.

* Key corporate risks are reviewed bi-annually by the Audit Committee and the Board taking
cognisance of changes in the regulatory, technology, operational procedures and business
environment in order to ensure the adequacy and integrity of the overall internal control system:s.
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The Code of Conduct is given to all staff upon joining the Group. They are required to strictly
adhere to the Code of Conduct in order to ensure high level of discipline and positive attitude
while executing their duties. The Code of Conduct is also an integral part of the internal control
system. It is the responsibility of all staff to maintain and practice sound risk management and
internal control as part of their accountability towards achieving the overall Group’s objectives.
The Customer Charteris a benchmark set by the Group for scrutinising and evaluating operational
efficiency and performances in accomplishing customer’s satisfaction. The Management is
committed to ensure the strict adherence to the Customer Charter at all levels of operation. For
any failure to meet the Customer Charter, the Management carry out service recovery initiatives.
Inrecognition of its sound management systems, the Group through its subsidiaries has successfully
managed to secure accreditations from various bodies and agencies as follows:

BINTULU PORT HOLDINGS BERHAD

a.

o.

Certified Information Security Management Systemin “Operation and Maintenance of Integrated
Port Management System (IPMS)"” (MS ISO/IEC 27001:2013) by CyberSecurity Malaysia
International Convention on Quality Control Circle 2016, Gold Award in Bangkok Thailand

BINTULU PORT SDN BHD

Certified Quality Management System in “Provision of Port Services” (ISO 9001:2008) by Bureau
Veritas Certification (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

Certified Environmental Management System in “Provision of Port Services” (ISO 14001:2004) by
Bureau Veritas Certification (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

Certified Occupational Health and Safety Management System in “Provision of Port Services”
(OHSAS 18001:2007) by Bureau Veritas Certification (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

Certified Malaysia Standards on Occupational Safety and Health Management System in
“Provision of Port Services” (MS 1722:2011) by Bureau Veritas Certification (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd
Certified HACCP System and Guidelines for its Application in *“Management of Food Hazard
Analysis System and Critical Control Point (HACCP) for the Handling of Palm Kernel Related
Products” by Bureau Veritas Certification (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

Certified Security Management System for the Supply Chain in “Provision of Port Operation
Services (Sea Patrol, Control Tower, Pilotage, Tug Assistance, Mooring Boat, Mooring Gang,
Stevedoring, Warehousing and Security Check - Point” (ISO 28000:2007) by Bureau Veritas
Certification (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

Certified in Trade, Collection and Storage & Transhipment "Handling of Palm Kernel Related
Products" (GMP+B3 2007) by Bureau Veritas Certification (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

Statement of Compliance under Section 249K Merchant Shipping Ordinance 1952 (ISPS Code
Certification) by Director General of Marine Malaysia

MSOSHOSH Award 2015, Gold Class 1 (ServicesSectors) inRecognition of Very Good Achievement
in 2015 OSH

BIPORT BULKERS SDN BHD

a.

Certified Quality Management System in “Handling and Storage of Edible Oil Products,
Crude Qil, Sludge and Edible Oil Based Feed Materials” (ISO 9001:2008) by Bureau Veritas
Certification (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

. Certified in Trade, Collection and Storage & Transhipment "Storage of Palm Fatty Acid

Distillate and Palm Kernel Fatty Acid Distillate Third Party" (GMP+B3 2007) by Bureau Veritas
Certification (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd
Certified HACCP System and Guidelines for its Application in *"Handling and Storage of
Edible Oil Products, Crude Oil, Sludge and Edible Oil Based Feed Materials” by Bureau Veritas
Certification (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd
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d. Certified ISCC EU (International Sustainability and Carbon Certification) for “Individual
Warehouse” by SGS Germany GmbH

e. Certified ISCC PLUS (International Sustainability and Carbon Certification) for “Individual
Warehouse” by SGS Germany GmbH

SAMALAJU INDUSTRIAL PORT SDN BHD

a. Statement of Compliance under Section 249K Merchant Shipping Ordinance 1952
(ISPS Code Certification) by Director General of Marine

CONTROL ENVIRONMENT AND STRUCTURE

The Board affirms its overall responsibility for the Group's system of risk management and internal
control which includes the establisnment of an appropriate control environment and framework
as well as reviewing its adequacy and integrity. Control environment is the primary elements in
the Risk Management and Internal Control system of the Group where it has in place policies and
procedures in key business processes and support functions which include financial reporting,
procurement and information systems.

All aspects of risk management and internal control are cascaded down by the Management
to permeate companywide in ensuring the successful implementation of risk management and
internal conftrol within the Group. Principal features of the Group’s intfernal confrol structure are
summarised as follows:

1. Organisational Structure and Responsibility Levels
The Group has an organisational structure with formal lines of authority and accountability which
sets out clear segregation of functions, roles and responsibilities to guarantee effective conftrol
at various levels of the Group. The Management is responsible for the implementation of the
Group's strategies and day-to-day businesses based on the established structures.

The organisational structures are reviewed from time to fime to address the changesin the business
environment as well as to keep abreast of current and future trending of new technologies,
products and services.

2. Internal Audit

Paragraph 15.27 of the Main Market Listing Requirements mandates a listed issuer to establish
Internal Audit function which is independent and reports directly to the Audit Committee. The
internal control practices are audited in-house by the Group Internal Audit to identify any non-
compliance elements of the policies, procedures, regulations and standards. Any irregularity or
significant finding by the Group Internal Audit is reported to the Audit Committee together with
recommendations for corrective measures on timely basis. The Management is responsible to
ensure that corrective actions are carried out within the determined time frame.

Group Internal Audit complements the role of the Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Unit by
independently reviewing risk profiles, risk management strategies and the adequacy and
effectiveness of the controls identified and implemented in response to the risk idenfified at
every audit engagement.

The Audit Committee regularly oversees the Group Internal Audit function, its independence,
scope of work and resources.
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3. Legal
The role of Group Legal Counsel is to advise the Board and Management on all legal matters.
It also plays a pivotal role in ensuring that the interests of the Group are legally preserved and
safeguarded. The Board is regularly updated through reports as and when there are introduction
of new legislations, new terms of business or changes in existing laws relevant to the Group.

4. Policies and Procedures
The Group's policies, procedures and authority limits have been clearly defined and documented
through the establishment of the relevant charters, Terms of Reference and organisational
structures. Information relating to Financial, Procurement and Contract Management, Human
Resources and Information Technology are accessible through the Group's Intranet and
manuals. Continuous efforts are made to enhance the Group’s control mechanism to reflect
the Group's growing business requirements and changing business strategy.

5. Financial and Operational Information
Financial and operational performances are monitored by the Management on a regular basis.
The financial performance of the Group is reported quarterly to comply with the MMLR.

Apart from this, the status of the business operations and safety performances are reported to
the Management on a monthly basis. The periodic reports are then presented to the respective
Boards to enable them to gauge the Group's overall performance.

Monitoring of the risk profiles is done at the risk owner’s level on quarterly basis. Information on
the enterprise risk profiles and mitigation strategies are submitted and reported to the Board
bi-annually.
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6. The Board Commitment
The current global business environment is very dynamic and challenging. In view of this the
Board is committed towards reviewing and improving the system of Risk Management and
Internal Conftrol in line with the ever changing business environment and current realities to
ensure the Group meets its business objectives and maintains its business sustainability.

KEY RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has instituted initiatives and measures to further strengthen all aspects of the Risk
Management and Internal Control of the Group through the following mechanismes:

1. Audit Committee regularly reviews and discusses the measures undertaken on Risk Management
and Internal Control issues identified by the Internal Audit, External Auditors and Management
for Board's approval. The Committee is equally accountable for the progress of actions taken to
manage and mitigate the risks.

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee recommends fo the Board any nominations, re-
election and composition of the Board. The Committee is also responsible to recommend the
appointment of the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Management as well as reviewing Human
Resources Policies of the Group. The Committee also recommends to the Board remuneration
packages for Directors, Chief Executive Officer and Senior Management.

3. Finance and Investment Committee oversees the Group's businesses in respect of the financial
affairs, budget, planning, financial risk and control, investment and development proposals and
make recommendations for the Board'’s approval.

4. Other Committees
In addition to the Board Committees, there are management committees established at the
subsidiaries level to support the execution of various programmes and activities as follows:

e Tender Committee at the respective subsidiaries are established to ensure that all tfender
administration and contract management are being carried out in accordance with the
approved policies and procedures. The Commifttee shall ensure that tender evaluation
exercises are conducted in an effective, transparent and fair manner based on guiding
principles of accountability fo the shareholders, published policy and procedures to ensure
value for money. The Approving Authority varies according to the tender value from the level
of Chief Executive Officer to the Board of subsidiaries and the Board of the holding company.

» Steering Committee for Privatisation and Extension of Concession Period to prepare the
proposal for submission to the relevant authorities;

» Steering Committee for the development of the Group’s 5 Year Strategic Plan and its strategic
direction;

* Inquiry Committee to identify the cause of accident and suggested preventive measures;

* Talent Committee to identify potential individual for key positions, assess and monitor their
development, as well as develop and review Group's Talent Management and Succession
Planning policy, procedure and process;

* Project Steering Committee to guide the Management and the Appointed Consultant / Advisors
on the development of Samalaju Port including overall monitoring of the said project; and

* Risk Steering Committee at Management Level for monitoring and assessing the tasks
specified under action plan in mitigating the corporate risks.
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5. Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)
Group Corporate Planning and Development oversees the Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)
Unit and reports directly to the Group Chief Executive Officer. The Unit, responsible for the
overall coordination of the Risk Management of the Group, work closely with Risk Focal Person
who undertakes the monitoring and assessing the risks controls in their respective Division and
Department.

The Division / Department are responsible for identifying, mitigating and managing risks within
theirrespective areas. At Group Level, a Corporate Risk Profile outlining the significant risks faced
by the Group is established and presented to the Board which covers the following:

Risk Description

Root Causes

Conseqguences of Risk

Current Confrol

Mitigation Strategies, Action Plan, Timeline and Risk Owner
Impact and Likelihood Rating

To ensure the mitigation strategies are in place and effectively implemented within the stipulated
timeline, the action plans taken and the targeted result are incorporated into the relevant
department’s Key Performance Indicators (KPI).

The Enterprise Risk Profiles is continuously updated detailing the significant risks, the status of risks
and the status of implementation of mitigation strategies for reviews by the Audit Committee
twice a year.

6. The Professionalism and Competence of Staff

The Group's objectives and plans have been periodically communicated to provide effective
and clear directions to all staff. Training and development programmes are identified and
scheduled for the staff to acquire the necessary knowledge, skills and core competencies to
enhance their professionalism.

To further gauge the level of staff professionalism and competencies, the Group adopted the
following mechanisms and initiatives:

Performance Appraisal System;

Key Performance Indicators;

Employees Satisfaction Survey;

Customer Satisfaction Survey; and

Inculcation of positive organisational values and cultures.

PRIMARY CONTACT

The primary contact pertaining fo Risk Management and Internal Control of the Group are as follows:

Group Chief Executive Officer Group Internal Audit

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad Binftulu Port Holdings Berhad
Tel :+6086 291001 (ext. 300) Tel :+6086 291001 (ext.380)
Fax : +60 86 253597 Fax : +60 86 291617

Group Corporate Planning and Development
Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad

Tel :+60 86291001 (ext.233)

Fax : +60 86 253263
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REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

The Board remains committed towardsimproving the system of internal control and risk management
process to meet its corporate objectives. The Board is of the opinion that the Group’s present
system of internal controls is sound and sufficient to safeguard the Group's interest and its business
operations. It is also satisfied that the risks taken are at an acceptable level within the control of the
business environment of the Group.

REVIEW OF THE STATEMENT BY INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL AUDITORS

In line with Paragraph 15.23 of the Bursa Malaysia Listing Requirements, the External Auditors have
reviewed this Statement on Risk Management and Internal Conftrol. Their review was performed
in accordance with Recommended Practice Guide (RPG) 5 issued by the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants.

Based on their review for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 and up to date of issuance of
the financial statements, the External Auditors have reported to the Board that nothing has come to
their attention that causes them to believe that this Statement is inconsistent with their understanding
of the processes adopted by the Board in all material aspects.

This Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control had been reviewed and affirmed by the
Internal Auditors as well as the External Auditors for inclusion in the Annual Report of the Group for
the financial year ended 31 December 2016 in accordance with Paragraph 15.26(b) of the Main
Market Listing Requirements.

Statement made in accordance with the Board'’s Resolution dated 11 January 2017.

Tan Sri Dr. Ali bin Hamsa Dato’ Sri Mohamed Khalid bin Yusuf @ Yusup
Chairman Independent Non-Executive Director
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« BOARD COMMITTEES REPORT

A Board Committee deals with a specific matter or general issues within
their respective Terms of Reference (TOR). It is expected to meet regularly

and report to the Board with recommendations on specific matters to
facilitate the Board in decision-making process.

= =

The Board of Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad had set up three (3) committees to undertake specific
duties and assist the Board in decision-making and to protect the interest of the Group in meeting
the business changing needs. The criteria for the membership are based on a Director’s skills and
experience, aswell as his ability to add value to the Board Committees. The Committees are the Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Finance and Investment Committee.

The respective Committees had their own TOR whereby they are empowered to deliberate, discuss
issues, recommend proposals as well as provide assurance through their recommendations and
feedbacks to the Board. The confirmed Minutes of the Committees shall then be circulated to alll
Board members in order to give opportunity to Non-Committee Members to seek any clarifications,
raise any queries or give views on the matters discussed.

The Committees comprised of members from the main Board itself where the Independent and
Non-Independent Directors play a leading role in these Committees. Two (2) of the Committees
namely Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee are chaired by the
Independent Non-Executive Directors whilst the Finance and Investment Committee is chaired by
Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The details of the Audit Committee’s composition, activities and number of meetings held during
the financial year ended 31 December 2016 are presented on pages 86 to 89 of this Annual Report.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The responsibilities of NRC amongst others are:

a) Toreview andrecommend to the Board, the appointment, extension of service and re-election
of the Directors, GCEO as well as Senior Management;

b) To assess the balance of Independent and Non-Independent Directors sitting on the Board
and the Board Committees;

c) To ensure that an orientation and induction programme is in place for new Board members;

d) To establish, review and recommend to the Board the remuneration packages of Chairman,
Directors, GCEO, Company Secretary and Senior Management. The Committee also reviews
and recommends the Terms and Conditions of Services; and

e) To determine Directors’ fees which are deliberated by the Committee and approved by the
Board as a whole. The Board recommends the remuneration payable to the Directors and any
changes thereof are subject to shareholders’ approval at the Annual General Meeting.
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The activities of the NRC during the financial year ended 31 December 2016 include the following:

i. Recruitment, appointment and re-election of Directors;

ii. Proposal on the Directors’ fees and remuneration packages for the Group CEO;

ii.  Appointment of the Company Secretary and Senior Management of the Company and its
subsidiaries;

iv. Review of the Succession Planning of the Senior Management;

v. Review of the new Organisation Structure for the Group's subsidiary companies; and

vi.  Appointment of the new GCEO

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of three (3) Directors, two (2) of whom
are Independent Directors.

Overall, there were seven (7) meetings held for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 as
follows:

Composition No. of Percentage of Attendance
P Meetings Attended (%)
Dato’ Sri Mohamed Khalid bin
Yusuf @ Yusup (Chairman)
(Appointed on 1 February 2016) 717 100
Independent Non-Executive Director
Datuk Fong Joo Chung (Member)
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 717 100

Datuk Nozirah bintiBahari (Member)
(Appointed on 1 February 2016) 5/5 100
Independent Non-Executive Director

Dato’ Seri Dr. Hj. Arshad bin

Hashim (Chairman)
(Resigned on 1 February 2016) 2/2 100
Independent Non-Executive Director

FINANCE AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Finance and Investment Committee assists and supports the Board's responsibility to oversee and
monitor the Groups’ Annual Budget including revenue and expenditure. The Committee is also responsible
to review and manage the capital expenditure for projects, business acquisitions and investment appraisals
undertaken by the Group as well as financial performance for enhancement of profitability.

There was one (1) meeting held for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 as follows:

Attendance of Committee Percentage of Attendance

Composition Meetings (%)

Datuk Nasarudin bin Md Idris
(Chairman) 1 100

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Dato’ Siti Zauyah binti Md Desa
(Member)

(Appointed on 1 June 2016) 1 100
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
Gen. Dato’ Seri DiRaja Tan Sri (Dr.)
Mohd Zahidi bin Hj. Zainuddin (R) : 100

(Member)
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
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(Pursuant to Chapter 15, Part C, Para 15.15 of the Main Market Listing Requirements)

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Dato' Sri Mohamad Norza bin Zakaria
Independent Non-Executive Director

Dato’ Yasmin binti Mahmood
Independent Non-Executive Director

Encik Dzafri Sham bin Ahmad
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

2. COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

A. The Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director of the Company with two
(2) other directors sitting as members and must be composed of not fewer than three (3)
members. All the Audit Committee members must be non-executive directors, with a majority of
them being independent directors and no alternate director can be appointed as a member
of the Audit Committee. The quorum for the meetings of the Audit Committee shall be two (2).

ve)

. Pursuant to Para 15.09 (1) (c) (i) by the MMLR of Bursa Malaysia, at least one (1) member of the
committee must be:
i. A member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (MIA); or
ii. Ifheisnotamember of the MIA, he must have at least three (3) years working experience; and
a. He must have passed the examinations specified in Part | of the First Schedule of the
Accountants Act, 1967; or
b. He must be a member of one (1) of the associations of accountants specified in Part Il of
the First Schedule of the Accountants Act, 1967; or
ii. Fulfils such other requirements as prescribed or approved by the Exchange.

Dato’ Sri Mohamad Norza bin Zakaria meets the specific requirement, where he is a holder
of an accounting qualification and Chartered Accountant under the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants (MIA) as well as a Fellow of Certified Practicing Accountant (CPA) of Australia.
Further, all other members have working familiarity with basic finance and accounting practices.

3. MEETINGS AND MINUTES

The Audit Committee shall meet at least four (4) times annually and additional meetings may
be called at any time at the Chairman’s discretfion. Audit Committee meeting comprises of
meetings on quarterly results and meetings on audit findings. A total of eight (8) Audit Committee
meetings were held during the financial year ended 31 December 2016; four (4) to discuss the
quarterly results and the remaining four (4) on management related matters including internal
audit findings.
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Details of the meetings are as follows:

No. of Meeting Place of Meeting Date Time
01/2016 Putrajaya Marriott Hotel 13 January 2016 3.00 pm
02/2016 Putrajaya Marriott Hotel 18 February 2016 3.00 pm
03/2016 Putrajaya Marriott Hotel 02 March 2016 5.00 pm
04/2016 Putrajaya Marriott Hotel 23 March 2016 3.00 pm
05/2016 Putrajaya Marriott Hotel 28 July 2016 2.00 pm
06/2016 Putrajaya Marriott Hotel 25 August 2016 4.00 pm
07/2016 Putrajaya Marriott Hotel 18 November 2016 5.00 pm
08/2016 Putrajaya Marriott Hotel 24 November 2016 3.30 pm

Attendance at Meetings

The quorum for each meeting shall be two (2) members of the Audit Committee. Attendance of
Audit Committee meetings for financial year ended 31 December 2016 are as follows:-

No. of meetings Percentage of Altendance

Name of Directors Attended (%)

Dato’ Sri Mohamad Norza

bin Zakaria (Chairman) S 1oL
Dato’ Yasmin binti Mahmood 5/8 70
Encik Dzafri Sham bin Ahmad 7/8 90

The Company Secretary acts as a secretary to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
meetings is also attended by GCEO, Head of Internal Audit, General Manager of Group Finance
and related auditees by invitation.

Minutes of each meeting have been circulated to the Board of Directors for information and
perusal. The decision made and actions required were then communicated to relevant process
owners.

4. SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES

A summary of the activities performed by the Committee during the financial year is set out
below:

A. Internal Audit

* Reviewed and approved Annual Audit Plan to ensure adequate scope and comprehensive
coverage of the Group's activities based on risk assessment approach;

* Ensured adequacy of resources and competencies of staff in executing the Audit Plan to
produce quality and reliable audit report;

* Reviewed contents of internal audit reports issued by Internal Audit on the effectiveness
and adequacy of governance, risk management, operational and compliance processes;

* Reviewed the proposed corrective actions to be implemented by the process owners; and

* Met the Internal Auditors without the presence of Management to obtain feedback
from them and to discuss measures that may enhance the Internal Audit function of the
Company.

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0s02-1) Annual Report 2016

87



1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
88  AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

B. External Audit

* Reviewed the External Auditors terms of engagement, nature and scope of work for financial
year 2016 and make recommendations for Board'’s approval;

* Reviewedthe findings from External Auditor Report especially the audited financial statement
and ensured proper management response on issues raised by the External Auditor;

* Reviewed and make recommendations to the Board for approval on the audit fees for the
External Auditor; and

* Met the External Auditor without the presence of Management to obtain feedback from
them and to discuss measures that may enhance the audit function of the Company.

C. Financial Results

The Committee also reviewed the Quarterly and Annual Financial Statements of the Group
and make recommendations to the Board for approval prior to announcements to
Bursa Malaysia.

. Annual Reporting

The Committee reviewed the Statement on Corporate Governance, Statement on Risk
Management and Internal Control and Audit Committee Report and make recommendations
for Board's approval before incorporating it in the Annual Report.

5. INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The internal audit functionis carried out by the Group Internal Audit of Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad.
The Group Internal Auditors works independently and are answerable to the Audit Committee.

The Internal Audit is also responsible:

To provide the Audit Committee with independent and objective reports on the state of
internal controls, risk management, governance processes and the extent of compliance to
the Group's established policies and procedures, and the relevant statutory requirements;
and

To provide reasonable assurance to the Audit Committee and to the Board based on audit
findings concerning the effectiveness of risk management, internal controls and governance
pProcesses.

A summary of the Internal Audit’s activities during the financial year are as follows:

Developed an annual audit plan using risk-based approach for the Group;

Conducted fourteen (14) audit studies based on the approved Audit Plan;

Conducted ten (10) follow up audits on corrective actions taken by the Management
pertaining to the previous audit findings;

Assisted the Committee to review the mitigation actions taken on the risk profiles and ensured
the significant risks are addressed; and

Conducted refresher programme on whistleblower policy for suppliers and vendors.

For the year 2016, the Group Internal Audit managed to perform its responsibilities with
independence, proficiency and due professional care so as to give assurance to the Board on
the integrity of its internal control and the reliability of the systems as a whole. The cost incurred in
running the in-house Group Internal Audit for the financial year 2016 was RM 872,404.50.
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6. EXTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The External Audit function is to carry out audit works based on the approved Audit Planning
Memorandum.

For the year under review, the External Auditor has carried out the followings:

* Audit on Financial Statements and other issues as per Audit Planning Memorandum;

e Preparation of reports and recommendations regarding opportunities for improvement to
the significant risk areas, internal control and financial matters areas based on observations
made in the audit works;

* Review of the Group Internal Audit assignments and reports in order to avoid duplication of
External and Internal Audit works and to ensure proper system of internal control of the Group
isin place; and

* Review of the Statement on Corporate Governance and Statement on Risk Management
and Internal Control for the Group. The details of Statement on Corporate Governance and
Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control can be found from page 60 to 75 and
page 76 to 82 respectively.

The Audit Committee believed and acknowledged that the engagement of External Auditor
and reports given by them for the financial year 2016 have not impaired their independence.
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o SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

COMMITTED TO CREATING SUSTAINABLE VALUE

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (the Group) is committed to creating long-term value for our
stakeholders and to safeguarding the future of the Group by upholding responsible management
and sustainable development policies and practices. Towards this end, the diverse business and
operational units within the Group continue to work together, tapping each other's strengths and
resources to integrate business sustainability into their respective organisations. The Group’s firm
commitments on sustainable progress is geared towards driving operational excellence to sustain
the momentum for the Group's continuous efforts in making improvements to strengthen business
efficiency and meeting the expectations of all stakeholders.

SCOPE AND METHODOLOGY

This Sustainability Statement underscores the Group's initial efforts to align with Bursa Malaysia’s
sustainability reporting requirements and standards. It showcases the Group's commitment to
undertake business in a responsible and sustainable manner through its Economic, Environmental
and Societal or EES performance.

This Sustainability Statement highlights the business sustainability activities of specific
components of Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad and its key subsidiaries, namely Bintulu Port Sdn
Bhd (BPSB), Biport Bulkers Sdn Bhd (BBSB) and Samalaju Industrial Port Sdn Bhd (SIPSB) during the
year 2016.

It is fo be read in conjunction with the rest of the Group's 2016 Annual Report, which also highlights
other financial and non-financial aspects of the Group's business.

APPROACHING SUSTAINABILITY MATTERS
Sustainability Governance

The Group’s commitment towards sustainable growth is evident throughout all levels of its
organisation. At the leadership level, the Board of Directors, Management and all executive
staff acknowledge the importance of pursuing an agenda that upholds good EES practices. The
Group's leadership is committed to investing in measures that promote the sustainable growth of
its businesses, create value for the shareholders and pursuing all those activities expected from a
good, responsible corporate citizen.

In carrying out the day to day functions, the employees in the Group are committed to the Group's
mission to enhance shareholders’ value, satfisfaction of all the stakeholders and at the same
time, making positive contributions towards the protection of our Environment and strengthening
relationship with the local communities.

Disclosure and External Assurance

The Group will be developing a formal sustainability structure and policy which will incorporate
practices and measures that would enable the Group to achieve its sustainability mission as
described above.

As this is our first consolidated Sustainability Statement issued pursuant to Practice Note 9, it has not
been subjected to external assurance. However, with the view to having future external assurance
with regard to the compliance by the Group of its Sustainability Statement, the Management is in
the process of streamlining our sustainability data collection and monitoring activities across the
Group.
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MATERIAL MATTERS

Whilst the Group has yet to undertake a formal materiality analysis to determine what matters are
of importance to our external stakeholders, the Group has identified several risks in key areas that
may have a direct or indirect impact on the Group's ability to create, preserve or enhance EES
values or deviation therefrom. The Group's risks in key areas, their possible impact on the Group,
as well as the related actions to mitigate these risks have been spelt out in the GCEO’s Message
and Management Discussion & Analysis section of this Annual Report and also identified in the
Occupational Health and Safety segment of this Sustainability Statement.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The expansion of the Group's port and related business operations is important for the economic
development in the hinterland of the Ports under the jurisdiction of the Group. The overall
performance of the Group and how its operations are conducted must meet the expectations of
all its stakeholders. Therefore, the Group would have to continue engagement with an increasing
number of diverse stakeholders. Proactive stakeholder engagement is a fundamental component
of the Group’s sustainability strategy and the Group is committed to undertaking continuous
activities in this area. Through proactive engagement with the many stakeholders, the Group is able
to respond to their different expectations, meet their changing needs and strengthen relationship
with them.

Stakeholder engagement is largely led by the respective business units whose operations are most
impacted by a particular stakeholder group. The Group engages with our stakeholders in a variety
of formal and informal settings. The focus areas for engagement with the stakeholders are shown
below:

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT MATRIX 2016

GROUP SUB-GROUP FOCUS AREAS
Employees * Management Training and skills development and
* Professional career development
e Technical Greater awareness of health and
e Support Group occupational safety
Participation in CSR activities
Better interaction and communication
between the sub groups
Measures aimed at  promoting
productivity and efficiency
Government/ e Port Authorities Legal and regulatory compliance

Regulatory Authorities

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (380802-7)

Department of
Occupational Safety
and Health
Department of
Environment

Human Resource
Department

Royal Customs
Department

Establishing better communication
and rapport with these Authorities
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GROUP

Customers o

Shareholders / Bankers

SUB-GROUP

Port users

Vendors and suppliers of

services
Trade and logistic
organisations

Institutional investors

FOCUS AREAS

Review of Customer Charter

Survey to obtain feedback on degree
of customer satisfaction

Reinforcing existing channels of
communication with Customers and
their agents

Expeditious response to Customers’
complaints and suggestions

Regular consultations and interaction
with Customers to seek ways to
improve quality of service.

Enhancing  communication  and

and Investors e Public / minority providing information and data on
shareholders Group Financial performance and
* Banks and other business plan
financial institutions e Improving our Annual Report
e Fund Managers e Regular briefing sessions for fund
e Rating Agencies managers and when necessary to
* MSWG MSWG
Community e Localcommunitiesand ¢ Activities designed for interaction with

their organisations
Local charities and
welfare bodies
Sports & Recreational
Clubs

local communities and organisations
as part of the promotion of the Group
as a good and responsible corporate
cifizen

Taking measures to protect the
Environment and promoting healthy
lifestyle in the community where the
Group operates

MANAGEMENT OF SUSTAINABILITY MATTERS IN 2016
In managing sustainability matters, the Group has during the year 2016, undertaken the followings:
A. Environmental Monitoring and Auditing Programme

The Group has carried out a programme of environmental monitoring and auditing and would
continue to assess the effectiveness of mitigation measures which are in place, to ensure the
Environment remains clean and conducive to a healthy lifestyle.

Among the aspects monitored through these programmes are:-
Water Quality;

Marine Biology;

Sediment Quality;

Air Quality;

Noise Level;

Disposal of municipal and scheduled wastes;

Usage of clean energy for port operations generally;

Water and energy conservation awareness; and

3R Programmes (Reduce, Reuse and Recycle).
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Environmental Management System (EMS 14001)

The management of the above environmental monitoring programmes has resulted in BPSB

achieving ISO14001 certification since 2010. The Group will continue to improve the effectiveness
of its Environmental Management System and promoting environmental awareness through the
programmes set out above.

Meanwhile in the year 2016, the Group has received the following awards and accolades in
recognition of the Group’s actions relating to the Environment. Details of these are found on
pages 98 to 99 of this Annual Report.

B. Occupational Health and Safety

Occupational Safety

The Group is fully committed to providing a safe and healthy environment for all employees
and for all stakeholders to operate in. Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) standards and
regulations applicable for the operations in the Group, are based on compliance with
regulatory requirements as well as adherence to the Integrated Management System (IMS)
Policy which was established in 2014. These include requirements for the safeguarding of health,
safety, environment and quality. It also calls for regular reviews of the relevant HSE-related
management systems and programmes to ensure continual improvement and adherence to
these regulatory requirements.

For occupational safety and health, the base guidelines are OHSAS 18001:2007 and
MS 1722:2011. BPSB was certified in 2010 and recertified on March 2016.

Occupational safety focuses on promoting safe working conditions. The Group organises a
series of activities regularly to inculcate in the employees an attitude of showing concern
for and appreciating the importance of taking measures for the good of their own safety
and health. The activities carried out throughout the year of 2016 involved adhering to
compliance standards as per IMS. HSE walkabouts and joint inspections with other agencies
were conducted to ensure quality and safety standards were being met.

The Group also launched 14 Life Saving Rules (LSR) on 6 September 2016 designed to create a
safe working environment among employees as well as port users. LSR is implemented in port
operation activities and violating the code is a serious issue that could lead to removal from

OOOSBME
O20DVO®

14 Life Saving Rules (LSR)
All machineries and vessels entering Bintulu Port area are required to hold valid certifications
of compliance with local or international regulations such as from Department of Safety and
Health (DOSH), DOE, International Maritime Organisations (IMO), International Convention
for the Prevention of Pollution from Ships (MARPOL 73/78), International Safety Guide for Oil
Tankers and Terminals (ISGOTT) and Malaysian Shipping Ordinance (MSO).
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The Group has maintained good safety performance records over the past few years. The
Group's lost time injury (LTl) frequency rate is acceptable compared with other international
and local companies. In year 2016, five (5) LTI cases were recorded throughout the Group,
with one (1) fatality case. The fatality case involved a contractor working at height at BPSB in
January 2016. The circumstances of the case were thoroughly investigated and resolved. All
necessary precautions to prevent exposure to potential hazards or accidents or injuries, have
been adequately addressed and put in place.

. Occupational Health

Various programmes have been implemented to ensure that the working environment at
the Ports are not hazardous or would not cause injurious effects or damage to the health
of the Group’s workforce or persons having access to the Group’s premises or workplace.
These programmes include health and hygiene inspections, medical examinations, health
risk assessments, noise assessments, general health awareness promotions and fraining
programmes. Amongst such programmes was the Health Screening and Blood Donation
Campaign organised at the Wisma Kontena on 6 September 2016 in conjunction with Bintulu
Port Holdings Berhad HSE Day 2016.

As Zika cases in Malaysia were on the rise during 2016, the Group initiated the Gotong Royong
Perdana on 28 October 2016 which was aimed at cleaning mosquito breeding areas at the
Group sites with the motto, “Tiada Aedes, Tiada Zika”.

Health hazards may be physical, chemical, biological, ergonomic or psychological in nature.
The Group has assessed all possible health risks in the workplace and established control
measures where required in order fo maintain a healthy work environment. The aim in
conducting risk assessments is to ensure that all of the hazards associated with work activities
are identified and their associated risks assessed through the following measures:

e Chemical Health Risk Assessment (CHRA);
* Chemical Exposure Monitoring (CEM); and
* Noise Audiometric Testing Programme.

C. Emergency Preparedness

The Group’s emergency management plans are focused on prevention, preparedness, response
andrecovery when an emergency situation occurs. The Group uses a three (3) tiered approach to
emergency management with processes and tools to effectively manage emergency response,
business confinuity and crisis management efforts.
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The Group maintains and will continue to maintain and update emergency notification
procedures, and assemble emergency teams, conducts drills and maintains relationships with
organisations that provide emergency response support and advice.

D. Talent Retention, Training and Development

The Group is committed to attract talents having appropriate competencies, experience and
qualifications. Towards retention of talents, the Group provides ample opportunities for career
progression. Training and development opportunities for all staff involve the sharpening of skills,
motivational level and exposure to new concepts of management, leadership, acquisition of
knowledge and new technologies.

A variety of fraining and development programmes were conducted in 2016 to cater for different
employees’ needs and operational requirements. For the year 2016, the Group invested
RM2.5 million for this purpose and also organised mandatory and functional courses internally
and externally as follows:

NUMBER OF COURSES 2016 (MANDATORY & NON-MANDATORY)

MANDATORY NO. OF NON-MANDATORY NO. OF TOTAL NO. OF

COURSES PARTICIPANTS COURSES PARTICIPANTS PARTICIPANTS
JANUARY 8 77 4 9 86
FEBRUARY 6 59 8 36 925
MARCH 4 105 11 122 227
APRIL 6 36 23 153 189
MAY 6 50 27 206 256
JUNE 6 40 7 13 53
JULY 10 278 7 106 384
AUGUST 7 36 17 102 138
SEPTEMBER 7 58 14 62 120
OCTOBER 15 184 17 125 309
NOVEMBER 12 116 18 158 274
DECEMBER 4 27 8 47 74

E. Succession Planning

Towards ensuring the continuity of attaining operational efficiency, expansion of its business
operation and enhancement of shareholder value, the Group has already embarked on
developing a succession planning programme since 2016. This includes a Talent Management
Programme whose objective is to identify and develop current managers to take on Senior
Management roles and grow the talent pool.
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F. Community Engagement Initiatives

For year 2016, the Group undertook several community enrichment activities. The examples of
these activities can be found under Corporate Activities 2016 section on pages 100 to 104 of this
Annual report.

G. Customer Satisfaction Index (CSI)

Bintulu Port has been monitoring the progress of its customer satisfaction level annually through
our Customer Satisfaction Index (CSl). The CSI has become one of main KPI measures for the
Group. InNovember 2016, an annual customer satisfaction survey was carried out among internal
and external customers in order to improve service quality and take corrective measures on any
shortfall. In an effort to gain a better understanding of and attain a better customer satisfaction
level, the Group also conducted Customer Focused Group sessions with selected industries or
sectors. These sessions serve as a useful platform for our customers to share their thoughts, views
and experiences about our port services. The Group has a good understanding of customers’
expectations and ensures that all feedbacks from Customers on the services and facilities of
the Group are carefully analysed for suitable follow up actions to remedy any shortcomings
disclosed.

H. Commitment to Quality

The Group's operating companies are committed to continually improve their management
systems and to implement various quality activities to ensure they remain at the leading edge of
their respective fields. The listing of quality certifications for the Group’s various subsidiaries can
be found on pages 98 to 99 of this Annual Report.

TOWARDS A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE

As a good corporate citizen, the Group is genuinely committed to balancing our good Economic
performance with responsible Environmental and Social considerations. Even as the Group sets
our sights on delivering a sustainable performance on the EES fronts, the Group will endeavour to
ensure that the notion of sustainability becomes embedded within our organisation as an important
corporate culture. As the Group ventures forth in its undertakings, the Group will endeavour to deliver
true and sustainable value as well as establish long-term relationships with our many stakeholders so
that the Group is recognised as a model for responsible corporate behaviour.

Statement made in accordance with the Board's Resolution dated 9 March 2017.

Tan Sri Dr. Ali bin Hamsa Dato’ Sri Mohamed Khalid bin Yusuf @ Yusup
Chairman Independent Non-Executive Director
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS
AWARDS & RECOGNITIONS
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A. BINTULU PORT HOLDINGS BERHAD

i3

2%

Certfified Information Security Management System in “Operafion and Maintenance of Intfegrated Port
Management System (IPMS)” (MS ISO/IEC 27001:2013) by CyberSecurity Malaysia.
International Convention on Quality Control Circle 2016, Gold Award in Bangkok Thailand.

B. BINTULU PORT Sdn Bhd

Certified Quality Management System in *Provision of Port Services” (ISO 9001:2008) by Bureau Veritas Certification
(Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

Certified Environmental Management System in “Provision of Port Services” (ISO 14001:2004) by Bureau Veritas
Certification (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

Certified Occupational Health and Safety Management System in “Provision of Port Services” (OHSAS 18001:2007)
by Bureau Veritas Certification (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

Certified Malaysia Standards on Occupational Safety and Health Management System in “Provision of Port
Services" (MS 1722:2011) by Bureau Veritas Cerfification (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

Certified HACCP System and Guidelines for its Application in *“Management of Food Hazard Analysis System and
Critical Control Point (HACCP) for the Handling of Palm Kernel Related Products” by Bureau Veritas Certification
(Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

Certified Security Management System for the Supply Chain in “Provision of Port Operation Services (Sea Patrol,
Confirol Tower, Pilotage, Tug Assistance, Mooring Boat, Mooring Gang, Stevedoring, Warehousing and Security
Check - Point” (ISO 28000:2007) by Bureau Veritas Certification (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

Cerfified in Trade, Collection and Storage & Transhipment "Handling of Palm Kernel Related Products" (GMP+B3
2007) by Bureau Veritas Certification (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

Statement of Compliance under Section 249K Merchant Shipping Ordinance 1952 (ISPS Code Certification) by
Director General of Marine Malaysia.

MSOSH OSH Award 2015, Gold Class 1 (Services Sectors) in Recognition of Very Good Achievement in 2015 OSH
Performance.

C. BIPORT BULKERS Sdn Bhd

Certified Quality Management System in “Handling and Storage of Edible Oil Products, Crude Qil, Sludge and
Edible Oil Based Feed Materials” (ISO 9001:2008) by Bureau Veritas Certification (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

Certified in Trade, Collection and Storage & Transhipment “Storage of Palm Fatty Acid Distillate and Palm Kernel
Fatty Acid Distillate Thrid Party" (GMP+B3 2007) by Bureau Veritas Certification (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd

Certified HACCP System and Guidelines for its Applicafion in “Handling and Storage of Edible QOil Products, Crude
Qll, Sludge and Edible Oil Based Feed Materials” by Bureau Veritas Certification (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

Certfified ISCC EU (International Sustainability and Carbon Certification) for “Individual Warehouse™ by Bureau
Veritas Cerfification Germany GmbH.

Certified ISCC PLUS (International Sustainability and Carbon Certification) for “Individual Warehouse” by Bureau
Veritas Cerfification Germany GmbH.

D. SAMALAJU INDUSTRIAL PORT Sdn Bhd

il

Statement of Compliance under Section 249K Merchant Shipping Ordinance 1952 (ISPS Code Certificatfion) by
Director General of Marine Malaysia
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TADIKA MONTESSORI ACTIVITIES
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PROFILE OF BINTULU PORT SDN BHD (BPSB)

Company No. 254396-V

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Datuk Fong Joo Chung Chairman
Tan Sri Datuk Amar Hj. Mohamad .
Morshidi bin Abdul Ghani Director
Encik Dzafri Sham bin Ahmad Director
COMPANY SECRETARY WEBSITE
Abu Bakar bin Husaini http://www.bpsb.com.my
(LS0009926)
PLACE OF INCORPORATION
REGISTERED OFFICE Incorporated in Malaysia
Lot 15, Block 20, Kemena Land District
12" Mile, Tanjung Kidurong Road TELEPHONE
97000 Bintulu, Sarawak, Malaysia +60 86 291001 (30 Lines)
AUDITORS FAX
Messrs. Ernst & Young +60 86 253597

Chartered Accountants

PRINCIPAL BANKER
Malayan Banking Berhad

OPERATIONAL & FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Cargo Throughput (Million Tonnes) 46.00 44.74 45.40 43.80 41.16
Container Handled (TEUs) 277,711 243,699 270,495 250,353 231,053
Vessel Calls 7,457 7,329 8,478 8,239 7,581
Turnover (RM Million) 539.99 507.42 510.16 493.00 470.79
Profit Before Taxation (RM Million) 188.11 170.72 186.88 172.58 165.72
Paid-up Capital (RM Million) 65.00 65.00 65.00 65.00 65.00
Total Shareholder's Fund (RM Million) 429.45 395.55 371.62 336.50 389.59
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PROFILE OF BIPORT BULKERS SDN BHD (BBSB)

Company No. 635147-V

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman

o) SN el L L W U s (Re-designation as Chairman on 1 February 2016)

Dato’ Yasmin binti Mahmood Director

Director

Datuk Nozirah binti Bahari (Appointed on 1 February 2016)

Chairman

Dato’ Seri Dr. Hj. Arshad bin Hashim (Resigned on 1 February 2016)

COMPANY SECRETARY WEBSITE
Abu Bakar bin Husaini hitp://www.biportbulkers.com.my
(LSO009926)
PLACE OF INCORPORATION
REGISTERED OFFICE Incorporated in Malaysia
Lot 15, Block 20, Kemena Land District
12" Mile, Tanjung Kidurong Road TELEPHONE
97000 Bintulu, Sarawak, Malaysia +60 86 255101
AUDITORS FAX
Messrs. Ernst & Young +60 86 255117 / 255114

Chartered Accountants

PRINCIPAL BANKER
Malayan Banking Berhad

OPERATIONAL & FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Cargo Throughput (Million Tonnes) 3.65 3.57 3.56 3.21 2.93
Turnover (RM Million) 41.11 41.89 41.70 36.78 35.41
Profit Before Taxation (RM Million) 16.97 17.59 17.51 14.80 14.63
Paid-up Capital (RM Million) 40.00 40.00 40.00 40.00 40.00
Total Shareholders’ Fund (RM Million) 124.46 117.94 107.76 94.80 65.71
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PROFILE OF SAMALAJU INDUSTRIAL PORT SDN BHD (SIPSB)

Company No. 406345-H

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Datuk Nasarudin bin Md Idris
Tan Sri Dr. Ali bin Hamsa

Dato’ Siti Zauyah binti Md Desa

Gen. Dato’ Seri DiRaja Tan Sri (Dr.) Mohd Zahidi
bin Hj. Zainuddin (R)

Dato’ Sri Mohamad Norza bin Zakaria

COMPANY SECRETARY
Abu Bakar bin Husaini
(LS0009926)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Lot 15, Block 20, Kemena Land District
12" Mile, Tanjung Kidurong Road
97000 Bintulu, Sarawak, Malaysia

AUDITORS
Messrs. Ernst & Young
Chartered Accountants

PRINCIPAL BANKER
CIMB Bank Berhad

WEBSITE

Chairman
Director

Director

Director

Director

http://www.samalajuport.com.my

PLACE OF INCORPORATION

Incorporated in Malaysia

TELEPHONE

+60 86 296800

FAX

+60 86 296838

OPERATIONAL & FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2016
Cargo Throughput (Tonnes) 450,050
Vessel Calls 40
Turnover (RM'000) 8,210
(Loss) / Profit Before Taxation (RM'000) (56)
Paid-up Capital (RM'000) 600,000
Total Shareholder’s Fund (RM'000) 574,782
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS

Tan Sri Dr. Ali bin Hamsa

Dato’ Siti Zauyah binti Md Desa

Tan Sri Datuk Amar Hj. Mohamad Morshidi bin Abdul Ghani
Gen. Dato’ Seri DiRaja Tan Sri (Dr.) Mohd. Zahidi bin Hj. Zainuddin (R)
Datuk Fong Joo Chung

Datuk Nasarudin bin Md Idris

Dzafri Sham bin Ahmad

Dato’ Sri Mohamad Norza bin Zakaria

Dato’ Sri Mohamed Khalid bin Yusuf @ Yusup

Dato’ Yasmin binti Mahmood

Datuk Nozirah binti Bahari

REGISTERED OFFICE / PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Lot 15, Block 20, Kemena Land District

12th Mile, Jalan Tanjung Kidurong

97000 Bintulu, Sarawak

AUDITORS
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BANKERS
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIRECTORS' REPORT

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial statements
of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities during the financial
year.

RESULTS
Group Company
RM’'000 RM’'000
Profit net of tax 149,839 111,146

Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 149,839 111,146

There were no material tfransfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than
as disclosed in the financial statements.

In the opinion of the Directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during
the financial year were not substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material
and unusual nature.

DIVIDENDS

In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2015 as reported in the Directors’
report of that year:

RM’'000
Final single tier dividend of 6.00 sen per share on 460,000,000 ordinary shares,
paid on 27 May 2016 27,600
In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2016 :
First interim single tier dividend of 6.00 sen per share on 460,000,000 ordinary shares,
paid on 12 August 2016 27,600
Second interim single tier dividend of 6.00 sen per share on 460,000,000 ordinary shares,
paid on 14 October 2016 27,600
Third interim single tier dividend of 6.00 sen per share on 460,000,000 ordinary shares,
paid on 28 December 2016 27,600
110,400
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIRECTORS' REPORT

DIVIDENDS (Continued)

The Directors recommend the payment of a final single fier dividend of 6.0 sen per share on
460,000,000 ordinary shares, amounting to RM27,600,000, which, subject to the approval of members
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company, will be paid on 23 May 2017 to
shareholders registered on the Company's Register of Members at the close of business on 12 May
2017. The financial statements for the current financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend.
Such dividend, if approved by the shareholders, will be accounted for in equity as an appropriation
of retained earnings in the financial year ending 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS

The names of the Directors of the Company in office since the date of the last report and at the
date of this report are:

Tan Sri Dr. Ali bin Hamsa
Tan Sri Datuk Amar Hj. Mohamad
Morshidi bin Abdul Ghani
Gen. Dato’ Seri DiRaja Tan Sri (Dr.)
Mohd. Zahidi bin Hj. Zainuddin (R)
Datuk Fong Joo Chung
Datuk Nasarudin bin Md Idris
Dzafri Sham bin Ahmad
Dato’ Sri Mohamad Norza bin Zakaria
Dato’ Sri Mohamed Khalid bin Yusuf @ Yusup
Dato’ Yasmin binti Mahmood
Datuk Nozirah binti Bahari
Dato’ Siti Zauyah binti Md Desa (Appointed on 1 June 2016)

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsist any
arrangement to which the Company was a party, whereby the Directors might acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director has received or become entitled to receive
a benefit (other than benefits included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due
and receivable by the Directors as shown in Note 11 to the financial statements) by reason of a
contract made by the Company or a related corporation with any Director or with a firm of which
a Directoris a member or with a company in which a Director has a substantial financial interest.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

According to the register of Directors’ shareholdings, none of the Directors in office at the end of
the financial year had any interest in shares in the Company or its related corporations during the
financial year.

ISSUE (OR-CALL UP) OF SHARES

There were no changes in the issued and paid up capital of the Company during the financial year.

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0s02-1) Annual Report 2016
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

a)

d)

f)

Before the statements of comprehensive income and statements of financial position of the
Group and of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps:

i) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts
and the making of provision for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that there were
no known bad debts and that no provision for doubtful debts was necessary; and

ii) fo ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their values as shown in
the accounting records in the ordinary course of business had been written down to an
amount which they might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would
render:

i) it necessary to write off any debts or to make any provision for doubtful debts in respect
of the financial statements of the Group and the Company; and

ii) the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company misleading.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen
which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the
Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise
dealt with in this report or financial statements of the Group and of the Company which would
render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading.

At the date of this report, there does not exist:

i) any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the
end of the financial year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

ii) any contingent liability of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end
of the financial year except for Note 40.

In the opinion of the Directors:

i) no contingent or otherliability has become enforceable orislikely to become enforceable
within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which will or may
affect the ability of the Group or of the Company to meet their obligations when they fall
due; and

ii) no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval
between the end of the financial year and the date of this report which is likely to affect
substantially the results of the operations of the Group or of the Company for the financial
year in which this report is made.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

AUDITORS

The auditors, Ernst & Young, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated 9 March 2017.

Tan Sri Dr. Ali bin Hamsa Datuk Fong Joo Chung
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
PURSUANT TO SECTION 169 (15) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

We, Tan Sri Dr. Ali bin Hamsa and Datuk Fong Joo Chung, being two of the Directors of Bintulu
Port Holdings Berhad, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the Directors, the accompanying
financial statements set out on pages 117 to 192 are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of
the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2016 and of their financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended.

The information set out in Note 42 on page 193 to the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised
Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing
Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated 9 March 2017.

Tan Sri Dr. Ali bin Hamsa Datuk Fong Joo Chung
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATUTORY DECLARATION

STATUTORY DECLARATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 169 (16) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

|, Daiana Luna Suip, being the Officer primarily responsible for the financial management of
Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the accompanying financial
statements set out on pages 117 to 193 are in my opinion correct, and | make this solemn declaration
conscientiously believing the same to be frue and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory
Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed
Daiana Luna Suip at Bintulu in the State of Sarawak
on 9 March 2017.

Before me, Daiana Luna Suip

Magdalene Lucas
Q 082
Commissioner For Oath
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Note

Revenue from port services rendered 4
Revenue from construction services for

concession infrastructure 4
Revenue from bulking services 4
Dividend income from subsidiaries 4
Management fee charged

to subsidiaries 4
Other income 5
Cost of construction services 6
Employee benefit expenses 7
Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment 15
Amortisation of intangible assets 17
Charter hire of boats
Maintenance dredging costs 31

Fuel, electricity and ufilities

Insurance expenses

Leasing of land and port facilities 8
Repair and maintenance

Service contracts

Ofther expenses 10

Total expenses

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (380802-7)
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Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
548,207 510,015 - -
581,356 388,418 - -
35,409 37,341 - -
- - 115,200 112,200
- - 33,188 32,102
1,164,972 935,774 148,388 144,302
2,582 939 - -
(581,356) (388,418) - -
(85,226) (82,563) (26,254) (25,887)
(31,150) (30,492) (177) (130)
(125,975) (124,871) (21) (56)
(12,854) (13,609) - -
(10,682) (11,250) - -
(17,327) (20,111) (63) (68)
(3.144) (3,753) (44) (29)
(1,250) (1,250) - -
(32,592) (28,694) (276) (162)
(32,449) (22,883) - -
(31,550) (24,561) (11,916) (11,920)
(965,555) (752,455) (38,821) (38,252)
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

Group Company
Note 20146 2015 20146 2015
RM’'000 RM’'000 RM'000 RM'000
Operating profit 201,999 184,258 109,567 106,050
Finance costs 9 (28,776) (28.299) - -
Finance income 5 27,756 12,516 1,579 975
Profit before tax 200,979 168,475 111,146 107,025
Income tax (expense) / credit 12 (51,140) (40,206) - 1,085
Profit net of tax, representing
total comprehensive income
for the year 149,839 127,569 111,146 108,110
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 149,839 127,569 111,146 108,110
Earnings per share

Basic (sen) 13 32.57 27.73

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial
statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

Group Company
Note 2016 2015 2016 2015
RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 15 316,096 335,345 1,547 886
Investment in subsidiaries 16 - - 940,000 940,000
Intangible assets 17 1,924,674 1,510,468 815 523
Deferred tax assets 23 52,818 50,782 - -
2,293,588 1,896,595 942,362 941,409
Current assets
Inventories 24 6,563 440 - -
Concession financial assets 19 25,982 24,527 - -
Trade receivables 25 46,240 27,395 - -
Other receivables 18 32,271 22,892 2,287 1,385
Other current assets 20 25,882 23,621 376 94
Investment in securities 21 25,000 58,963 5,000 16,963
Cash and bank balances 22 626,462 808,254 20,493 10,302
788,400 966,092 28,156 28,744
Total assets 3,081,988 2,862,687 970,518 970,153
Equity and liabilities
Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Share capital 26 460,000 460,000 460,000 460,000
Share premium 26 430,818 430,818 430,818 430,818
Retained earnings 27 265,858 226,419 77,145 76,399
Total equity 1,156,676 1,117,237 967,963 967,217
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

Note

Non-current liabilities
Other payables 30
Loan and borrowings 29
Contractual obligation for

lease payments 28
Current liabilities
Other payables 30
Loans and borrowings 29
Contractual obligation for

lease payments 28
Provision for maintenance

dredging costs 31

Income tax payable

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM’'000 RM’000 RM'000 RM’'000
31,364 35,587 926 915
944,207 704,050 - -
644,015 746,865 - -
1,619,586 1,486,502 926 9215
164,972 116,977 1,629 2,021
13,533 13,533 - -
102,851 88,431 - -
11,250 22,500 - -
13,120 17,507 - -
305,726 258,948 1,629 2,021
1,925,312 1,745,450 2,555 2,936
3,081,988 2,862,687

970,518

970,153

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial

statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Non-distributable Distributable

Share Share Retained Equity
Capital Premium Earnings Total
Note RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’000
Group
20146
Opening balance at
1 January 2016 460,000 430,818 226,419 1,117,237
Total comprehensive income - - 149,839 149,839
Transactions with owners
Dividends on ordinary shares 14 - - (110,400)  (110,400)
Closing balance at
31 December 2016 460,000 430,818 265,858 1,156,676
2015
Opening balance at
1 January 2015 460,000 430,818 213,850 1,104,668
Total comprehensive income - - 127,569 127,569
Transactions with owners
Dividends on ordinary shares 14 - - (115,000)  (115,000)
Closing balance at

31 December 2015 460,000 430,818 226,419 1,117,237

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial
statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Non-distributable Distributable
Share Share Retained Equity
Capital Premium Earnings Total
Note RM’'000 RM’'000 RM'000 RM’000
Company
2014
Opening balance at
1 January 2016 460,000 430,818 76,399 967,217
Total comprehensive income - - 111,146 111,146
Transactions with owners
Dividends on ordinary shares 14 - - (110,400)  (110,400)
Closing balance at
31 December 2016 460,000 430,818 77,145 967,963
2015
Opening balance at
1 January 2015 460,000 430,818 83,289 974,107
Total comprehensive income - - 108,110 108,110
Transactions with owners
Dividends on ordinary shares 14 - - (115,000) (115,000)
Closing balance at
31 December 2015 460,000 430,818

76,399

967,217

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial

statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Group Company
20146 2015 20146 2015
Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM’000
Operating activities
Profit before tax 200,979 168,475 111,146 107,025
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of intangible assets 17 125,975 124,871 91 56
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 15 31,150 30,492 177 130
Finance costs ? 28,776 28,299 - -
(Gain) / loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 5/10 (533) (13) 1 -
Dividend income 4 - - (115,200)| [(112,200)
Interest income 5 (27,756) (12,516) (1,579) (975)
Other current assets written off 10 533 - - -
Loss on disposal of inventories 10 - 293 - -
Property, plant and equipment
written off 10 - 12 - -
Staff gratuities 30 1,847 1,860 - -
Provision for maintenance
dredging costs 31 10,682 11,250 - -
Directors’ gratuities 30 186 200 186 200
Reversal of foreseeable losses 10 (6,700) - - -
Write off of work-in-progress 10/17 13,056 - - -
Total adjustments 177,216 184,748 (116,324) (112,789)
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

Group Company
20146 2015 20146 2015
Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Operating cash flows before

working capital 378,195 353,223 (5,178) (5,764)
Changes in working capital
Decrease in inventories - 1,921 - -
Increase in trade and other receivables (19,426) (11,205) (582) (223)
(Increase) / decrease in other

current assets (11,933) 1,819 (282) 80
Increase / (decrease) in other payables 46,689 21,148 (736) 34
Net change in subsidiaries balances - - (319) (3,229)
Net change in concession finance assets (1,455) (24,527) - -
Total changes in working capital 13,875 (10,844) (1.919) (3.338)
Cash flow generated from /

(used in) operations 392,070 342,379 (7,097) (92,102)
Payment of lease rental 28 (115,996) (117,482) - -
Payment of maintenance

dredging costs 31 (21,932) - - -
Income tax paid (57.563) (43,450) - (529)
Income tax refunded 343 1,005 343 983
Directors’ gratuities paid 30 (175) (384) (175) (384)
Staff gratuities paid 30 (4,198) (3.372) - -
Net cash flows generated from /

(used in) operating activities 192,549 178,696 (6,929) (92,032)
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

Investing activities

Interest received

Acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Increase in intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of inventories

Net dividend received

Net movement in fixed deposits placed

Net cash flows (used in) /
generated from investing activities

Financing activities

Dividends paid

Purchase / (disposal) of investment
Proceeds from SUKUK financing
Interest paid on term loan

SUKUK interest paid

Repayment of term loan

Net cash flows generated from /
(used in) financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year

Note

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 125

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’'000 RM’000 RM'000 RM’'000

5 27,756 12,516 1,579 975
15 (14,078) (11,635) (839) (345)
17 (514,055) (323,100) (383) (109)
3.018 174 - -

- 360 - -

- - 115,200 126,500

86,078 (60,568) - -

(411,281) (382,253) 115,557 127,021
14 (110,400) (115,000) (110,400)  (115,000)
33,963 (58,963) 11,963 (16,963)

29 250,000 682,783 - -
(1,211) (1,701) - -

(37,733) - - -

(11,600) (11,600) - -
123,019 495,519 (98,437)  (131,963)
(95,713) 291,962 10,191 (13.974)

545,486 253,524 10,302 24,276

22 449,773

545,486

20,493

10,302

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2016

1.

2.1

2.2

Corporate information

The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia,
and is listed on the Main Market of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

The principal place of business of the Company is located at Lot 15, Block 20, Kemena Land
District, 12" Mile, Jalan Tanjung Kidurong, 97000 Bintulu, Sarawak.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 16.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities during the
financial year.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS”), International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have also been prepared on the
historical cost basis except as disclosed in the accounting policies below.

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company are presented in Ringgit Malaysia
(“RM”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (RM'000) except when otherwise
indicated.

Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year
except as follows:

On 1 January 2016, the Group and Company adopted the following new and amended MFRSs

and IC Interpretation (“collectively referred to as “pronouncements”) which are mandatory
for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016:

Effective for

annual periods

beginning on or

Description after

Amendments to MFRS 101: Presentation of Financial Statements:

Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 119: Employee Benefits — Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contribution 1 January 2016

The initial application of the above mentioned pronouncements do not have any material
impact to the financial statements of the Group and Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2016

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.3 Standards issued but not yet effective

The standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective up to the date of
issuance of the Group's and Company'’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Group
and Company intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

Effective for

annual periods

beginning on or

Description after

Amendments to MFRS 107:

Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2017
Amendments to MFRS 112:

Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses 1 January 2017
MFRS 9: Financial Instruments (2014) 1 January 2018
MFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
Amendments to MFRS 15:

Revenue from Contracts with Customers: Clarifications 1 January 2018
MFRS 16: Leases 1 January 2019

The Group and Company are currently assessing the implication of adopting the above
pronouncement.

(a) MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

MFRS 15 replaces the guidance in MFRS 111 Construction Contracts, MFRS 118 Revenue,
IC Interpretation 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes, IC Interpretation 15, Agreements for
Construction of Real Estate, IC Interpretation 18, Transfers of Assets from Customers and
IC Interpretation 131, Revenue — Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. The
Group and the Company are currently assessing the financial impact that may arise
from the adoption of MFRS 15.

(b) MFRS 9 Financial Instruments

MFRS 9 replaces the guidance in MFRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement on the classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, and on hedge accounting. The Group and the Company are currently assessing
the financial impact that may arise from the adoption of MFRS 9.

(c) MFRS 16 Leases

MFRS 16 replaces existing leases guidance in MFRS 117 Leases, IC Interpretation 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, IC Interpretation 115 Operating
Leases — Incentives, and IC Interpretation 127 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The Group and Company are currently assessing the
financial impact that may arise from the adoption of MFRS 16.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2016
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.4 Standards not applicable to the Group and the Company

The MASB has issued pronouncements which is not yet effective, but for which is not relevant
to the operations of the Group and of the Company and hence, no further disclosure is

warranted.

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or

Description after

Amendments to MFRS 2: Share-based Payment:

Clarification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions 1 January 2018
Amendments to MFRS 10: Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture To be determined

Amendments to MFRS 128: Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture To be determined

2.5 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at the reporting date. The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are prepared for the same reporting
date as the Company. Consistent accounting policies are applied for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances.

The Company conftrols an investee if and only if the Company has all the following:

(i)  Power over the investee (i.e existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee);

(i)  Exposure, orrights, to variable returns from its investment with the investee; and

(i)  The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, the Company
considers the following in assessing whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee
are sufficient to give it power over the investee:

(i)  The size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

(i)  Potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;

(i) Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(iv) Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does
not have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.
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2,

25

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. All infra-group balances, income
and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full except for unrealised losses, which are not eliminated when there are
indications of impairment.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interests even if that results in a
deficit balance.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
conftrol over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity fransactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group's interests and the non-conftrolling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. The resulting difference is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

Business combinations

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets and liabilities of
the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest, is recognised in profit or loss. The subsidiary’s
cumulative gain or loss which has been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss or where applicable, fransferred directly
to retained earnings. The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date control is lost is regarded as the cost on initial recognition of the investment.

Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-conftrolling interests in the acquiree.

The Group elects on a transaction-by-transaction basis whether to measure the non-
conftrolling interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Transaction costs incurred are expensed off and included in
administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed
for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date through profit or loss.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2016
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.6 Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has all the following.

(i)  Power over the investee (i.e existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee);

(i)  Exposure, orrights, to variable returns from its investment with the investee; and
(i)  The ability to use its power over investee to affect its returns.

In the Company's separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment losses. On disposal of such investments, the difference between net
disposal proceeds and their carrying amounts is included in profit or loss.

2.7 Service concession arrangements

The Group recognises revenue from the construction and upgrading of the infrastructure in
accordance with its accounting policy for construction contracts set out in Note 2.8. Where
the Group performs more than one service under the arrangement, consideration received
or receivable is allocated to the components by reference to the relative fair values of the
services delivered, when the amounts are separately identifiable.

The Group recognises the consideration received or receivable as a financial asset to the
extent that it has an unconditional right to receive cash or another financial asset for the
construction services. Financial assets are accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in Note 2.13.

The Group recognises the consideration receivable as an intangible asset to the extent that
it receives aright to charge users of the public service. Intangible assets are accounted forin
accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.9.

Subsequent costs and expenditures related to infrastructure and equipment arising from
the Group’'s commitments to the concession contfracts or that increase future revenue are
recognised as additions to the intangible asset and are stated at cost. Capital expenditures
necessary to support the Group’s operation as a whole are recognised as property and
equipment, and accounted for in accordance with the policy stated under property and
equipment in Note 2.10. When the Group has confractual obligations that it must fulfill as a
condition of its license to: a) maintain the infrastructure to a specified standard or, b) to restore
the infrastructure when the infrastructure has deteriorated below a specified condition, it
recognises and measures these contractual obligations in accordance with the accounting
policy for provisions in Note 2.19. Repairs and maintenance and other expenses that are
routine in nature are expensed and recognised in the profit or loss as incurred.
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2,

2.8

2.9

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction confract can be reliably estimated, contract revenue
and confract costs are recognised as revenue and expenses respectively by using the stage
of completion method. The stage of completion is measured by reference to the proportion
of confract costs incurred for work performed to date to the estimated total contract costs.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
revenue isrecognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Contract revenue comprises the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract and
variafions in confract work, claims and incentfive payments to the extent that it is probable
that they will result in revenue and they are capable of being reliably measured.

Intangible assets
(a) Concession intangible assets

A concession intangible asset is measured at the fair value of consideration transferred
to acquire the asset, which is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
for the construction services delivered. The intangible asset is amortised over its expected
useful life in a way that reflects the pattern in which the asset’'s economic benefits are
consumed by the entity, from the date when the right to operate starts to be used. Based
on these principles, a concession intangible asset is amortised in line with the actual
usage of the specific public facility, with a maximum of the duration of the concession.
Concession intfangible assets are amortised using straight-line method of amortisation
over the concession period. Concession intangible assets under construction are not
depreciated as these assets are not yet available for use.

The concession intangible assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from their future use or disposal or when the contractual
rights to the assets expire.
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2,

2.9

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Goodwill on acquisition of a subsidiary

Gooduwill is initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at
cost less accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwillacquired is allocated, from the acquisition
date, to each of the Group's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination.

The cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that the cash-generating unit may be
impaired, by comparing the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit, including the
allocated goodwill, with the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised in the profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised for
goodwill are not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that
cash-generating unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed
of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or
loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured
based on the relative fair values of the operations disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Software

Software acquired separately is measured on initial recognition at cost. Software has
a finite useful life and is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses.

Software is amortised on a straight line basis over its estimated useful life of ten years.
The policy for the recognition and measurement of impairment losses is in accordance

with Note 2.12. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2016
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.10 Property, plant and equipment

Allitems of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. When significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Group and the
Company recognise such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation,
respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the
carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Assets under construction included in property, plant and equipment are not depreciated
as these assets are not yet available for use. Other property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of each asset to their residual value
over the estimated useful life, at the following annual rates:

Building and bulking facilities 25 years
Machinery and equipment 5—-14 years
Motor vehicles 5-10years
Office furniture, fittings and equipment 5-10years
Vessels 14 - 20 years

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-
end, and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future

economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition of
the asset is included in the profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.11 Inventories

Inventoriesrepresentlanded development properties in the staff housing project and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories include the expenditure
incurred in acquiring the land, direct cost and appropriate proportions of common costs
afttributable to developing the properties to completion.

Any gains or losses on the disposal of inventories are recognised in the profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

2.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group and the Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication
that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when an annual impairment
assessment for an asset is required, the Group and the Company makes an estimate of the
asset’s recoverable amount.

For intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life and intangible assets that are not
yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting date or more
frequently when indicators of impairment are identified.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units (“CGU")).

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by an
asset are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is written down to its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of a CGU or groups of CGUs
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to those units
or groups of units and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit or
groups of units on a pro-rata basis.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. A
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment
loss wass recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its
recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously.
Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss.
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2,

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised in the statement of financial position when, and only when,
the Group and the Company become a party to the contractual provisions of the financial
instfruments.

Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, normally being the transaction price
plus, in the case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transactions costs.

The Group and the Company determine the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition. All financial assets of the Group and the Company are classified as loans and
receivables.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets categorised as loans and receivables
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, and
through the amortisation process.

Loans and receivables of the Group and the Company comprise tfrade and other receivables
and cash and bank balances.

A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows from the
asset has expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.14 Impairment of financial assets

The Group and the Company assess at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset is impaired.

To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets
has been incurred, the Group and the Company consider factors such as the probability of
insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or significant delay in
payments. For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets that
are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis based on similar risk characteristics. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group's and the Company's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period and observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

If any such evidence exists, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’'s original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of frade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When a tfrade receivable becomes uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount of reversal is
recognised in profit or loss.

2.15 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability.

Financial liabilities, within the scope of MFRS 139, are recognised in the statement of financial
positionwhen, and only when, the Group and the Company become a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument. All financial liabilities of the Group and Company are
classified as other financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2016
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.15 Financial liabilities (Continued)

(a) Other financial liabilities

The Group’s and Company's other financial liabilities include other payables, loan and
borrowings, and concession lease payable.

Other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable tfransaction
costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Loans and borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group and Company
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting date.

Concession lease payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Concession lease
payables are classified as current liabilities unless the Group and Company has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months.

For other financial liabilities, gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised, and through the amortisation process.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is extinguished.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is tfreated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or
loss.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.16 Revenue recognition

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Rendering of services

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at
the fair value of consideration received or receivable.

Revenue from port operations and bulking services are recognised on an accrual basis
when the services are performed.

Construction contracts

Revenue from construction contfracts is accounted for by the stage of completion
method as described in Note 2.8.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
Management fee

Management fees are recognised when services are rendered.

2.17 Income taxes

(@)

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates to
items recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.17 Income taxes (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided for, using the liability method, on temporary differences at
the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, unabsorbed capital allowances, unused tax losses
and other unused tax credits o the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unabsorbed capital
allowances, unused tax losses and other unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the assets is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, where they intend to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be
realized simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that the future taxable profit will be available against which the
related tax benefit can be realized.

Goods and Services tax (“GST")
The net amount of GST, being the difference between output and input of GST payable

to or receivable from the authorities at the reporting date, is included in frade and other
receivables or frade and other payables in the statements of financial position.

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0s02-1) Annual Report 2016

139



AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
140 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2016
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.18 Employee benefits

(a) Short term benefits

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an expense
in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group
and of the Company. Short term accumulating compensated absences such as paid
annual leave are recognised when services are rendered by employees that increase
their entitlement to future compensated absences, and short term non-accumulating
compensated absences such as sick leave are recognised when the absences occur.

(b) Defined contribution plan

The Group and the Company participate in the national pension scheme as defined
by the laws of the country in which it has operations. The Group and the Company
makes contributions to the Employees Provident Fund in Malaysia, a defined confribution
pension scheme. Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the related service is performed.

2.19 Provisions

A provision isrecognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group or the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined
by discounting the expected future net cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflect current market
assessments of the fime value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting
is used, the accretion in the provision due to the passage of fime is recognized as finance cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the reporting date. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the control of the Group and of
the Company, are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the possibility of an outflow of economic resources is considered remote.

2.20 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits, and

short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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2,

2.2]

2.22

2.23

2.24

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying asset if they are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of that asset. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress and the expenditures and borrowing costs are incurred. Borrowing costs
are capitalised until the assets are substantially completed for their infended use or sale.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group and the Company incurred
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Operating lease

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. The aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the lessor is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Segment reporting

For management purposes, the Group is organised into operating segments based on
their products and services which are independently managed by the respective segment
managers responsible for the performance of the respective segments under their charge.
The segment managers’ report directly to the management of the Company who regularly
review the segment results in order to allocate resources to the segments and to assess the
segment performance. Additional disclosures on each of these segments are shown in Note
39. including the factors used to identify the reportable segments and the measurement basis
of segment information.

Share capital and share issuance expenses

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences aresidual interest in the assets of the Group
and the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are equity instruments.

Ordinary shares are recorded at the proceedsreceived, net of directly attributable incremental
fransaction costs. Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are
recognised in equity in the period in which they are declared.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2016
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.25 Fair value measurements

The Group and the Company measure financial instruments, such as, derivatives, and
investment properties, at fair value at each reporting date. Also, fair values of the financial
instruments measured at amortised cost are disclosed in Note 35.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid fo transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group and the
Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes info account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group and the Company use valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Allassets and liabilities for which fair values are measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurements as a whole:

Level T - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities; or

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly olbservable; or

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group and the Company determine whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group and the Company have determined
classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of nature, characteristics and risks of the assets or
liabilities and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
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3.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting date.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates that could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected
in the future.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Impairment of concession intangible assets for Samalaju Industrial Port

The Group assesses concession intangible assets which are not yet available for use
for impairment at the end of each reporting period by comparing its carrying amount
with its recoverable amount. This requires an estimation of the recoverable amount by
estimating the value-in-use of the cash-generating unit (“CGU”). Estimating a value-in-
use amount requires management to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the CGU and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Further details are disclosed in Note 17.

(b) Useful lives of concession intangible assets

Concession intangible assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the concession
period. The management considers that this is in line with the pattern in which the asset’s
economic benefits are consumed by the Group.

(i) Useful lives of concession intangible assets of BPSB for the purpose of the extension
of concession agreement

Forconcessionintangible assets that are constructed for the purpose of the extension
of concession agreement, these intangible assets are amortised on a straight line
basis over the extended period base on the approval in principle given by Ministry
of Finance (“MOF") to renew the concession subject to terms and conditions to be
decided.

(c) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the assets’ estimated economic useful lives. Management estimates the useful lives of
these property, plant and equipment to be within 5 to 25 years. Changes in the level of
usage and technological developments could impact the economic useful lives and the
residual values of these assets. Therefore, future depreciation charges could be revised.
The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment at the reporting
date is disclosed in Note 15.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2016

3. Significant accounting judgements and estimates (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based on the likely
timing and level of future profits together with future planning strategies.

The carrying value of deferred tax assets of the Group at 31 December 2016 was

RM70,392,000 (2015: RM79,658,000).

4. Revenue

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Revenue from port services rendered 548,207 510,015 - -
Revenue from construction services

for concession infrastructure 581,356 388,418 - -

Revenue from bulking services 35,409 37,341 - -

Dividend income from subsidiaries - - 115,200 112,200

Management fee charged to
subsidiaries - - 33,188 32,102
1,164,972 935,774

148,388 144,302

The revenue from construction services is in respect of the construction and upgrading of
port facilities, accounted for in accordance with IC Interpretation 12 Service Concession

Arrangements.
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5. Otherincome

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000
Finance income:
Interest income from:
- Current account 46 50 - -
- Short term deposits 27,637 12,382 1,579 975
- Staff loans 73 84 - -
27,756 12,516 1,579 975
Other income:
Rental income 136 90 - -
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 533 13 - -
Others 1,913 836 - -
2,582 939 - -
6. Cost of construction services
Group
2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Cost of construction services for
concession infrastructure 581,356 388,418

The Group considers the fair value for the consideration for the services rendered in the
acquisition or construction and upgrade of the infrastructure approximates the cost incurred
as all the construction works are subcontracted out.
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7. Employee benefit expenses

Group Company

20146 2015 20146 2015
RM’'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Wages, salaries, allowance and bonus 63,453 62,063 19,073 19,183

Defined contribution plan
(Employees Provident Fund) 9,355 9.182 2,978 3,040
Staff gratuities 1,847 1,860 - -
Other employee benefits 10,571 9,458 4,203 3,664
85,226 82,563 26,254 25,887

8. Leasing of land and port facilities
Group

20146 2015

RM’000 RM’000
Land lease 1,250 1,250
The above land lease expense relates to rental of land from Bintulu Port Authority (“BPA”) by
Biport Bulkers Sdn. Bhd..
9. Finance costs
Group
2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Unwinding of discount (Note 28) 27,565 26,598
Interest expense on term loan 1,211 1,701

28,776 28,299
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10. Other expenses

Group Company
20146 2015 20146 2015
RM’'000 RM'000 RM’'000 RM’'000
The following items have been included
in arriving at other expenses:
Auditors’ remuneration
- Current year 289 258 105 90
Non-Executive Directors (Note 11)
- Fees 1,523 1,570 925 956
- Other emoluments 623 660 499 536
Rental of equipment 912 1,193 77 72
Rental of premises 377 312 3,864 3,800
Reversal of provision for foreseeable loss (6,700) - - -
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment - - 1 -
Other current assets written off 533 - - -
Loss on disposal of inventories - 293 - -
Intangible assets work-in-progress
written off 13,056 - - -
Property, plant and equipment
written off - 12 - -
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11. Directors’ remuneration

The details of remuneration received and receivable by Directors of the Group and of the
Company during the year are as follows:

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Non-Executive Directors:
- Fees 1,523 1,570 925 956
- Meeting and other allowances 437 460 313 336
1,960 2,030 1,238 1,292
- Directors’ gratuities 186 200 186 200

2,146 2,230 1,424 1,492

The number of Directors of the Company whose total remuneration during the financial year
fall within the following bands is analysed below:

Number of
Directors
20146 2015
Non-executive Directors:
Below RM50,000
RM50,001 - RM100,000
RM100,001 - RM150,000

RM150,001 - RM200,000
RM200,001 - RM250,000

—  00ON —
— 5 0ON N
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12. Income tax expense

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2016 and

2015 are:
Group Company
20146 2015 20146 2015
RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000
Statement of profit or loss:
Current income tax:
Malaysian income tax 52,902 47,781 - -
Under / (over)provision in previous years 274 (10,791) - (1,085)
53,176 36,990 - (1,085)
Deferred income tax (Note 23):
Origination and reversal of
temporary differences 2,091 (499) - -
(Over) / underprovision in previous years (4,127) 2,571 - -
Effect of changes in tax rate - 1,844 - -
(2,036) 3.916 - -
Income tax expense / (credit)
recognised in profit or loss 51,140 40,9206 -

(1,085)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2016
12. Income tax expense (Continued)

The reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by
the applicable corporate tax rate for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 are as

follows:
Group Company
2014 2015 2014 2015
RM’000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000
Profit before tax 200,979 168,475 111,146 107,025
Tax at Malaysian statutory tax
rate of 24% (2015: 25%) 48,235 42,119 26,675 26,756
Adjustments:
Non-deductible expenses 144,386 97.701 493 318
Income noft subject to tax (139,526) (97.135) (27.470) (28.,050)
Under / (over)provision of tax
expenses in previous years 274 (10,791) - (1,085)
(Over) / underprovision of deferred
tax in previous years (4,127) 2,571 - -
Deferred tax assets not
recognised during the year 1,898 4,597 302 976
Effect of changes in tax rate - 1,844 - -
Income tax expense / (credit)
recognised in profit or loss 51,140 40,906 - (1,085)

Current income tax is calculated at the statutoty tax rate of 24% (2015: 25%) of the estimated
assessable profit for the year.
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13. Earnings per share
(a) Basic
Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing profit for the year, net of tax,
attributable to owners of the Company by the number of ordinary shares outstanding

during the financial year.

The following tables reflect the profit and share data used in the computation of basic
earnings per share for the years ended 31 December:

Group
20146 2015
RM'000 RM’'000
Profit net of tax 149,839 127,569
Group
2014 2015
‘000 ‘000
Number of ordinary shares for basic
earnings per share computation 460,000 460,000
Group
20146 2015
Basic earnings per share for
profit for the year (sen) 32.57 27.73
(b) Diluted

The diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share as there are no
dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding.

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares
between the reporting date and the date of authorisation of these financial statements.
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14. Dividends

Dividends in respect Dividends recognised

of the year in year
2014 2015 20146 2015
RM’000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000
Final single fier dividend for 2014
- 6.00 sen per share - - - 27,600
Special single tier dividend for 2014
- 3.00 sen per share - - - 13,800
Interim single tier dividend for 2015
- 6.00 sen per share - 27,600 - 27,600
- 4.00 sen per share - 18,400 - 18,400
- 6.00 sen per share - 27,600 - 27,600
Final single tier dividend for 2015
- 6.00 sen per share - 27,600 27,600 -
Interim single tier dividend for 2016
- 6.00 sen per share 27,600 - 27,600 -
- 6.00 sen per share 27,600 - 27,600 -
- 6.00 sen per share 27,600 - 27,600 -

82,800 101,200 110,400 115,000

The Directors recommend the payment of a final single fier dividend of 6.0 sen per share on
460,000,000 ordinary shares, amounting to RM27,600,000, which, subject to the approval of
members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company, will be paid on 23
May 2017 to shareholders registered on the Company’s Register of Members at the close of
business on 12 May 2017. The financial statements for the current financial year do noft reflect
this proposed dividend. Such dividend, if approved by the shareholders, will be accounted for
in equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the financial year ending 31 December
2017.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2016
15. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Office
Furniture,
Fittings
Motor and
Vehicle Equipment Total
RM’'000 RM’000 RM’'000
Company
Cost:
At 1 January 2015 594 302 896
Additions 182 163 345
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 776 465 1,241
Additions 425 414 839
Disposals - (2) (2)
At 31 December 2016 1,201 877 2,078
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2015 165 60 225
Charge during the year 79 51 130
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 244 111 355
Charge during the year 21 86 177
Disposals - (1) (1)
At 31 December 2016 335 196 531
Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2015 532 354 886

At 31 December 2016 866 681 1,547
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16. Investment in subsidiaries
Company
2014 2015
RM’'000 RM’'000

Unqguoted shares in Malaysia, at cost 940,000 940,000

Proportion of

Country of Ownership
Name of subsidiaries Incorporation Principal activities Interest
2014 2015
Held by the Company:
% %
Bintulu Port Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Provision of port services at 100 100

Bintulu Port, Sarawak

Biport Bulkers Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Provision of bulking 100 100
installation facilities for
palm oil, edible ails,
vegetables oils, fats and
its by-products

Samalaju Industrial Port Malaysia Development and provision 100 100
Sdn. Bhd. of port services at

Samalaju Port,
Bintulu, Sarawak

All subsidiaries are audited by Ernst & Young, Malaysia.
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17. Intangible assets

Goodwill
on
Concession Acquisition Capital
Intangible of a Work-in-
Assets  Subsidiary Software progress Total
RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000

Group
Cost:
At 1 January 2015 2,420,825 15 15,837 195,960 2,632,637
Additions 11,066 - 185 311,849 323,100
Reclassification from property,

plant and equipment - - - 15,082 15,082
Reclassification to property,

plant and equipment - - - (2,921) (2,921)
At 31 December 2015 and

1 January 201 2,431,891 15 16,022 519,970 2,967,898
Additions 805 - 454 552,286 553,545
Reclassification to property,

plant and equipment (265) - - (43) (308)
Write off* - - - (13,056) (13,054)
Transfer from capital

work-in-progress 6,211 - 1,195 (7.,406) -
At 31 December 2016 2,438,642 15 17,671 1,051,751 3,508,079
Accumulated amortisation:
At 1 January 2015 1,312,303 - 8,431 - 1,320,734
Charge during the year 123,558 - 1,313 - 124,871
Adjustment (Note 28) 11,825 - - - 11,825
At 31 December 2015 and

1 January 2016 1,447,686 - 9.744 - 1,457,430
Charge during the year 124,603 - 1,372 - 125,975
At 31 December 2016 1,572,289 - 11,116 - 1,583,405
Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2015 984,205 15 6,278 519,970 1,510,468

At 31 December 2016 866,353 15 6,555 1,051,751 1,924,674

* Included in this amount is RM11.6 million written off cost on design and consultancy cost on
Second Inner Harbour.
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17. Intangible assets (Continued)

Interest expense capitalised during the year under capital work-in-progress of the Group
amounted to RM39,490,000 (2015: RM309,288).

Work-In-
Software Progress Total
RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000

Company
Cost:
At 1 January 2015 421 70 491
Additions 96 13 109
Transfer from capital-work-in-progress 83 (83) -
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 600 - 600
Additions 383 - 383
At 31 December 2016 983 - 983
Accumulated amortisation:
At 1 January 2015 21 - 21
Charge for the year 56 - 56
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 77 - 77
Charge for the year 91 - 21
At 31 December 2016 168 - 168
Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2015 523 - 523
At 31 December 2016 815 - 815
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2016
17. Intangible assets (Continued)

Key assumptions used in value-in-use calculations of Samalaju Industrial Port impairment
assessment (“CGU")

The recoverable amounts of the CGU have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations using cash flow projections covering a 40-year period which is the length of the

concession period.

The following describes each key assumption on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing on the concession intangible assefts:

a) Discountrate

Value-in-use was determined by discounting the future cash flows generated by applying
the discount rate of 8.0% (2015: 7.5%).

The rate used to discount future cash flows is subject to change in economic conditions
and is reviewed annually.

b) Revenue
Revenue growth is based on projected cargo volume obtained from a survey done by
port users for 7 years and published tariff rates issued by Samalaju Port Authority. Projected
cargo volume is assumed to be constant after 7 years.

c) Expenses
Expenses are annually escalated at 3% (2015: 3%).

d) Port operations
Samalaju Port is expected to begin operations by Quarter 2, 2017.

Sensitivity fo changes in assumptions

With regards to the assessment of value-in-use, management believes that no reasonably

possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying values to
materially exceed their recoverable amounts.
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18. Other receivables

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’000

Amount due from subsidiaries - - 1,417 754
Interest receivable 1,467 379 27 96
Staff loans 2,006 1,788 527 6
Sundry receivables 28,798 20,381 316 185
Tax recoverable - 344 - 344
32,271 22,892 2,287 1,385

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable on
demand.

19. Concession financial assets
Group

2016 2015
RM’000 RM’000

At 1 January 24,527 -
Facilitation fund receivable 59,102 78,185
Facilitation fund received (57.647) (53,658)
At 31 December 25,982 24,527

Concession financial assets comprises facilitation fund receivable from the Government of
Malaysia for construction services rendered in respect of Samalaju Port development project
up to 31 December 2016.

20. Other current assets

Group Company
2014 2015 2014 2015
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Prepaid operating expenses 25,882 23,621 376 94

Included in prepayment was prepaid base rental for the first quarter of the following year of
RM18,431,452 (2015: RM16,755,865) paid to Bintulu Port Authority (“BPA”).

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0s02-1) Annual Report 2016



AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
162 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2016

21.

22.

Investment in securities

Wholesale money market fund
quoted in Malaysia,
at carrying amount

Market value of quoted funds
in Malaysia

Cash and bank balances

Cash at banks and on hand

Deposits with licensed
financial institutions:

Short term deposits with
licensed banks

Money market instruments purchased
under repurchase agreements

Cash and bank balances

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (380802-7)

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
25,000 58,963 5,000 16,963
24,936 59,141 4,987 17,060

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM’000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000
16,843 27,954 2,043 5,002
519,809 645,100 15,000 5,000
89.810 135,200 3.450 300
609,619 780,300 18,450 5,300
626,462 808,254 20,493 10,302
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22. Cash and bank balances (Continued)

The effective interest rates and the mafturities of deposits as at the balance sheet date were

as follows:

Group

Deposits with licensed banks

Money market instruments
purchased under
repurchase agreements

Company

Deposits with licensed banks

Money market instruments
purchased under
repurchase agreements

Interest rate Maturity
2016 2015 20146 2015
% % Days Days

3.40-4.10 4.00-4.56 31-365 31-184

2.50-2.75 3.00-3.30 4-18 4-27
3.80 4.00 31-33 31-33
2.70-2.75 3.00 7-18 6

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the

following at the reporting date:

Cash and bank balances
Less: Deposits with maturity

period of more than 3 months

Cash and cash equivalents

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (380802-7)

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
626,462 808,254 20,493 10,302

(176,689) (262,768) - .

449,773 545,486 20,493 10,302
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23. Deferred tax (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off

current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same
tax authority. The amounts determined after appropriate offsetting, are as follows:

Group
2014 2015
RM’000 RM’000
Deferred tax assets (70,392) (79.658)
Deferred tax liabilities 17,574 28,876

(52,818)  (50,782)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM'000
Unabsorbed tax losses 6,932 17,615 6,932 5,957
Unutilised capital allowances 34,753 16,160 675 391
41,685 33,775 7,607 6,348
24. Inventories
Group
2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Landed development properties in staff housing project,
at net realisable value 6,563 440

A wholly-owned subsidiary, Bintulu Port Sdn. Bhd., is the registered proprietor of all parcels of
land for the housing project, free from all encumbrances except for caveats lodged by the
end financiers.

Foreseeable losses amounting to RM6,700,000 were recognised due to the uncertainty of

project completion and the ability of BPSB to sell the houses. The project was revived in 2003
and completed in 2005 and was handed over to BPSB on 17 March 2006.
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24. Inventories (Continued)

During the year, the provision for foreseeable losses is reversed as all issues in respect of the
housing project was only resolved in 2016. Among others:

a) Consent Order for final settlement of the land issues with the former developer was only
granted by the Court on 30 October 2013;

b) Payment of land premium to Land & Survey was effected on 14 September 2016;

c) The Issue Document of Title in respect of the individual sublot was only issued by Land &
Survey Office on 6 February 2017.

Currently, BPSB has appointed its solicitors to prepare the necessary Memorandum of Transfer
in Favour of each individual buyers and now pending completion of the same.

25. Trade receivables
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 15 to 45 days (2015: 15 to 45
days) terms. Other credit terms are assessed and approved on a case-by-case basis. They are
recognised at their original invoice amounts which represent fair values on initial recognition.
Trade receivables include amounts due from Malaysia LNG Sdn. Bhd. and other subsidiaries of
a substantial shareholders, Petroliam Nasional Berhad, with the amount of RM10,084,978 (2015:
RM16,202,836) and RM2,641,902 (2015: RM1,148,840) respectively.

Ageing analysis of trade receivables

The ageing analysis of the Group's tfrade receivables is as follows:
Group
2014 2015
RM'000 RM’000

Trade receivables - LNG:

Neither past due nor impaired 15,101 15,311
1 to 15 days past due not impaired 3 2,768
More than 15 days past due not impaired 440 209
443 2,977

15,544 18,288

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0s02-1) Annual Report 2016



AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 167

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2016
25. Trade receivables (Continued)

Ageing analysis of trade receivables (Continued)

Group
2014 2015
RM’000 RM’'000

Trade receivables - Non LNG:

Neither past due nor impaired 19,539 4,486
1 to 45 days past due not impaired 1,255 568
More than 45 days past due not impaired 5,202 210
6,457 778

25,996 5,264

41,540 23,552

Trade receivables - bulking services:

Neither past due nor impaired 2,187 2,628
1 to 30 days past due not impaired 2 545
31 to 60 days past due not impaired - 330
61 to 90 days past due not impaired - 7
More than 90 days past due not impaired 164 17
166 899

2,353 3,527

Trade receivables - port services at Samalaju:

Neither past due nor impaired 2,252 209
1 to 30 days past due not impaired 26 21
31 to 60 days past due not impaired 68 86
61 to 90 days past due not impaired 1 -
95 107

2,347 316

46,240 27,395
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25.

26.

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (380802-7)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired relate to customers for whom there
were no default.

None of the Group’s trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have been
renegoftiated during the financial year.

Receivables that are past due but not impaired

The Group has tfrade receivables amounting fo RM7,160,840 (2015: RM4,761,663) that are past
due at the reporting date but not impaired. The trade receivables for LNG, Non-LNG and
bulking services are secured by bank guarantee or other form of credit enhancements. The
trade receivables from port services at Samalaju are unsecured in nature.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience and no adverse information to date,
the directors of the Group are of the opinion that no allowance for impairment is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in the credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

Share capital and share premium

Group Company
20146 2015 20146 2015
RM’'000 RM’'000 RM'000 RM’'000
Avuthorised share capital:
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares
of RM1 each 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
One special rights redeemable
of RM1(“Special Share”) * * * *
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
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26. Share capital and share premium (Continued)

Number of Ordinary

Shares of RM1 Each < Amount >
Share
One Special Capital Total
Share Rights (Issued Share
Capital Redeemable and Capital
(Issued and Preference Fully Share and Share
Fully Paid) Share Paid) Premium  Premium
‘000 ‘000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM’'000
Group / Company
At 1 January 2015 /2016 and
31 December 2015/ 2016 460,000 * 460,000 430,818 890,818

* The Special Share amounted RM1.
The Special Share

The Special Share, which may only be held by or transferred to the Minister of Finance
(Incorporation) or its successors or any Minister, representative or any person acting on behalf
of the Government of Malaysia, carries certain rights as provided by Article 15A and 109(A) of
the Company'’s Articles of Association.

These special rights include:

(i)  theright to appoint not more than four persons at anytime as directors of the Company;

(i)  theright to repayment of the capital paid up on the Special Share in priority to any other
member in the event of winding-up of the Company; and

(i) the right to require the Company to redeem the Special Share at par at any fime.

Certain matters, in particular, the alteration of specified Articles (including the Articles relating
to the limitation on shareholdings), any substantial disposal of assets, amalgamation, merger
and takeover, require prior approval of the holder of the Special Share.

The Special Share does not carry any right to vote at General Meetings but the holder is entitled
to attend and speak at such meetings.
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27. Retained earnings

The Company may distribute dividends out of its entire retained earnings as at 31 December
2016 under the single tier system.

28. Contractual obligation for lease payments

Group

20146 2015

RM’'000 RM’000

At 1 January 835,297 938,005
Adjustments (Note 17) - (11,825)
Unwinding of discount (Note 9) 27,565 26,598
Payments (115,996)  (117,482)
At 31 December 746,866 835,296
Current: 102,851 88,431

Non-current:

Later than 1 year but not later than 2 years 112,769 102,851
Later than 2 years but not later than 5 years 388,445 363,062
Later than 5 years 142,801 280,952

644,015 746,865

746,866 835,296

In accordance with IC Interpretation 12 Service Concession Arrangement, a provision for the
contractual obligations for the lease of land and facilities was accrued at the inception of
the Bintulu Port Sdn. Bhd.'s privatisation agreement and subsequently as additional land and
facilities were leased, at the present value of the future expenditure expected to be required
to settle the obligation.

A draft supplementary agreement to the privatisation agreement, which includes the setting
of lease rentals for the new land and facilities, has been prepared and is pending execution.

Bintulu Port Sdn. Bhd. paid RM115,995,715 (2015: RM117,481,820) for leases of land and port
facilities to BPA. These payments are accounted for as reduction in the contractual obligations
which were provided for at the inception of the privatisation agreement at discounted present
value. A rate of 3.3% (2015: 3.3%) is used to measure the present value of concession lease
payable to BPA.
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29. Loans and borrowings

Current

Unsecured:
Term loan

Non-current
Unsecured:

Term loan
Sukuk Murabahah

Total loans and borrowings

Group
2016 2015
RM’000 RM’000

13,533 13,533

9.666 21,267
934,541 682,783

944,207 704,050

957,740 717,583

The remaining maturities of the loans and borrowings as at the reporting date are as follows:

On demand or within one year
Later than 1 year but not later than 2 years
Later than 2 years but not later than 5 years

Later than 5 years

Group
2014 2015
RM’000 RM’000
13,533 13,533
9,666 11,600
9,667

934,541 682,783

957,740 717,583

The effective interest rate during the financial year for term loan was 4.25% (2015: 4.25%).

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (380802-7)
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29. Loans and borrowings (Continued)

Sukuk Murabahah

The Sukuk Programme obtained by a Samalaju Industrial Port Sdn. Bhd., has a tenure of 20
years from the date of first issuance and has a limit of RM950 million in nominal value. It is
based on the Shariah principle of Murabahah (via a tawarug arrangement) involving selected
Shariah-compliant commodities (“Sukuk Murabahah”). The Sukuk Programme is unsecured. It
is backed by an irrevocable and unconditional guarantee by Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad as
the guarantor. No value has been placed on the guarantee provided by Bintulu Port Holdings
Berhad as the financial impact of the guarantee is not material. The proceeds from the
issuance under the Sukuk Murabahah shall be utilised by the subsidiary for the payment of fees
and expenses relation to the Sukuk Programme, funding of the initial Financial Service Reserve
Account Minimum Required Balance, capital expenditure, payments of Periodic Distributions
to beneficial holders during construction and working capital requirements all of which shall
be in relation to the Project.

On 28 December 2015, the subsidiary raised a total amount of RMé682,783,300 from the first
issuance of the Sukuk Murabahah, which has a tenure up to 14 years from the date of issuance.

On 23 December 2016, the subsidiary raised a total amount of RM250,000,000 from the second
issuance of the Sukuk Murabahah, which has tenure of up to 20 years from the date of issuance.

Summary of the Sukuk Murabahah as at 31 December 2016 is tabulated below:
As at 31 December 2016

Periodic Yield-to-

Nominal distribution maturity Redemption
Year of Issuance amount rates rates Tenure dates
RM’
million % p.q. % p.a Years Year
2015 700 5.05-5.65 530-6.00 8-14 2023 -2029
2016 250 4.50 3.48-6.00 17 -20 2033 -2036
As at 31 December 2015

2015 700 5.05-5.65 5.30-6.00 8-14 2023 -2029
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29. Loans and borrowings (Continued)

The Sukuk Murabahah is redeemable as follows:

20146 2015
RM’'000 RM’000
Later than 7 years 934,541 682,783
30. Other payables
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM’'000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM’'000
Current:
Other payables
Due to subsidiaries - - 344 -
Accrued operating expenses 83,282 81,058 578 625
Sundry payables 41,893 25,822 707 1,396
Deposit received 7.064 - - -
Retention money 27,078 6,325 - -
Staff gratuities 5,655 3.772 - -
164,972 116,977 1,629 2,021
Non-current:
Directors’ gratuities 926 215 926 9215
Staff gratuities 30,438 34,672 - -
31,364 35,587 926 215
Total other payables 196,336 152,564 2,555 2,936
Add: Loans and borrowings (Note 29) 957,740 717,583 - -
Add: Confractual obligation for
lease payments (Note 28) 746,866 835,296 - -
Total finance liabilities carried
at amortised cost 1,900,942 1,705,443 2,555 2,936
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30. Trade and other payables (Continued)

(@)

(b)

(c)

Other payables

Included in accrued operating expenses and sundry payables are amount due to
PETRONAS Dagangan Berhad, a subsidiary of a substantial shareholder, Petroliam
Nasional Berhad of RM296,150 (2015: RM729,532). This amount is non-interest bearing.

Amount due to subsidiaries

The amount due to subsidiaries was unsecured, non-interest bearing and was repayable
on demand.

Staff gratuities
Group
2016 2015
RM’'000 RM’000

At 1 January 38,444 39,956
Arose during the year 1,847 1,860
Utilised during the year (4,198) (3.372)
At 31 December 36,093 38,444
Current:

5,655 3.772
Non-current:
Later than 1 year but not later than 2 years 7.131 4,529
Later than 2 years but not later than 5 years 12,581 14,173
Later than 5 years 10,726 15,970

30,438 34,672

36,093 38,444

The Group operated an unfunded, defined Retirement Benefit Scheme for its employees.
Effective 1 January 2014, the current scheme is closed for future accruals and members
will instead receive additional contributions to EPF up to 19% of salaries.
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30. Trade and other payables (Continued)

(d) Directors’ gratuities

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
At 1 January 915 1,099 9215 1,099
Arose during the year 186 200 186 200
Utilised during the year (175) (384) (175) (384)
At 31 December 926 215 926 215
Non-current: 926 9215 926 915
31. Provision for maintenance dredging costs
Group
20146 2015
RM'000 RM’000
At 1 January 22,500 11,250
Arose during the year 10,682 11,250
Utilised during the year (21,932) -
At 31 December 11,250 22,500
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32. Commitments
(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure as at the reporting date is as follows:

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM’000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000

Capital expenditure
Approved and contracted for:
Property, plant and equipment and
concession intangible assets 273,123 870,414 - -
Approved but not contracted for:
Property, plant and equipment and
concession intangible assets 1,945 38.500 - -

275,068 908,914 - .

(b) Operating lease commitments

Group
2014 2015
RM’'000 RM’000
Not later than 1 year 1,250 1,250
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 5,636 5,373
Later than 5 years 41,522 43,033

48,408 49,656

Lease commitment isin respect of leases for land used in bulking activities by Biport Bulkers
Sdn. Bhd. payable to Bintulu Port Authority (“BPA”).
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33. Related party transactions

(a) Sale and purchase of goods and services

In addition to related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
the following significant transactions between the Group and related parties took place

at terms agreed between the parties during the financial year.

Group Company
20146 2015 20146 2015
RM’'000 RM’'000 RM'000 RM’'000
Significant transactions with subsidiaries
Dividend income - - 115,200 112,200
Management fee received
from subsidiaries - - 33,188 32,102
Rental expense charged by
a subsidiary - - (3,600) (3.600)
Transactions with subsidiaries of a
substantial shareholder,
Petroliam Nasional Berhad:
Rendering of services:
- Malaysia LNG Sdn. Bhd. 274,691 269,793 - -
- ASEAN Bintulu Fertilizer Sdn. Bhd. 292 983 - -
- PS Terminal Sdn. Bhd. 1,336 1,336 - -
- PETRONAS Carigali Sdn. Bhd. 4,787 2,691 - -
- PETRONAS Dagangan Berhad 792 197 - -
- PETRONAS Floatfing LNG 1 (L) Ltd 522 - - -
- PETRONAS Chemical Marketing (L) Ltd 671 - - -
Purchase of fuel and lubricants:
- PETRONAS Dagangan Berhad (79) (192) - -
Purchase of gas:
- PETRONAS Gas Berhad

(2,135) (2,823) ; ]

Information regarding outstanding balances arising from related party transactions
as at 31 December 2016 are disclosed in Notes 25 and 30.
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33. Related party transactions (Continued)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly,

including any Directors of that entity.

The remuneration and benefits of Directors and other member of key management of
the Group and of the Company during the year are as follows:

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RM’'000
Remuneration and benefits 3,051 3,191 2,209 2,333
Post-employment benefits:
Defined contribution plan 154 182 154 182
3,205 3,373 2,363 2,515

34. Service concession arrangements
(a) Bintulu Port

In a privatisation exercise by the Malaysian Government on 31 December 1992, BPA sold
the business of port operations at Bintulu Port to Bintulu Port Sdn. Bhd. (BPSB). According
to the Privatisation Agreement, the subsidiary is granted a licence to provide port services
at Bintulu Port for a period of 30 years, with an option to extend for another 30 years.

In consideration for a right to charge users of the port, the subsidiary pays a scheduled
annual lease rental for the existing infrastructure and the land. Since the inception of the
agreement, the subsidiary has also constructed additional infrastructure. These assets will
be returned to BPA upon termination of the privatisation agreement at nominal value.

The charges to the users are according to a tariff set by BPA at the inception of the
privatisation agreement and have not been varied.
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34. Service concession arrangements (Continued)

(a) Bintulu Port (Continued)

<— Intangible assets —
Gross Net book Financial

value value asset

RM'000 RM’'000 RM’000

* Description arrangement: Financing, 2,276,626 721,868 Nil
building and operating of Bintulu Port (2015: (2015: (2015:

* Period of concession: 1993 — 2022, 2,283,470) 846,783) Nil)

with the option to extend for thirty years

e Remuneration: Services for port facilities

* Investment grant from concession grantor:
No

* Infrastructure return to grantor at
end of concession

* Investment and renewal obligations: Nil

* Re-pricing dates: Nil

(b) Samalaju Industrial Port

On 9 July 2013, a subsidiary, Samalaju Industrial Port Sdn. Bhd. (SIPSB) and Bintulu Port
Holdings Berhad signed a service agreement (“Principal Agreement”) with the State
Government of Sarawak for building, operating and transfer of Samalaju Port.

The estimated cost of developing the port is RM1.90 billion of which approximately RM500
million is in respect of capital dredging and reclamation. In addition, SIPSB is required to
pay a scheduled annual lease rental for the land effective from the date of completion
of the port facilities.

In consideration for the construction of the port, the subsidiary is given the right to charge
port users for the services rendered in accordance with port tariffs approved by the State
Government of Sarawak. The operation under the service concession agreement is for a
period of forty years effective from the date of completion of Phase 1 of the port facilities
expected to be in quarter 2, 2017, with an option to extend for twenty years.
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34. Service concession arrangements (Continued)

(b)

Samalaju Industrial Port (Continued)

The Principal Agreement stipulates that upon completion of Phase | of the project, the
subsidiary will pay land lease of RM4,680,000 per year for an area of 156 hectares. The
annual rent will be increased by 10% for every five years thereafter. An agreement of
sublease has been signed between Samalaju Port Authority (SPA) as the sublessor and
the subsidiary. A memorandum of sublease has been prepared and will be signed and
executed by both parties upon the issuance of the land title to SPA or the completion of
the port facilities, whichever is later.

Upon the sublease taking effect, the rights to use the leased land will be recognised in
the financial statements.

At the end of the concession period, the subsidiary shall transfer all moveable and
immoveable assets of the port facilities at values determined according to the terms of
the agreement.

The main features of the concession arrangements are summarized as follows:

<— Intangible assets—>
Gross Net book Financial

value value asset

RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000

» Description arrangement: Financing, 1,213,767 1,196,236 25,982
building and operating of Samalaju Port (2015: (2015: (2015:

* Period of concession: 2017 — 2056, 668,391) 657,392) 24,527)

with an option to extend for twenty years
¢ Remuneration: Services for port facilities
* Investment grant from concession grantor:
Yes
* Infrastructure return to grantor
at end of concession
* Investment and renewal obligations: Nil
Re-pricing dates: Nil
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35. Fair value of financial instruments

(@)

(b)

Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and whose
carrying amounts are not reasonable approximation of fair value

Set out below is the comparison of the carrying amounts and fair values of the financial
instruments of the Group which are not carried at fair value in the financial statements.
It does not include those short term / on demand financial liabilities where the carrying
amounts are reasonable approximation of their fair values:

Loans, advances and financing

The fair values of fixed rate loans / financing with remaining maturity of less than one year
and variable rate loans / financing are estimated to approximate their carrying amounts.
For fixed rate loans / financing with remaining maturity of more than one year, the fair
values are estimated based on discounted cash flows using prevailing market rates of
loans / financing of similar credit risks and maturity. The fair values of impaired
loans / financing are represented by their carrying amounts, net of any collective and
individual assessment allowances, being the expected recoverable amount.

Determination of fair value

Financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are
reasonable approximation of fair value

The following are classes of financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and
whose carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value:

Note
Concession financial assets 19
Trade and other receivables 18, 25
Other payables 30
Loans and borrowings 29

The carryingamounts of these financial assets and liabilities are reasonable approximations
of fair values due to their short-term nature.
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36. Fair value measurement
Fair value hierarchy
The Group and the Company classify fair value measurement using a fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; or

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; or

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group'’s liabilities.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilities as at 31 December are

as follows:
Date of
valuation Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Group
Liabilities for which fair
values are disclosed
[Note 35 (a)]
Loans and borrowings 31
- Fixed rate term loan and December
SUKUK Murabahah 2016 - 977,983 - 977,983
Liabilities for which fair
values are disclosed
[Note 35 (a)]
Loans and borrowings 31
- Fixed rate term loan and December
SUKUK Murabahah 2015 - 706,706 - 706,706

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the financial year.
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37. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial
instruments. The Group's financial risk management strategy seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects of financial performance of the Group. The key financial risks include interest
rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies and
procedures for the management of these risks, which are executed by the management. The
audit committee provides independent oversight to the effectiveness of the risk management
process.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group's exposures to the above-mentioned
financial risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the management of these risks.

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instruments
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group's and the Company’s exposure to the interest rate risk relate to the Company’s
fixed deposits, money market investments and REPO with financial institutions.

Since all the Group's and the Company’s financial assets and liabilities are fixed rate
instruments measured at amortised cost, a change in interest rate is not expected to
have material impact on the Group's and the Company's profit or loss.

(b) Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial insfruments should a
counterparty default on its obligations. The Group's exposure to credit risk arises primarily
from tfrade and other receivables. For cash and cash equivalents, the Group minimises
credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating financial institutions.

The Group's objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses incurred
due to increased credit risk exposure. The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. Credit risk is controlled and minimised through the application
of credit approvals, limits and monitoring procedures. Trade receivables are monitored
on an ongoing basis via the Group's management reporting procedures. Outstanding
customer receivables are regularly monitored and are generally covered by bank
guarantee.
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37. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Creditrisk (Continued)

(c)

Credit risk concentration profile

Other than the amount owing by subsidiaries of Petroliam National Berhad as disclosed
in Note 25, the Group does not have other significant concentration of credit risk. The
credit risk is minimised and controlled through the application of credit approvals, credit
limits, collaterals and monitoring procedures.

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Information regarding trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired is
disclosed in Note 25. Trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
are creditworthy debtors with good payment record with the Group. Deposits with banks
and other financial institutions that are neither past due nor impaired are placed with or
entered intfo with reputable financial institutions with high credit ratings and no history of
default.

Financial assets that are past due but not impaired

Information regarding financial assets that are past due but not impaired is disclosed in
Nofe 25.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting financial
obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group’'s exposure to liquidity risk arises
primarily from their ability to meet the obligations on their activities in the construction
of concession infrastructure. The Group will fund these activities through equity, funding
from the Government and credit facilities.

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities

The table below analyses the maturity profile of the Group's and the Company’s financial
liabilities based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.
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38. Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a
strong credit rating and healthy capital ratfios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholder’s value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes
in economic condition. To maintain or adjust capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital
plus net debt. The Group includes within net debt, loans and borrowings, frade payables, other
payables, less cash and bank balances. Capital includes equity attributable to the owners of

the parent.
Group

Note 2016 2015
RM’'000 RM’000
Loans and borrowings 29 957,740 717,583
Other payables 30 196,336 152,564
Less: Cash and bank balances 22 (626,462)  (808,254)
Net debt 527,614 61,893
Equity attributable to the owners of the parent 1,156,676 1,117,237
Total equity 1,156,676 1,117,237
Capital and net debt 1,684,290 1,179,130
Gearing ratio 31.33% 5.25%

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (3s0s02-1) Annual Report 2016



AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
188 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2016
39. Segment information

The Group reporting is organised and managed into two major business segments based on
the nature of services provided, which requires different business and marketing strategies.
The reportable segments are summarised as follows:

(i)  Port operations - the provision of port services and construction services which include
construction of port facilities, handling of cargo for liquefied natural gas, petroleum
products, liquefied petroleum gas, general cargo, container, dry bulk cargo and other
ancillary services; and

(i)  Bulking services - the provision of bulking installation facilities for palm oil, edible oils,
vegetable oils, fats and its by-products.

Except as indicated above, no operating segments has been aggregated to form the above
reportable operating segments.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose
of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss which, in certain respects, may be
measured differently from operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements.

No segmental information is provided on a geographical basis as the Group's activities are
carried out in Malaysia.

Consolidations Per
Adjustments Consolidated
Port Bulking and Financial
Operations  Services Others Eliminations Note Statements
RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’000
31 December 2016
Revenue:
External customers
representing total
revenue
(Note 4) 1,129,563 41,111 - (5,702) 1,164,972
Results:
Interest income 25,468 709 1,579 - 27,756
Dividend income - - (115,200) (115,200) -
Depreciation and
amortisation 149,086 7,771 268 - 157,125
Other non-cash
expenses 40,094 - 186 - A 40,280
Segment profit 188,057 16,976 111,146 (115,200) B 200,979
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39. Segment information (Continued)

Consolidations

Adjustments
Port Bulking and Financial
Operations  Services Others Eliminations Note Statements
RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
31 December 2016
Assets:
Additions to hon-
current assets 560,864 5,637 1,222 - C 567,623
Segment assefts 2,904,755 149,864 970,518 (943,149) D 3,081,988
Segment
liabilities 1,900,521 25,402 2,555 (3,166) E 1,925,312
31 December 2015
Revenue:
External customers
representing total
revenue 898,433 41,889 - (4,548) 935,774
Results:
Interest income 11,070 471 975 - 12,516
Dividend income - - 112,200 (112,200) -
Depreciation and
amortisation 147,547 7,630 186 - 155,363
Other non-cash
expenses 39,908 - - - A 39,908
Segment profit 156,064 17,586 107,025 (112,200) B 168,475
Assets:
Additions to non-
current assets 410,486 1,980 454 - C 412,920
Segment assets 2,678,831 155,737 970,153 (942,034) D 2,862,687
Segment
liabilities 1,706,769 37,794 2,936 (2,049) E 1,745,450
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39. Segment information (Continued)

A Other material non-cash expenses consist of the following items as presented in the
respective notes to the financial statements:

Group
2016 2015
RM’000 RM’000
Staff gratuities 1,847 1,860
Maintenance dredging costs 10,682 11,250
Directors’ gratuities 186 200
Unwinding of discount 27,565 26,598

40,280 39,908

B The following items are deducted from segment profit to arrive at “Profit before tax from
continuing operations” presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss:

2016 2015
RM’'000 RM’'000

Dividend income (115,200)  (112,200)

C Additions to non-current assets consist of:

20146 2015

RM’'000 RM’'000

Property, plant and equipment 14,078 11,635
Infangible assets 553,545 401,285

567,623 412,920
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39. Segment information (Continued)

D The following items are deducted from segment assets to arrive at total assets reported
in the consolidated statement of financial position:

2016 2015
RM’000 RM’'000

Goodwill 15 15
Investment in subsidiaries (940,000)  (940,000)
Inter-segment assets (3.164) (2,049)

(943,149)  (942,034)

E The following items are deducted from segment liabilities to arrive at total liabilities
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position:

2016 2015
RM’000 RM’'000

Inter-segment liabilities (3.166) (2,049)

40. Contingent liability

On 29 July 2016, a wholly owned subsidiary of Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (“BPHB”), Samalaju
Industrial Port Sdn. Bhd. (“SIP”) was served with a Writ of Summons and Statement of Claim
filed by Macon Charter B.V. (“Macon”), a company incorporated in the Netherlands through
Messrs Joseph & Partners (“JP") Advocates & Solicitors who named Inai Kiara Sdn. Bhd. (“IK")
as the 15t Defendant, Integrated Marine Works Sdn. Bhd. (“IMW") as the 2nd Defendant and
SIP as the 3rd Defendant. The Defendants are companies incorporated in Malaysia.

The action was initiated for alleged failure of the Defendants to effect payment to Macon
under the Agreement of Hire of Dredging Equipment (“Charter Contract”) dated 17 January
2015 between Macon and IMW. K on behalf of IMW has entered info Amendment to the
Charter Contract dated 16 October 2015 for the extension of the charter hire. SIP has awarded
the Capital Dredging and Reclamation Package for Phase 1 Works (“the Contract”) to IMW.
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40. Contingent liability (Continued)

Macon sought the following relief against SIP:

a)  The sum of Euro 5.8 million;

b) Late payment penalty;

c) Judgementinterest;

d) Costs; and

e)  Any further or other relief that the Honourable Court may deem fit and just.

SIP has retained the services of Messrs. Shearn Delmore & Co (“SD”) to act on its behalf.

Messrs. Shearn Delmore & Co ("SD") is unable to render an opinion as to the probable financial
outcome as the claims are still in its early stages.

JP has sought SIP’s consideration for court-assisted mediation as an alternative mode
of resolution to the case. The Court has fixed the mediation date to be on 15 March
2017.

41. Avuthorisation of financial statements for issue

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 were authorised for
issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 9 March 2017.
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42. Supplementary information - breakdown of retained earnings into realised
and unrealised

The breakdown of the retained earnings of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December
2016 into realised and unrealised profits is presented in accordance with the directive issued
by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad dated 25 March 2010 and prepared in accordance with
Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses
in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements,
as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

Group Company
RM’000 RM’000

Total retained earnings of the Company and its subsidiaries

- Realised 213,040 77,145
- Unrealised 52,818 -
Retained earnings as per financial statements 265,858 77,145
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
to the members of Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad - 380802-T
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad, which comprise the
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2016 of the Group and of the Company, and
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and
statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on
pages 117 to 192.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2016, and of their financial
performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Independence and other ethical responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on
Professional Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws™)
and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of
the Company as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
to the members of Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad - 380802-T
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matters How we addressed the key audit matters

Impairment assessment of concession
intangible assets for Samalaju Industrial Port
Sdn. Bhd. (“SIPSB”)

(Refer to Note 2.9 and Note 17 to the financial
statements)

MFRS 136 Impairment of Assets requires an
entity to perform impairment test on intangible
assets that are not available for use annually,
irrespective of any indication for impairment.
Giventhesignificance of concessionintangible
assets to the Group and the judgement and
estimates involved in the assessment of the
recoverable amount, we have identified the
impairment of concession intangible assets for
SIPSB as an important area of our audit.

The Group estimated the recoverable amount
of its cash generating units (“CGUs") based
on value-in-use (“VIU"). Estimating the VIU
involves estimating the future cash inflows
and outflows that will be derived from the
infangible assets of SIPSB, and discounting
them at an appropriate rate.

Our audit procedures included, among
others evaluating the assumptions and
methodologies used by the Group, in particular
the assumptions to which the recoverable
amount of the CGUs are most sensitive such as
the cargo projections, the timing of the future
cash flows, the revenue growth rates as well
as the discount rate used.

We have assessed and tested the key
assumptions used by management to
estimate the projected cash flows for the
CGUs as follows:

a) checked the cargo projections provided
by port users that have set up their
operations at Samalaju;

b) checked the tariff rates used against the
published rates issued by Samalaju Port
Authority;

c) reviewed annual escalation of expenses
against Malaysia’s inflation rate;

d) reviewed the project engineer’'s (KTA
Sarawak Sdn. Bhd.) project progress
report on the construction progress of
the port for the timing of cash flows;

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (380802-7)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
to the members of Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad - 380802-T

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Impairment assessment of concession
intangible assets for Samalaju Industrial Port
Sdn. Bhd. (“SIPSB”)

(Refer to Note 2.9 and Note 17 to the financial
statements)

The areas that involved significant audit
effort and judgement were the assessment of
possible variations in the amount and fiming
of cash flows and the determination of an
appropriate discount rate for SIPSB.

Based on the aforementioned impairment
assessment, the Group has not recognised
any impairment on the concession intangible
assets of SIPSB for the year ended 31
December 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount
of the concession intangible assets of SIPSB is
RMT1,196 million.

Key audit matters How we addressed the key audit matters

e) evaluated the appropriateness of the
discount rate used to determine the
present value of the cash flows and
whether the rate used reflects the
current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to
the asset; and

f) assessed the sensitivity of the cash flows
to changes in the discount rate and
cargo projected.

In addition, we also evaluated the adequacy
of the disclosures of each key assumption
on which the Group has based its cash flow
projections and to which the recoverable
amount is most sensitive, as disclosed in Note
17 to the financial statements.
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to the members of Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad - 380802-T
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Group’s 2016 Annual Report, but does not include the
financial statements of the Group and of the Company and our auditors’ report thereon. The Group’s
2016 Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our
responsibility is to read the otherinformation and, in doing so, consider whether the otherinformation
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the
Group and of the Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Group
and of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
to the members of Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad - 380802-T
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the
Group and of the Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved
standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an auditin accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepfticism
throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intfernal control.

(b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and the Company'’s internal control.

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

(d) Conclude onthe appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or condifions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's or the Company's ability
to confinue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw aftention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group or the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
to the members of Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad - 380802-T
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (Continued)

(e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the
Group and of the Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
of the Group and of the Company represent the underlying fransactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

(f)  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the
Group. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the
current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in ourreport because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
to the members of Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad - 380802-T
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Other reporting responsibilities

The supplementary information set out in Note 42 on page 193 is disclosed to meet the requirement
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhnad and is not part of the financial statements. The directors are
responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with Guidance
on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Contfext
of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants ("MIA Guidance") and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary information is prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Other matters
Thisreportis made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266

of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
to any other person for the content of this report.

Ernst & Young Najihah Binti Khalid
AF: 0039 No. 03249/10/2018 J
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
17 March 2017
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1. ANALYSIS OF HOLDINGS AS AT 28 FEBRUARY 2017

. . No . of Holders No. of Shares %
Size of Shareholdings . . . . . )
Malaysian Foreign Malaysian Foreign Malaysian Foreign
1-99 24 3 442 173 0.000 0.000
100-1,000 567 14 497,400 9,100 0.108 0.001
1,001-10,000 588 7 2,382,800 23,600 0.518 0.005
10,001-100,000 98 5 2,543,800 173,800 0.553 0.037
100,001-22,999,999 29 7 91,761,285 6,674,300 19.948 1.450
23,000,000 and above 4 0 355,933,300 0 77.376 0.000

2. LIST OF TOP THIRTY (30) HOLDERS AS AT 28 FEBRUARY 2017

No. Name of Holders Shareholdings %
1.  CIMB Group Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 131,171,000 28.515
Exempt An For Petroliam Nasional Berhad
2.  State Financial Secretary Sarawak 122,701,000 26.674
3. Equisar Assets Sdn Bhd 60,000,000 13.043
4.  Kumpulan Wang Persaraan (Diperbadankan) 42,061,300 9.143
5.  Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 20,848,600 4.532
Employees Provident Fund Board
6. Lembaga Tabung Hi. 17,000,000 3.695
7.  MISC Berhad 10,619,000 2.308
8.  Amanahraya Trustees Berhad 9,155,400 1.990
Amanah Saham Bumiputera
9.  Amanahraya Trustees Berhad 8,400,200 1.826
Amanah Saham Wawasan 2020
10.  Amanahraya Trustees Berhad 5,500,000 1.195
Amanah Saham Malaysia
11.  Amanahraya Trustees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 3,974,800 0.864
Public Islamic Select Treasures Fund
12. Amanahraya Trustees Berhad 3,428,500 0.745
Public Ittikal Sequel Fund
13.  Amanahraya Trustees Berhad 3,172,100 0.689
Public Islamic Dividend Fund
14.  Amanahraya Trustees Berhad 2,825,085 0.614
Amanah Saham Didik
15. Tokio Marine Life Insurance Malaysia Bhd 2,320,000 0.504
As Beneficial Owner (PF)
16. HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd 1,903,000 0.413
TNTC for Mondrian Emerging Markets Small Cap Equity
Fund, L.P.
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No. Name of Holders Shareholdings %

17. Amanahraya Trustees Berhad 1,001,200 0.217
AS 1Malaysia

18.  HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd 919,200 0.199
Exempt An For The Bank Of New York Mellon (Mellon Acct)

19.  Shoptra Jaya (M) Sdn Bhd 913,800 0.198

20. Loh Kah Wai 700,000 0.152

21.  Amanahraya Trustees Berhad 658,700 0.143
Public Islamic Sector Select Fund

22.  AMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 588,000 0.127

ASSAR Asset Management Sdn Bhd
For Tabung Baitulmal Sarawak (Majlis Islam Sarawak)
(FM-ASSAR-TBS)

23. Koperasi Jayadiri Malaysia Berhad 500,000 0.108

24.  Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 494,100 0.107
Etiga Takaful Berhad (Family PRF EQ)

25.  Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 468,000 0.101
Kumpulan Wang Persaraan (Diperbadankan) (I-VCAP)

26. Citigroup Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd 376,100 0.081
CBNY For Old Westbury Small & Mid Cap Fund

27. Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 354,000 0.076
Efiga Insurance Berhad (Life Par Fund)

28. HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 331,000 0.071

HSBC (M) Trustee Bhd For Manulife Investment
Dividend Fund (5311-401)

29. HLB Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd 300,000 0.065
Pledged Securities Account for Loh Kah Wai

30. CIMB Group Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 298,200 0.064
Pledged Securities Account for Nik Abd Rahman bin Nik
Ismail (BPH 1)

3. SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 28 FEBRUARY 2017

No. Name of Holders Shareholdings %
CIMB Group Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 131,171,000 28.515
Exempt An For Pefroliam Nasional Berhad

2  State Financial Secretary Sarawak 122,701,000 26.674
3 Equisar Assets Sdn Bhd 60,000,000 13.043
4 Kumpulan Wang Persaraan (Diperbadankan) 42,061,300 9.143
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Summary of Equipment & Facilities as at 28 February 2017

Description No. of Berth/Jetty Total Capacity/Area
Type Of Berth (::21%3 (r::f;rl; Mg)z(ev(eds:v?)l
General Cargo Wharf 3 514.5 10.5 25,000
Bulk Cargo Wharf 1 270 13.5 60,000
LNG Jetty S - 15.0 80,000
LPG Jetty 1 - 11.0 51,000
(Decommisioned unfil
completion of LNG4)
Petrochemical Terminal 2 - 11.0 30,000
Shell MDS Jetty 1 - 13.0 40,000
Container Terminal 2 450 14.0 55,000
2 - 14.0 50,000
Edible Oils Terminal 1 . 9.0 10,000
(Barge Berth)

Single Buoy Mooring 2 - 19.5 320,000
Oil Barge Berth 65 7.0 2,000
Coastal Terminal 1 120 4.5 1,000
Multipurpose Terminal S 950 14.0 55,000
Bunkering Berth (MPT 10) 1 45 4.5
Barge Berth 2 320 7 8,000
Ro Ro Ramp 1 20 7 8,000
Type Of Storage Units Area (m?)
General Cargo Wharf

- Transit Shed 2 10,000

- Transit Shed 1 5,000

- Transit Shed 2 2,860

- Timber Yard 2,140
- Storage Godown 3 7,200

16 Block
(each bay length: 127.60 m)
(each bay width : 18.25 m)

- Rigger Warehouse 1

- Open Storage Area

Multipuprose Teminal
- Timber Shed 2
- Hazardous Godown 1

6 Block A/B
*each bay length: 55.22 m
*each bay width: 15.86 m

- Open Yard

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (380802-7)

(each Storage Godown

area: 2,400 m?)
71,900

2,376

7,800 m? each
1,200 m?2
17,160 m?
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Container Terminal

- RTG Block 26 2,496 Ground Slots*
- RSD Block 8 640 Ground Slots*
- Customs Examination Area 1 12 Ground Slofs*
- Dangerous Goods Storage 1 84 Ground Slofs*
- Reefer Points 1 84 Ground Slots*
- On-Dock Depot (ODD) 5 442 Ground Slofs*

*(Twenty Footer)

Type Of Vessels Units Capacity
Mooring Boat S -
Mooring Boat (Charter)

1
Shiphandling Tug 45 Tons 3 45 tonnes bollard pull
Shiphandling Tug 45 Tons (Charter) 8 45 tonnes bollard pull
Shiphandling Tug 25 Tons (New) 2 25 tonnes bollard pull
Shiphandling Tug 25 Tons (Old) 2 25 tonnes bollard pull
Shiphandling Tug 25 Tons (Charter) 2 25 tonnes bollard pull
Mild Steel Pilot Boat 1 -
Pilot Boat (Charter) 2 -
Aluminium Pilot Boat 1 -
Aluminium Patrol Boat 2 -

Mild Steel Patrol Boat 1 -
Patrol Dinggy 1 -
Fiberglass Patrol Boat 1 -

Capacity (Tonnes)
*Safe Working Load (SWL)

Cargo Handling & Mechanical Equipment No. of Units

Container Handling Equipment

Post-Panamax Quay Crane 2 40.6 (Under Spreader),

50 (Cargo Beam)
Panamax Quay Crane 2 40.6 (Under Spreader),

50 (Cargo Beam)
Rubber Tyred Gantry Crane (4+1 high / 6+1 14 40.6 (Under Spreader)
high with 6+1 row)
Reach Stacker 8 45
Towing Terminal Tractor 4] 60

(Max. Towed Load including Trailer)
Container Trailer 49 40
(Safe Loading Capacity)

Heavy Forklift (Diesel) 4 8
LPG Forklift 3 3
Battery Powered Forklift 3 3
Empty Container Handler 2 10
Empty Reach Stacker 2 10
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Cargo Handling & Mechanical Equipment

No. of Units

Capacity (Tonnes)

Cargo Handling Equipment
Heavy Forklift (Diesel)
Forklift (Diesel)

Extra Heavy Forklift (Diesel)
Terminal Tractor

Platform Trailer

Mobile Truck Crane

Bulking Machinery & Equipment
Qil Fired Package Boilers (2 units)

Pumpsets (Pump House A)
Road Tanker Pump -7
Export Pump - 6

Pumpsets (Pump House B)
Road Tanker Pump - 4
Export Pump — 4

Tonnes Toyota Forklift

Tonnes RY Forklift (2 Units)
Ingersoll-Rand Air Compressor
Diesel Standby Generator Set
Pressure Vessel

Samalaju Industrial Port Handling Equipment
Mobile Harbour Crane

Reach Stacker

Extra Heavy Forklift

Terminal Tractor

Container Trailer

Platform Trailer

High Mast Forklift

Dump Truck

Excavator

Portable Hoppers

W = K N =~

W 00 N M MO — NN

N

*Safe Working Load (SWL)

25

60
(Max. Towed Load including Trailer)

40
(Safe Loading Capacity)

50

6000kg/hr (Steam Generation)

250-300mt/hr (for export pump)
115mt/hr (for Road Tanker Pump)

250-300 mt/hr (for Export Pump)
115mt/hr (for Road Tanker Pump)

2.5 tonnes
3.0 tonnes
427 CFM
500k VA
30 m3

84
45
25
40
40
40
4
25
SWL af min. Radius : 4.3 Tonnes

Volumetric Capacity : 30m? & 55m?
SWL : 100 Tonnes

Bulking Facilities
2,600 MT Tank
2,000 MT Tank
1,000 MT Tank
650 MT Tank
Export Pipelines
Bulking Pipelines

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (380802-7)

No. of Units/Facilities

19
42
16

13

Capacity (Metric Tonnes)
49,400
84,000
16,000
5,200
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LIST OF PROPERTIES AS AT 28 FEBRUARY 2017

Tenure

Location Description (Years) Area sq. Ft.
Land:

Part of Lot 15 & 37 The  surveyed land  area Leasehold 4,415,170
(Alienated Land), Tanjung identified in the Agreement (Expiring in 2022)

Kidurong, Kemena Land to sub-Lease (Alienated Land)

District, Bintulu, Sarawak. dated 31.12.1992

Part of Lot 15 & 37 The surveyed land area which Leasehold 2,693,040
(BICT Land) Tanjung Kidurong, covers the BICT (Expiring in 2022)

Kemena Land District, Bintulu,

Sarawak.

Net Carrying
Location Age of Building (Years) Area sq. Fi. Value

(RM'000)

Building, structures & improvements:

Built on Alienated Land
Single Storey Office Building 22 6,935 63

Built on BICT Land

Receipt & Delivery Building 19 12,110 661
Gate House 19 5015 218
Crane Service Station 19 9,300 278
Crane Service Workshop (Extension) 9 3,488 446
Custom Examination Shed 19 2,583 24
Canteen Building 19 11,959 2,128
Marine Operation Building 19 16,534 1,124
Marine Maintenance Building 19 9.300 423
Wisma Kontena Building 17 69,727 3.670
Access Road (including 2 bridges) 19 - 3,398
Container Stacking Yard 19 1,937,229 20,183
Empty Container Stacking Yard 8 282,143 2,395
New Storage Yard 21 - 232
Container Stacking Yard (BICT Extension) 7 618,279 31,243
Upgrading Work to Open Storage Yard at BICT 6 1,216,935 2,865
Main Intake Substation 21 2,174 365
Quay Crane Substation 19 1,485 216
CFS Substation Marine 19 904 118
Marine Operation Substation 19 1,098 160
Wharves 4 & 5 19 168,053 17,876
Small Craft Harbour 19 - 2,745
Coastal Terminal/ Gravel Jetty 19 9,085 240
Bulk Ferfiliser Warehouse 12 21,700 6,176
Container Freight Stafion 6 65,390 6,922
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Location Age(gfezt::l)ding Area sq. Ft. Nl Ca{/rz:zg
(RM’'000)
CFS Pit Type Weighbridge 6 36
Mooring Service Building 6 621
Lub Oil Storage Shed 3 84
Schedule Waste Storage 3 82
Empty Container Stacking Yard (extension) 3 2,991
Asphltic Concrete Pavement near Coastal Terminal 3 4,079
Built on Multi Purpose Terminal Land (950 Meter Wharf)
MPT Open Storage Yard 6 859,815 12,514
500m Ex-BPP Wharf at MPT 6 46,177 11,628
Transit Shed 1 6 95,723 7,282
Transit Shed 3 6 95,723 5,101
Plant Maintenance Workshop 6 23,182 2,895
Hazardous Goods Godown 6 17,823 2,863
Operator’s Resthouse 6 2,809 458
M&E Plant Room 6 3,263 1,137
MPT Operational Gate 6 1,791 778
MPT Weighbridge 6 32,258 163
New Stone Base (Gravel) Area 4 22,604 104
Workers Resting Area at MPT 4 2,190 72
Temporary Bunkering Facility at MPT10 g 5,301 310
Built on 2™ Inner Harbour Land
Edible Oil Terminal 11 44,215 16,895
Bulking Building : Built on 2" Inner Harbour Land
Buildings
Administrative Building 12 6,272 658
M&E Block A Building 12 3.833 275
M&E Block B Building 12 3.005 240
Pump House A 12 14,592 681
Pump House B 6 13,612 1,683
Operator Rest House 4 784 169
One Stop Sampling Store 3 - 81
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Net Carrying
Area sq. Ft. Value
(RM’'000)

Age of Building

Location (Years)

Samalaju Industrial Port Building and Structures

Interim Port Facility
Construction and Completion of the Proposed Samalaju Port Development Project — Interim Port Facility

Package

Access Road 3 437,875.88 11,897
Breakwater & Revetment 3 552m 33.841
(length)
Wharf 3 146,819.74 63,092
- Fender system 3 74 (nos) 3,363
Navigation Lighting System 3 - 3,487
Check Point Building 3 513.44 127
Weigh Bridges 3 = 1.111

Operation Buildings
Construction and Completion of the Proposed Samalaju Port Development Project — Proposed Operation

Buildings & Associated Works Package

Office Block A 3 7,407.17 809
Office Block B 3 7.,407.17 743
Worker Rest Shed 3 4,347 .01 477
Canteen 3 4,639.19 486
Maintenance Shed 3 8,815.64 876
Guard House 3 383.63 84
Miscellaneous Building 3 - 1,490
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FORM OF PROXY

BINTULL PORT HOLDINGS BERIAD

Number of Shares Held : BINTULU PORT HOLDINGS BERHAD
Company No.: 380802-T
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

CDS Account No.

OF (FUIL AIESS) ettt et e e e e e e e e et e e et et eabeebe e s st e e b e eae e st e e ab e e be e tt e e st e e st e eneeenreenneeenaeenne
being a member / members of Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad (the “Company”) hereby appoint*............cccooiiiiiiiiiieiieeeeeee,

or failing him / her*, the Chairman of the Meeting as my / our* proxy, to vote for me / us* and my / our* behalf, at
the Twenty-First (21¢') Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at Ballroom 3, Lobby Floor, Hilton Kuching,
Jalan Tunku Abdul Rahman, 93748 Kuching, Sarawak on Friday, 21 day of April, 2017 at 3.00 pm or any adjournment
thereof. My / Our proxy is to vote as indicated below:

No. Resolutions For Against
1. To approve the payment of Final Single Tier Dividend of 6.0 sen per share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2016. Resolution 1
2. To approve the Directors’ Fees amounting to RM925,000.00 for the year ended
31 December 2016. Resolution 2
3. To re-elect Tan Sri Datuk Amar Hj. Mohamad Morshidi bin Abdul Ghani who retires
under Article 127 of the Company'’s Articles of Association. Resolution 3
4. To re-elect Gen. Dato’ Seri DiRaja Tan Sri (Dr.) Mohd Zahidi bin Hj. Zainuddin (R) who
refires under Article 127 of the Company’s Articles of Association. Resolution 4
5. To re-elect Datuk Nasarudin bin Md Idris who retfires under Article 127 of the
Company’s Arficles of Association. Resolution 5
6. To re-elect Dato’ Siti Zauyah binti Md Desa who refires under Article 132 of the
Company'’s Articles of Associafion. Resolution 6
7. To re-appoint Messrs. Ernst & Young as Auditors of the Company and to authorise
the Directors to fix their remuneration. Resolution 7

Please indicate with an “X" in the appropriate space how you wish your vote to be cast. If you do not indicate how
you wish your proxy to vote on any resolution, the proxy shall vote as he / she thinks fit, or at his / her discretion,
abstain from voting.

If more than one proxy is appointed, please specify below the proportion of your vote in percentage represented by
each proxy:

First Named Proxy : %
Second Named Proxy : %
Dated this ......... day of .....o.il. 2017

Signature(s) of Member(s) and / or Common Seal
*Delete where not applicable

*Notes :-

. Only depositors whose names appear on the Record of Depositors as at 13 April 2017 shall be entitled to attend, speak and vote at
the said meeting or appoint proxies to attend, speak and vote on his / her behalf.

. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote is entitfled to appoint up to two (2) proxies to attend and vote in his stead.
A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

. Where a member appoints two (2) proxies, the appointment shall be invalid unless he / she specifies the proportions of his / her
shareholding to be represented by each proxy.

. The insfrument appointing a proxy in the case of an individual shall be signed by the appointer or his attorney duly authorised in
writing and in the case of a corporation, the instrument appointing a proxy must be under seal or under the hand of an officer or
attorney duly authorised.

. The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at Lot 15, Block 20, Kemena Land
District, 12" Mile, Tanjung Kidurong Road, 97000 Bintulu, Sarawak, Malaysia not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the day, date
and time stipulated for holding the said meeting or at any adjournment thereof.



The Company Secretary

Bintulu Port Holdings Berhad

Lot 15, Block 20, Kemena Land District,

12" Mile Tanjung Kidurong Road,

P.O Box 996, 97008 Bintulu, Sarawak, Malaysia



